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Five-Year Financial Summary

BE+-BR=+—HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
—TtF ZF-)\F ZFT-NF ZTTF -
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
FET FEx TET TET Fxx
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000

E45 RESULTS
g A Revenue 89,484 56,872 54,257 54,386 54,180
E7 Gross profit 51,889 30,271 33,329 35,179 34,409
& P 15 %4 BT ) A1) Profit before income tax 17,045 2,090 18,642 91,402 2,404
15 % 5 2 Income tax expense (1,416) (1,930) (293) (3,197) (1,501)
F 175 A Profit for the year 15,629 160 18,349 88,205 903
R+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—FLF ZF\F ZFNF ZTITF ZB-—F
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
FET FE7T FET F=E7T FEX
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
BEEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BEE Total assets 227,745 201,913 183,959 252,778 172,312
mEE Total liabilities (125,726)  (113,462) (82,584) (55,496) (55,711)
BEFE Net assets 102,019 88,451 101,375 197,282 116,601
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Financial Highlights

BE+t-A=T—HLHEE

For the year ended 31 December

—BZ—F —T_FTF 25
2021 2020 Change
XE(TxER): Results (US$'000):
g A Revenue 54,180 54,386 -0.4%
EF Gross profit 34,409 35,179 -2.2%
& m Profit from operations 5,558 8,776 -36.7%
B P 45 75 A& Profit before income tax 2,404 91,402 -97.4%
KA EEE ANEAERT Profit attributable to owners
of the Company 903 88,205 -99.0%
BRgED Profitability:
EF = Gross profit margin 63.5% 64.7% -1.2%
s Net profit margin 1.7% 162.2% -160.5%
FREREBF (1) Basic earnings per share (US cents) 0.23 22.21 -21.98
BMERR(FERT) : Financial Position (US$°000):
BEE Total assets 172,312 252,778 -31.8%
NARHERE ANELEZR Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 116,601 197,282 -40.9%
BHEefE Total liabilities 55,711 55,496 0.4%
R4 LIB1TEH Cash and bank balances 48,489 97,553 -50.3%
REBEESMR Liquidity:
mEN R (5) Current ratio (times) 2.1 3.7 -1.6
FEEREE Net debt-to-equity ratio* TiEA N/A TiE A N/A -

* FEERES K= (15K

- R RRITER) BRE

* Net debt-to-equity ratio = (Borrowings — cash and bank balances)/Total equity
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Financial Highlights

WA

Revenue

[ JE3N o WATFI04%

Revenqg
(EBET) o Revenue decreased by 0.4%

(US$ million)

2 EBA
Segment Revenue
| i W =5ER B REER
Pharmaceuticals Cosmetic products Healthcare products
(B8=T) (BB%T) (BE%T)
(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)
515 Y 51.4
90.9% 0.2 6.6%
0.1 a4 | 25 Pl 26
2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021

2 3B A
Segment Profit
| B W X5Em B REER
Pharmaceuticals Cosmetic products Healthcare products
(&%) (&%) (&%)
(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)
17.4%
55.6% 2,045.5%
2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021
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Profit for the year and Net profit margin

W FRER | ARE
Profit for the year Net profit margin
(B&%T) (%)
(US$ million)

162.2%

2020 2021

REERFEE
Total assets and Net assets

W FRBEE W RBEE W FEE
Non-current assets Current assets Net assets
(BEFT) (B&EXT) (B&8=rT)
(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)

190.0 197.3

114.6 | 116:6

2020 2021

BA A

MBREE
Financial Highlights

F A4 F T FE99.0%
HE R TBE 160.5%
Profit for the year decreased by 99.0%
Net profit margin decreased by 160.5%

HBEE T£31.8%
HEE T[£40.9%
Total assets decreased by 31.8%
Net assets decreased by 40.9%
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Chairman’s Statement
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (“Lansen” or the “Group”), | am pleased to present
the annual report of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2021 to all shareholders of the Company.

Review of 2021

For 2021, the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
US$54.2 million (equivalent to approximately RMB350 million),
representing a decrease of 0.4% from last year and, after
excluding the effect of the appreciation of RMB against USD, a
decrease of 7% from last year. Such decrease was mainly due to
the decrease in sales volume of the Group’s core products, Pafulin
and Sicorten Plus, as compared with last year. In response to the
decline in sales volume, the Group has made targeted adjustments
to its sales strategy and implemented the new strategy step by
step. Profit from operations for 2021 was approximately US$5.6
million, representing a decrease of 36.7% from last year. Excluding
the effect of the appreciation of RMB against USD, the decrease
in profit was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue as
mentioned above which resulted in a corresponding decrease in
gross profit. Net profit for 2021 was approximately US$0.9 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 99.0% from last year,
which was mainly due to the decrease in profit from operations
and the loss of approximately US$1.1 million in relation to the
shares of Zhejiang Starry Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Starry”) held
by the Group in the year as compared to the gain of approximately
US$84.7 million in relation to the shares of Starry held by the
Group in 2020.

With respect to the pharmaceutical business, the pharmaceutical
industry introduced throughout the year a host of policies which
showed the importance of penetrating into lower-tier markets and
expanding reach to hospitals, especially for medicines for chronic
diseases. Based on the characteristics of its product portfolio, the
Group adjusted its sales strategy and started to further integrate
its sales and marketing resources at the end of the year, including
(i) extending the hospital and customer coverage of the team
responsible for sales to big hospitals by consolidating the mature
market team and the emerging market team, while continuing
to promote the pilot sales project covering all of its products in
Zhejiang Province; (ii) merging the commercial distribution team
with the retail team to further strengthen its management of and
collaboration with distributors, thereby driving the OTC sales and
coverage; and (iii) setting up a semi-self-run team to expand both
reach and sales to grass-roots healthcare terminals. By integrating
its sales and marketing resources, the Group will accelerate the
establishment of sales channels in lower-tier cities and increase its
reach to graded hospitals and grass-roots healthcare terminals. In
addition, the Group is gradually resuming the production of more
than 20 traditional Chinese medicine products with independent
production approvals.



REXBTE NEBEENBE QR ER
ERBERAA ([ER]) REBERFE - F
NEROEVRODEHLLEHEE %
FEMARBEE BRMBSELCEFREY
E FAMEPNRABRAMET XBKAE
BRAREINAY ENSEXE - FRRV -
Z_THEEHREARRERTARKHE
HER ARNEREAEEFARERERE
BRI MEHRFE N HEXBKREED
B XRFACKEEHREES -

XREBTE AHEEXTERREFAK
VK BARHE KBRIOEFEXTER
MERER AEESROEXTEBNER
B-RARAKESZEAERHFEEREN
EXEm THEHREELABHIHERE R
BREMNBERARESSGEMNFRMAE
BERBITHENKRE -

REEBR T -_—FREZKTENR AL
B B R - A 3,252,493 2 A1 K
VG HEMBRERAEAEXNAARE
203.8A BT (BERA31I6EEETT) °

ERBE

Chairman’s Statement

With respect to the healthcare business, the Group continued to
utilise its associate, Natural Dailyhealth Holdings Limited (“Natural
Dailyhealth”), as a platform for developing its healthcare business.
During the year, the plant extract business operation of Natural
Dailyhealth faced challenges with its gross profit under continual
pressure, mainly due to the delay in developing new customers and
the lower-than-expected results of business expansion as a result of
the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and changes in international
markets. Natural Dailyhealth ventured into the e-commerce and
beverage fields in 2020. However, due to fierce competition in
the fields and the failure to create market competitiveness for its
products, Natural Dailyhealth failed to achieve expected results in
these two new business areas and thus suspended production of
relevant products during the year.

With respect to the cosmetic business, the skin care experience
store pilot operations failed to generate meaningful sales during
the year. After reviewing its development strategy for cosmetic
business in recent years, the Group will reduce its investment in
cosmetic business. In the future, the Group will sell its skin care
products through agency outlets, and will prudently increase its
investment in cosmetic business only when opportunities arise and
the Group has a well-defined marketing strategy in place and right
products to market.

In 2021, the Group completed the sale of all its holdings in
Starry and disposed of a total of 3,252,493 shares of Starry, with
aggregate gross proceeds of approximately RMB203.8 million
(equivalent to approximately US$31.6 million).

BA A BE B iR A PR A & Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 7
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Chairman’s Statement
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Outlook for 2022

Looking forward to 2022, the Group will continue to pursue a
diversification strategy, but will mainly focus on the development
of its pharmaceutical business.

With respect to the pharmaceutical business, the Group will,
through its self-run hospital team, promote multi-disciplinary
exchanges and sharing among dermatology, stomatology and
other departments based on the rheumatology department, and
devote more effort in joint promotion of Pafulin and Sicorten Plus
in the field of dermatology in 2022. Meanwhile, the Group will
strengthen the in-depth integration of the medical department
and the self-run hospital team, focus on and give full play to
product advantages by enhancing academic promotion, and
accelerate the progress of clinical verification of new indications
for Pafulin. The newly established semi-self-run team will focus
on the distribution and expansion of retail channels, and seek for
customers with sound resources, comprehensive sales network and
ability to expand the influence of Lansen’s products. The newly
established agent development division will strive to build up a big
presence in certain provinces and regions as practically possible
by reaching to more lower-tier hospitals and conducting targeted
agent recruitment, and cooperate with the self-run hospital team
to expand healthcare terminals coverage, so as to achieve growth
in sales to both top-tier hospitals and grass-roots hospitals. The
Group will explore more products with unique characteristics and
value for promotion and sales based on the features of its existing
products and the conditions of competing products, so as to
develop a marketable product mix.

Amid rising prices of raw materials and energy sources, the Group
will persist in prioritising cash flows, and improve efficiency in
internal management, with a view to maintaining profit growth
while achieving healthy sales growth.

With respect to research and development, the Group will continue
with its R&D efforts centring around Pafulin, including research
on the mechanism of action and new indications, and further
accelerate the gradual resumption of production of over 20
traditional Chinese medicine products and gradually launch such
products into the market. Meanwhile, the Group will pay attention
to any opportunities in the Chinese market in relation to Reference
Listed Drugs (RLD) with paragraph Il certifications, focus on merger
and acquisition opportunities arising from changes in shareholdings
of other pharmaceutical companies, and introduce generic drugs
or Chinese patent medicines already marketed in China so as to
empower the development of the Group’s pharmaceutical business.
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Chairman’s Statement

With respect to the healthcare business, the Group will continue
to utilise Natural Dailyhealth as a platform for developing its
healthcare business in 2022. Natural Dailyhealth will level up its
management and product quality and application in the process of
shifting and upgrading from a traditional plant extract factory to a
company with qualification for drug manufacturing. It will enhance
management and control over cost structure and purchasing,
continue to implement the strategy of developing high-quality
products and key customers, and actively develop medicinal and
edible plant extract products of its own, further raising the market
recognition and brand awareness of Natural Dailyhealth’s plant
extract products.

With respect to the healthcare product business, the Group will
develop and manufacture its proprietary plant extract-based health
products with core advantages and secure proper registration and
filings for such products with competent authorities in Mainland
China, so as to build a superior product matrix for future market
development and expansion of Natural Dailyhealth. The Group
will develop, cultivate and create high-quality healthcare products,
and establish a production base in Hong Kong to build a “Made
in Hong Kong” brand. The Group will launch such healthcare
products gradually to the market after successfully developing its
product matrix and brand, thereby making our due contribution to
people’s health and disease control.

Wu Zhen Tao

Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 February 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Business Review

The Group recorded a total revenue of approximately US$54.2
million for 2021 (2020: US$54.4 million), representing a decrease
of 0.4% from last year and, after excluding the effect of the
appreciation of RMB against USD, a decrease of 7% from last
year. Such decrease was mainly due to the decrease in sales
volume of the Group’s core products, Pafulin and Sicorten Plus,
as compared with last year. In response to the decline in sales
volume, the Group has adjusted its sales strategy and implemented
the new strategy step by step. Profit from operations for 2021 was
approximately US$5.6 million (2020: US$8.8 million), representing
a decrease of 36.7% from last year. Excluding the effect of the
appreciation of RMB against USD, the decrease in profit was mainly
attributable to the decrease in revenue as mentioned above which
resulted in a corresponding decrease in gross profit. Net profit for
2021 was approximately US$0.9 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 99.0% from last year, which was mainly due to the
decrease in profit from operations and the loss of approximately
US$1.1 million in relation to the shares of Zhejiang Starry
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Starry”) held by the Group recorded
in the year as compared to the gain of approximately US$84.7
million in relation to the shares of Starry held by the Group in
2020. Starry is a company incorporated in the PRC and its shares
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. The loss/gain arising
from the shares held by the Group in Starry mainly comprised
the following: (i) a loss of approximately US$1.1 million from the
disposal of the Group’s equity interest in Starry was recorded in
the year, as compared to a gain of approximately US$25.3 million
from such interests last year; (ii) a one-off net gain arising from
reclassification of the equity interest in Starry to financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) of approximately
US$45.6 million was recorded last year. Starry was an associate of
the Company before the reclassification. As disclosed in the 2020
annual report, as the Group’s shareholding in Starry was less than
5%, the director appointed to Starry by the Group retired from
the board of directors of Starry in 2020. The Group since then
had no right to exercise significant influence over Starry under the
applicable accounting standards, and therefore, Starry ceased to
be an associate and the equity interest in Starry was reclassified
as financial assets at FVTPL since 2020; and (iii) a gain on change
in fair value of financial assets relating to Starry of approximately
US$13.8 million was recorded last year, which was absent for the
year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For 2021, revenue of the pharmaceutical segment amounted to
approximately US$51.4 million (2020: approximately US$51.5
million), representing a decrease of 0.3% from 2020 and,
after excluding the effect of the appreciation of RMB against
USD, a decrease of 6.7% from 2020; gross profit amounted to
approximately US$33.7 million (2020: approximately US$35.0
million), representing a decrease of 3.5% from 2020; and
segment profit amounted to approximately US$17.6 million (2020:
approximately US$21.3 million), representing a decrease of 17.4%
from 2020. The decrease in profit of the pharmaceutical segment
was mainly due to the decreased sales volume of Pafulin and
Sicorten Plus for the year as compared with last year.

For 2021, revenue of the cosmetic products segment amounted
to approximately US$0.2 million (2020: approximately US$0.1
million), representing an increase of 90.9% from 2020; gross profit
amounted to approximately US$0.1 million (2020: approximately
US$0.05 million); and segment loss amounted to approximately
US$0.8 million (2020: approximately US$1.8 million). The decrease
in loss was mainly because the Group prudentially curtailed selling
and marketing expenses based on its assessment of sales progress
in the year.

The Group utilises Natural Dailyhealth Holdings Limited (“Natural
Dailyhealth”) as a platform for developing its healthcare business.
For 2021, revenue from the healthcare business other than Natural
Dailyhealth amounted to approximately US$2.6 million (2020:
approximately US$2.8 million), representing a decrease of 6.6%
from 2020; gross profit amounted to approximately US$0.5 million
(2020: approximately US$0.1 million), representing an increase of
301.5% from 2020; and segment profit amounted to approximately
US$0.2 million (2020: segment loss of approximately US$11,000).
The operating results of the healthcare business are reflected in the
Group's share of profit or loss of Natural Dailyhealth, an associate.
During the year, Natural Dailyhealth saw a decrease in sales of
some of its plant extract products with gross profit under pressure.
The Group’s share of loss from Natural Dailyhealth for 2021 was
approximately US$0.9 million (2020: approximately US$0.2 million).

BA A BE B iR A PR A & Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 11



EEEBNWRE DN

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Pharmaceutical segment

In 2021, the Group closely monitored the impact of the ongoing
reform of China’s healthcare system on the development of the
pharmaceutical sector. The “Outline of the 14th Five-Year Plan
for National Economic and Social Development of the People’s
Republic of China and the Long-term Objectives Through the Year
2035" released by the Chinese government in the year set out the
key development directions of China’s pharmaceutical industry in
the future. In the document, it is proposed to comprehensively
promote the construction of a Healthy China, strengthen the
construction of grass-roots healthcare workforce, accelerate
the development of a tiered diagnosis and treatment system
with active efforts in developing medical consortia, promote
the reform of the State-organised centralised procurement and
use of medicines, improve the dynamic mechanism for adjusting
the catalogue of medicines covered by medical insurance, and
promote diversified and hybrid health insurance payment methods
focused on disease-based payments. All these policies highlight the
importance of penetrating into lower-tier markets and expanding
reach to hospitals, especially for drugs for chronic diseases. In view
of the above, the Group has striven to expand its sales channels
in lower-tier markets based on the characteristics of its product
portfolio (mainly comprising drugs for chronic diseases).

In terms of marketing strategy, the Group has consolidated its sales
and marketing resources through the following measures:

(i)  Consolidating the mature market team and the emerging
market team into a self-run hospital team to be responsible
for self-run hospital expansion and promotion. Academically,
the team will promote multi-disciplinary exchanges and
sharing among dermatology, stomatology and other related
departments in respect of therapeutic areas based on
rheumatology, and devote more effort in joint promotion of
Pafulin and Sicorten Plus in the field of dermatology. Also,
the team will propose the therapeutic theory of preventive
treatment and encourage early screening for rheumatic
diseases so as to promote the use of Pafulin as a medicine for
the early treatment of rheumatic immune diseases.
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(i)  Merging the commercial distribution team with the retail
team to further strengthen the management of distributors
and drive OTC sales and coverage. The commercial division
will focus on the distribution and expansion of retail
channels, seek for quality customers with sound resources,
comprehensive sales network and ability to expand the
influence of Lansen’s products, so as to stabilise the market
prices of Pafulin and Sicorten Plus and ramp up sales. In
addition, it will also strive to achieve breakthrough in sales
of featured products and products that would resume
production by virtue of cooperation with quality customers.

(iii)  Setting up a semi-self-run team to expand both reach and
sales to grass-roots healthcare terminals. The team will extend
reach to more lower-tier hospitals and conduct targeted
agent recruitment in key provinces or regions, cooperate
with the self-run hospital team to expand hospital coverage,
and enhance the market influence of Lansen’s products in
conjunction with the marketing department.

(iv) Strengthening the in-depth integration of the medical
department and the self-run hospital division to strengthen
academic promotion through treatment guidelines, treatment
standards and expert consensus on clinical diseases in
hospitals.

In terms of cost control, the Group further strengthened cost
reduction and efficiency enhancement in 2021 by improving its
bidding and procurement system, controlling of raw material
procurement and production costs, emphasising energy saving
and emission reduction, improving processes and equipment,
rationalising personnel planning and saving management costs,
strengthening coordination of production and marketing operations
and implementing refined operation management. The Group will
set up a number of cost reduction and efficiency improvement
project teams, such as the procurement of traditional Chinese
medicine (TCM) resources, photovoltaic power generation and
power saving management, to work together to reduce the
pressure on gross profit margin caused by rising raw material and
energy prices.

BA A BE B iR A PR A & Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 13
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In terms of research and development, the Group will continue with
its R&D efforts centring around Pafulin, including research on its
mechanism of action and new indications, and on quality standards.
The policies promulgated by the Chinese government, such as the
Notice on Several Policy Measures to Accelerate the Characteristic
Development of Traditional Chinese Medicine, provide an
opportunity for the Group to gradually resume production of over
20 TCM products with independent production approvals. In 2021,
the Group performed a review on its own products by reference
to newly issued regulations and market demand, and developed
the strategy and plan for phased resumption of production and
market launch. Thanks to its introduction of TCM research and
development talent and investment in research and development,
the Group has made good progress in respect of the resumption
of production, successfully resuming production of sophora
flavescens tablets, and launching the product into the market. The
Group plans to resume the production of other products such as
notoginseng capsules, cough syrup and Ganda Pian and launch the
same into the market in 2022, providing the Group with more TCM
products to support its expansion in the hospital and retail markets.
Meanwhile, the Group will proactively identify and introduce
pharmaceuticals with potential in the market or explore merger and
acquisition opportunities arising from changes in shareholdings of
other pharmaceutical companies in the hope of strengthening the
Group's product portfolio.

Cosmetic segment

In the second half of 2020, the Group commenced pilot operation
of skin care experience stores in Shanghai, Chengdu and Beijing.
However, since these experience stores were unable to generate
meaningful sales during the year, the Group sold the experience
stores established in Shanghai and Chengdu and made a full
provision for impairment of the assets relating to the experience
store in Beijing at the end of the year. After reviewing its
development strategy for cosmetic business in recent years, the
Group plans to reduce its investment in the cosmetic business.
In the future, the Group will sell its skin care products through
agency outlets, and will prudently increase its investment in
cosmetic business only when opportunities arise and the Group has
a well-defined marketing strategy in place and right products to
market. In addition, the Group made a provision for impairment of
its investment in an associate, Tianjin Robustnique Biotechnology
Co., Limited for the year, which had an impact of approximately
US$1.8 million on net profit.
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Healthcare segment

In 2021, the Group continued to use Natural Dailyhealth as a
platform for developing its healthcare business. Due to the import
and export of materials impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic and
changes in international market of plant extracts, the plant extract
business operation was delayed in developing new customers,
especially overseas customers, and did not achieve expected results
in business expansion, which caused its gross profit to be under
continued pressure. Against this background, Natural Dailyhealth
adjusted its strategies in the hope of increasing sales through
customer development and improving gross profit margin through
efficiency enhancement and better procurement control. Natural
Dailyhealth set up a team to sort out, highlight and cultivate
competitive products, and continued to implement the strategy of
developing high-quality products and key customers, conducting
research on production technology and equipment, boosting
quality control during production process and capabilities in safety
and environmental aspects, and enhancing ability to control raw
material procurement.

In terms of finished healthcare products, Natural Dailyhealth in
2021 launched a series of tablet candy and gummy candy products
under the brand name “Natural Dailyhealth” for trial sale on major
e-commerce platforms, and also explored business expansion
through pilot cities and chain channels for “Burst Soul” energy
drinks. However, due to a weak marketing foundation, lack of
product competitiveness and fierce competition in the relevant
fields, Natural Dailyhealth was unable to build an effective business
model and the overall revenue generated from such products
was not enough to cover related expenditures. As such, Natural
Dailyhealth has decided to discontinue the sales and marketing
of finished products, shift to cultivating core strengths as its main
milestones and establish a production base in Hong Kong to build
a “Made in Hong Kong” brand. While several healthcare products
that Natural Dailyhealth has applied for registration with the
National Medical Products Administration (NMPA) are still awaiting
approvals, some of them are subject to filing procedure only
instead of registration with the NMPA as per the latest registration
and filing regulations of China. Natural Dailyhealth will only
gradually launch healthcare products into the market when it has
a sufficient number of competitive products and gains some brand
reputation.
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Financial Review

Revenue

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately US$54.2 million
(2020: approximately US$54.4 million) for the year ended 31
December 2021, representing a decrease of 0.4% over last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue from
pharmaceuticals amounted to approximately US$51.4 million
(2020: approximately US$51.5 million), representing a decrease of
0.3% over last year. Revenue from cosmetic products amounted to
approximately US$0.2 million (2020: approximately US$0.1 million),
representing an increase of 90.9% over last year. Revenue from
healthcare products amounted to approximately US$2.6 million
(2020: approximately US$2.8 million), representing a decrease of
6.6% over last year.

The Group’s self-owned specialty pharmaceutical products
(including Pafulin and Sicorten Plus), recorded a revenue of
approximately US$46.8 million (2020: approximately US$47.1
million) representing a decrease of 0.5% over last year.

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded a
gross profit of approximately US$34.4 million (2020: approximately
US$35.2 million), representing a decrease of 2.2% over last year.
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the overall gross profit
margin was 63.5% (2020: 64.7%), representing a decrease of
1.2% over last year.

The decrease in overall gross profit margin as compared to last
year was mainly because the sales proportion of pharmaceutical
products, which have higher gross profit margins, to the total
revenue decreased.
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Other income

Other income amounted to approximately US$0.7 million (2020:
approximately US$1.5 million) for the year ended 31 December
2021, representing a decrease of 52.0% over last year, which
was mainly because (i) the dividends received from financial assets
at FVTPL decreased by approximately US$0.4 million; and (ii) the
government grants received in 2021 decreased by approximately
US$0.3 million compared to last year. Government grants received
by the Group primarily came from the local government and were
partly used as recognition of the Group’s efforts in developing
high-technology pharmaceutical products.

Selling and distribution expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the selling and distribution
expenses of the Group increased by 10.8% to approximately
US$17.4 million from approximately US$15.7 million last year. The
proportion of the selling and distribution expenses of the Group to
the total revenue of the Group increased by 3.3% to 32.1% for the
year ended 31 December 2021 from 28.8% last year. The increase
was mainly because of the increase in sales and distribution
activities in 2021.

Management believed that the marketing model and academic
promotional advantages of pharmaceuticals products are the
key factors in maintaining the Group’s leading market position.
The Group endeavoured to enhance market recognition of its
pharmaceutical products and has actively launched educational
activities. By organising academic conferences across China,
doctors and users were able to have a better understanding of the
pharmacology, efficacy and benefits of these products.

Administrative expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2021, administrative expenses
amounted to approximately US$12.2 million (2020: approximately
US$11.5 million), representing an increase of 6.7% over last year.
The proportion of the administrative expenses of the Group to the
total revenue of the Group increased by 1.5% to 22.6% for the
year ended 31 December 2021 from 21.1% last year.

BA A BE B iR A PR A & Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 17
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Finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2021, finance costs of the Group
decreased by approximately US$0.5 million. This was mainly due to
the decrease of average balance of bank borrowings.

Share of post-tax result of associates

Share of post-tax result of associates for the year ended 31
December 2021 amounted to loss of approximately US$1.0 million
(2020: profit of approximately US$0.1 million).

Income tax expense

Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Ningbo Liwah")
has obtained the certification as a high-technology enterprise and
enjoys a preferential income tax rate of 15%. According to the
Enterprise Income Tax Law (the "EIT” law) of the PRC and the
implementation rules of the EIT law, except for Ningbo Liwah, the
enterprise income tax rate for the Group’s other PRC subsidiaries
was 25%.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2021 amounted to approximately US$0.9 million,
representing a decrease by approximately US$87.3 million from
approximately US$88.2 million last year.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

The Group primarily finances its working capital and other capital
requirements by net cash generated from operating activities and
resorts to external financing including bank borrowings from time
to time when the operating cash flow is insufficient to meet capital
requirements.

As at 31 December 2021, net current assets and current ratio of
the Group were approximately US$61.1 million (31 December
2020: US$138.5 million) and 2.1 (31 December 2020: 3.7)
respectively.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately US$32.5 million (31 December 2020:
approximately US$83.4 million). As at 31 December 2021, the
Group had pledged bank deposits of approximately US$15.9 million
(31 December 2020: approximately US$14.1 million) to secure
banking facilities of the Group and bank borrowings of a fellow
subsidiary.

The Group’s borrowings as at 31 December 2021 amounted to
approximately US$24.7 million (31 December 2020: approximately
US$31.4 million).

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group was in a net cash
and bank balance position.

The exposure of the Group’s transactional currency to foreign
currency risk was minimal as most of the financial assets and
liabilities held by the subsidiaries of the Group are denominated in
the respective functional currency of the subsidiaries. The Group
currently does not have any foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management would closely monitor foreign exchange
exposure and consider hedging foreign currency exposure when
necessary.

Charges on assets

As at 31 December 2021, certain bank deposits and bills receivables
in an aggregate carrying amount of approximately US$35.2 million
(31 December 2020: approximately US$25.3 million) were pledged
to secure banking facilities of the Group and bank borrowings of a
fellow subsidiary.

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’'s capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements amounted to approximately US$0.2 million (31
December 2020: approximately US$1.1 million).
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Financial guarantee issued

The Group has issued a guarantee to a bank in respect of
borrowings made by Jilin Haizi Bio-Engineering Technology
Company Limited (“Jilin Haizi"), a fellow subsidiary of the Group.
Under the guarantee, the Group is liable for a maximum of
RMB130,000,000 (equivalent to approximately US$20,390,000)
borrowings drawn by Jilin Haizi from the bank. The maximum
liability of the Group at 31 December 2021 under the guarantee
issued represents the amount drawn down by Jilin Haizi of
RMB130,000,000 (equivalent to approximately US$20,390,000) (31
December 2020: RMB130,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$19,924,000)). During the year ended 31 December 2021,
provision for financial guarantee contract of approximately US$0.5
million (31 December 2020: approximately US$0.9 million was
recognised) was reversed.

Save as mentioned above, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Material acquisitions and disposals

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had disposed
of all the remaining 3,252,493 shares in Starry via on-market sales
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, at the average price of RMB63.43
per share and resulting in a realised loss from financial assets at
FVTPL (net of transaction costs and other tax) of approximately
US$1.1 million. After the disposal, the Group does not hold any
shares in Starry.

Human resources

The Group had over 591 employees as at 31 December 2021 with
employee costs of approximately US$17.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. Staff remuneration of the Group is
determined with reference to individual performance, professional
qualifications, experience in the industry and relevant market
trends.

Salaries of employees of the Group have been maintained at a
competitive level and are reviewed annually, with close reference
to the relevant labour market and economic condition. The Group
provides career advancement training in the form of internal
courses and workshops for the staff and encourages them to
participate in training programmes related to the Group’s business.
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Introduction

To comply with the requirements set out in “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Group herein
reports the environmental, social and governance report (“ESG
Report”) for the year from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021,
to report practices, performance and development of the Group
in environmental management, corporate social responsibility and
governance in 2021 to our shareholders, employees, customers and
consumers, suppliers and other stakeholders.

The Group continues to compile the report on a consistent basis
to allow for meaningful comparisons across time. The scope of
this report has no major change from previous years. Unless
specifically stated otherwise, the scope of this report includes
data and activities from operations over which we have full
management control, including our headquarters in Hong Kong,
our manufacturing facilities in Mainland China.

Strategy and Management of Environmental,
Social and Governance Matters

The Group is gradually incorporating the sustainable development
strategy into its overall development strategy system as it continues
to grow and expand.

EMHESR

RENERERENBENEREER BBHITENMH
BES BHBRAEMSEAN REXBHNFERTEE
R-BERERR FEPFMEINEBEERAR REHEERE
ERWESGE IR - MREARRMNEEETFEER -

Our vision

Provide customers with quality products and services
to improve people’s health and quality of life, while
maximising the investment return to shareholders and
satisfying the personal development needs of the staff.

To develop and promote the distinctive products of
pharmaceutical and healthcare, and promote the
continuous and steady growth of its business through
merger and acquisition, integration, international
cooperation, and continuous innovation, and realise
the win-win value of shareholders, customers, and
employees. At the same time, to promote standardised
ESG management to ensure the health and sustainable
development of the Company.
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Board Statement

The Group considers sustainable development as a strategic
approach to create long-term business value. The Board is
responsible for ensuring the Group stays on track and in
balance with the three sustainability dimensions of economic,
environmental, and social impacts at all times. To effectively
manage the business of each operating unit, the Group integrates
sustainable development into our business strategies and our
corporate governance structure. As the highest governing
authority in the Group, the Board has ultimate responsibility for
all sustainability-related matters, focusing on providing vision and
strategic direction for our sustainability activities and formulating
corresponding business strategies and policies. The Board also
regularly reviews the Group’s sustainability risks and opportunities,
performance and progress. With the support from the functional
departments such as Pharmaceutical Department, Operation
Department, Human Resources Department and Administration
Department, the Group has completed ESG-related tasks to fulfil
the requirements of the Listing Rules. To improve the sustainability
governance structure, the Group is planning to establish a
dedicated ESG working group in 2022.

This year, the Group has enhanced stakeholder engagement
and further updated the material topics that are relevant to the
business and strengthened the disclosure of social-related key
performance indicators (KPIs) as required by the Listing Rules. We
have also conducted a climate risk assessment to identify physical
and transition risks associated with the Group to understand the
potential climate change impact on our business in this reporting
period. In addition, our employees’ health and safety are always
our top priority. The Group stays vigilant against COVID-19 by
adopting various precautionary measures to prevent the outbreak
in the workplace.
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BEHESH Participation of stakeholders

BENELEERMEMEBENE (BFEBFR  Stakeholder engagement is the process through which we stay
THESKE KREE ZTEPREEE  f  connected with all stakeholders, including the governmental
JERG - B - #® - AL HEEteAR)  and industrial regulators, investors, customers and consumers,
REHEHNBRE - RMMEE FTEEBMER  suppliers, employees, the community, industry peers, media and
ARZEERME T FEZRERKAER - the general public. We believe that the effective engagement of

REAREAFERRNEREMS -

TERBIFEHELRERES -
H0E

Stakeholders
BB TR EE K

Governmental and industrial regulators

REE

Investors

BEFEHEE
Customers and consumers

HERS
Suppliers

i
H

Employees

@
Community
e
Industry peers

REELEQR

Media and general public

all stakeholders is integral to the development of our sustainability
strategy and is also a prerequisite for our long-term sustainable
growth.

A summary of the stakeholder groups and the communication
channels are listed in the following table.

RBEMENBEELN

Methods of communication with stakeholders

BF2E8ER  FHBFEEB BITERIE
Government visits, supporting government projects and industry
collaboration

EF5g FOEE RN BB - @ 4 B
Board of directors, information disclosure, conference exchange,
ordinary visits, website, mail, telephone

B  MERLETE  BFPRY - EEEF
Academic seminars, new product launching conferences, customer
service, telephone consultations

HEMEESE  REBEKD - FEE
Supplier management system, procurement tender mechanism,
annual evaluation

ITg BIRKEKARES ZHEUEI Z2EE XBEH @RE
B TEHER

Trade union, employee congress, multi-type training, safety
management, cultural and sports activities, health examination,
paid annual leave

NEED
Community activities

ITEARE  1TEWmEBHEGSH
Trade organisations, forums, and conferences

EEIRE - BEIEEEA - HEBELH - A
Information disclosure, public opinion monitoring, media
communication mechanism, website
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EEINFEHEWITEEBUEMEE - B3 Considering stakeholders’ responses on the relevance in the
B H28TB B R £ B LEMABEAIEIE - (& K& industry’s context, we have identified 28 ESG issues related to the
EREBE WEBEMEEMR HF147%  Group's operations. 14 topics are prioritised as highly material

as shown in the materiality matrix. This report focuses on the
discussion of the Group’s management approach, policies, and
performance about the highly material topics.

IIRREEERE AMEETRHRAEE
EHREERZENEE N BRERE -

Lansen Pharmaceutical Materiality Matrix 2021
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Medium Material e ® BEREEAT »
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EIR MR R o L
Product Pricing and Accessibility ® gﬁ”g(ﬁ?&n Management Product Safety and Quality
g A ®
4 C Eb . @ tion M t ® sEERyEE R&D and Innovation
o IV R TIAE  EEL G Hazardous Waste Management O ot ® B
e} ® HTEURNEE ® EREK © EFRHREREE o
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S ® SRR ~ FL e ® EREHTRA
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mml o] Wastewater Treatment .
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e @ 3FEHE2ABIAR
;;T‘ o) P Customer Information Security and Privacy Protection
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£ General Waste Management Protection of Employees' Rights and Interests
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° C%()‘mrrnkumty Contribution and Involvement Employee Training and Development
%K
Climate Change
@ REBNIER
Protection of Animal Rights
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Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions
E HHEE
Low Relevant
& 5
Importance to Lansen
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Environment

To ensure that our approach to environmental management and
initiatives to enhance our environmental performance can be
carried out effectively and consistently throughout the Group, we
have established environmental targets on various environmental
aspects for the factory operations in 2021, including targets to
reduce greenhouse gas emissions, energy consumption and waste
management.

Policies, Laws, and Regulations Concerning the Industry

To demonstrate that we are committed to the continuous
improvement on environmental protection, the Group continues
to monitor environmental compliance with relevant laws and
regulations, which primarily include:

° Environmental Protection Law of the PRC

. Air Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC

o Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Wastes of the PRC

. Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC

. The Law on the Prevention and Control of Noise Pollution of
the PRC

o Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standards (National
standards)

. Air Pollutant Emission Standards for Boilers (National
standards)

° Contingency Plans for Environmental Emergencies (filed to
Ningbo Environmental Protection Bureau)

Law of the People’s Republic of China on Promoting Clean
Production
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Energy Consumption

The Group supports the principle of green manufacturing. By
merging the idea of low-carbon operation into our production
process, we aim to reduce energy usage for manufacturing
purposes. The Environmental Protection and Energy Management
Office has been making significant achievements in helping
the Group to minimise its energy consumption through the
implementation of energy-saving and management projects. By
strictly monitoring the energy consumption and emission data, the
Environmental Protection and Energy Management Office ensures
our resources are well utilised at the operational level and avoid the
violation of emission standards under relevant laws and regulations.

The Group has been monitoring energy consumption in our factory
operations in accordance with Renewable Energy Law of the
PRC, Energy Conservation Law of the PRC and Requirement for
Metrology Management of Energy Consumption in Organisations
Using Energy in Zhejiang Province, and reference to the targets of
relevant laws and regulations as the Group’s emission standards.

To optimise our energy resources, we have further improved our
production process and technologies. By switching to LED lighting,
installing steam timers, adopting variable frequency control for
large equipment, and implementing residual heat recovery for boiler
water, we aim to reduce our energy consumption. The Group has
also automatised the air conditioning and boiler system. It not only
minimises the negative impacts of excess heat, noise, and vibration,
but also makes significant improvements in energy conservation.
This year, the Group has been studying the feasibility of solar panel
installation, to further reduce energy consumption in our factories.
In addition, the Group has recorded the daily electricity usage to
monitor the consumption patterns on our production floors. By
collecting the daily data, we could then identify the key areas and
plan for more detailed energy-saving projects, as well as optimise
our energy resources through different manufacturing processes.

In addition, the Group has established internal systems, such as
“Administrative Regulations on Advocating Frugal Operation” and
“Incentive Measures for Scientific and Technological Progress” to
encourage employees to participate in the design of energy-saving
solutions and to continuously enhance employees’ awareness of
preserving our valuable resources.
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Climate Change

The Group understands that climate change poses a fundamental
threat to places, species, and people’s livelihoods. As an
environmentally conscious and sustainable company, we are
committed to contributing to GHG reduction and aligning our
sustainable growth with the national and international climate
change agenda.

For physical risks, we acknowledge that extreme weather caused
by climate change could affect our business in various ways. To
minimise the potential environmental impacts arising from our daily
operation and address the climate change challenges, the Group
engaged a third party to conduct a climate risk assessment which
identified the key risks associated with the Group. Heavy rainfall,
flooding and typhoon are identified as the key risks that could
possibly affect business operations.

As a result, the Group has developed our Climate Change Strategy
to prepare for downside risk and ensure our business strategies
are not only following the longer-term trajectory of climate change
but also sufficiently flexible to respond to the inevitable changes
in the business environment. As part of our Climate Change
Strategy, we have developed the “Emergency Plan for Typhoon and
Flood Prevention” and “Emergency Response Guide for Typhoon
and Flood Prevention”, which set out the emergency response
procedures to protect the safety of our staff. The Group has also
set up a Typhoon and Flood Prevention Emergency Task Force to
carry out annual training and drills for staff to strengthen their
emergency response capabilities and enhance their awareness and
knowledge of the plan.

For transition risks, to meet the national carbon neutrality target
by 2060, it is expected that the People’s Republic of China
will implement stricter policies and regulations to control GHG
emissions. Therefore, it might impact the business operation and
bring uncertainty in terms of GHG emissions. We continuously
review our approach to climate change to enhance our resilience in
response to the associated risks and opportunities.
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10,819

GHG and Air Emissions

In relation to the reduction of our carbon footprint, the Group has
been strictly complying with environmental laws such as Energy
Conservation Law of the PRC, Cleaner Production Promotion Law
of the PRC and the Work Plan for Controlling Greenhouse Gas
Emission during the 13th Five-Year Plan Period and will follow
national strategic goals on developing province-wide pilot plan
to promote photovoltaics development by studying the feasibility
of solar panel installation. In addition, the Group also references
to the targets of relevant regulations as the Group’s emission
standards.

The Group believes that a collaborative effort by all business
units is needed to reduce GHG emissions. In connection with
management, we ensure all our factories have complied with
the requirements of local environmental bureaus to continue to
enhance the GHG and volatile organic compounds (VOCs) emission
reduction measures. For example, we have switched the fuel for
the spray drying equipment from diesel to natural gas to minimise
GHG emissions. To meet the annual performance targets, internal
audits are conducted annually to improve the effectiveness of
several facilities, such as organic waste gas recovery equipment and
exhaust gas absorption devices.

Regarding waste gas treatment, we reduce the production of
industrial waste gas in raw materials storage and transportation
through centralised storage and transmission pipeline. Furthermore,
several devices have been installed to minimise waste gas
generation. In addition, the Group has engaged an independent
third party to develop a detailed annual work plan and conduct
regular audits. It effectively reduces the emission of industrial waste
gas and monitors the effectiveness of VOCs emission reduction
measures.
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Sustainable Use of Resources

The Group understands the importance of sustainable use of
natural resources and therefore tries its best to reduce resource
consumption.

Water Management

Clean water is a valuable resource, which the Group is committed
to conserving. None of our factories is operating in the
water-stressed regions. To control water pollution, we continuously
reinforce wastewater treatment by strictly following local
government requirements, carrying out measurements of required
items to meet the sewage discharge standards.

The Group has been monitoring water consumption in accordance
with the Water Law of the PRC and the Regulations of Zhejiang
Province on the Management of Water Resources to conserve
water resources and reference to the targets of relevant laws and
regulations as the Group’s water management standards.

As for sewage treatment, we have installed a dedicated sewage
treatment facility to separate rainwater and sewage. It ensures that
our wastewater management complies with the national standards.
The Group has not only assigned staff to record the daily water
usage, but also upgraded the water-saving cooling towers and
minimised water leakage during the production process to reduce
water consumption in the production lines. In addition, we reused
the purified and concentrated water to increase our water recycling
rate.
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Waste Management
The Group will explore the recycling of Chinese medicine dregs for
animal breeding, in order to improve the reuse of waste.

The Group aims to operate our factories with maximum resources
efficiency by minimising the materials used throughout the
manufacturing process and increasing the recycling rate. We keep
track of the materials that we use, aiming to minimise unnecessary
waste of materials.

Regarding waste management method, we have categorised as
domestic, industrial, and hazardous waste and engaged an external
waste treatment company to dispose of such wastes.

To alleviate the pressure of general solid wastes disposal on the
environment, the Group has also partnered with waste recycling
companies and increased the value of the recycled wastes. The
recycled solid wastes such as residue in Chinese herbal medicines
are used to produce organic fertilisers and biomass fuel. According
to the Ningbo Agriculture Bureau’s plan to promote the utilisation
of traditional Chinese medicine residue in the development of
animal husbandry, the Group is exploring solutions to convert the
residue into animal feed as well.

As the National Hazardous Waste List has been updated in
2021, which clarifies new management requirements such as
informatisation of management, standardisation of identification
signs, and standardisation of storage, the Group understands the
importance of hazardous waste management. It is critical to ensure
that we have the highest degree of safety in treating hazardous
waste, as well as complying with the local industrial solid waste
disposal legislation. We have also set up a dedicated warehouse to
manage the hazardous waste issues from production, transportation,
storage, handling, and filing. We have renovated the warehouse to
prevent the leakage of hazardous wastes into the river.
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Raw materials used by the Group for production primarily include
Chinese herbal medicines and various extracts. During the
extraction process, it may cause a minor impact on the environment
and natural resources. The Group actively fulfils its social
responsibilities and always aims to maintain the balance between
business development and environmental protection. We only
source the raw materials responsibly to minimise environmental
impacts. In addition, the Group has set up an assessment standard
to avoid the excessive use of packaging materials.
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Our Employees

Corporate Culture

The Group aims to continue its business in prescription drugs
for autoimmune rheumatic diseases and become the number
one brand for basic medication in this field. At the same time,
we are actively expanding into the fields of cosmetic products,
healthcare products, and precision medication, striving to become
an outstanding diversified company in the health industry.
Professionalism, internationalisation, continuous innovation, and
vitality are our corporate culture and hope to bring happiness and
healthier life to our customers. The Group encourages teamwork,
clearly defines individual obligations, builds up responsibility, and
upholds pragmatic, open, and shared values. We hope to provide
high-quality products for customers, create high-quality life for
employees, achieve high-quality investment for shareholders and
contribute to society with a high-quality corporate responsibility.
The Group inherits and introduces innovations in traditional
medicine theory to develop and lead the future healthcare business.

Employee Guidelines

On the principle of respect and fairness, the Group is committed to
creating a harmonious and healthy working environment, and a fair
and developmental workplace atmosphere. The above principles
are followed in the provision of employment opportunities, salaries,
training, performance evaluation, promotion, etc. The Group has
never discriminated on the grounds of gender, age, ethnicity,
religion, culture, and educational background. The Group is
committed to equal opportunities for all employees, protecting
their legitimate rights. On the other hand, our Group’s employment
policy strictly adheres to current laws and regulations regarding
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, break time, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
child labour, forced labour, and other benefits.

Labour contracts of the Group are based on the Labour Law
promulgated by the State and relevant local labour laws and
regulations. Contracts are legally binding as soon as they are
signed. The staff recruitment process of the Group strictly complies
with relevant laws and regulations of the PRC. The laws and
regulations that the Group mainly abides by include:

. The Labour Law of the PRC

The Labour Contract Law of the PRC

The Law of the PRC on the Protection of Minors
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° Provisions on the Prohibition against the Use of Child Labour
(State Council Order No. 364)

° Special Provisions on Labour Protection of Female Workers in
Zhejiang Province

In 2021, the Group did not violate any of the above laws and
regulations.

Employment Policy

The Group attracts outstanding talents to join by the “Recruitment
Management System” and provides various career development
opportunities for internal staff, to contribute to the development
of the Group. We pay attention to and understand the career
development and specialities of each employee, assign the most
suitable talents to appropriate positions, and care for them to
achieve the goal of joint development.

We implement scientific performance and development
management for every employee. We effectively link the strategic
objectives of the Group with individual and team objectives,
manage quantitatively and ensure the personal development and
growth of employees while achieving the performance target.

The Group makes annual salary adjustments for employees based
on comprehensive performance, current salary, market salary
level, business environment, and inflation rate to ensure that
the Company’s overall compensation remains competitive in the
market. By the provisions of the State, the Group pays endowment
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance, and housing
provident fund for employees. We sign written labour contracts
with all employees regardless of nationality, religious belief and
gender.

The Group is dedicated to recruiting, motivating and retaining
outstanding employees. Our organisational development and
human capital management focus on providing employees with a
comprehensive training system, reasonable performance evaluation
and formulating scientific career development channels while
paying attention to employee recognition and incentives. Therefore,
employees can be motivated to learn and improve over time, and
thus achieve the long-term goal of enhancing employees’ abilities.

Every little step we have made owes greatly to the contribution of
our employees. Therefore, as the business grows, we would also
like to share our fruitful success with them and make sure we are
doing it fairly and reasonably.
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REWRARE S HIESEE Workforce by Age Group

Working Hours

To protect employees’ rights to work and rest and achieve work-life
balance, working hours for all employees comply with the Labour
Law of the PRC and the Labour Contract Law of the PRC. The
working hours of employees in the administrative and management
functions are 40 hours per week. Whereas workers at production
sites work in shifts and salespeople follow the flexible working hour
system. In any case, where overtime working is required, overtime
payment will be awarded to employees under the relevant labour
laws and regulations. Furthermore, rest days and public holidays
are consistent with the Labour Law of the PRC.

Staff Structure

The Group embraces diversity. We hire employees of different
genders, ages, skills, educational background, working experience,
and other qualities to achieve optimum structure and balance.
When hiring talent, we follow the principle of “fairness, equality,
competition, and merit” from the perspective of the “Recruitment
Management System” to avoid discrimination based on religion,
race, or gender.

RERERESHIESEH Workforce by Employment Type
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Staff Health and Safety

Employees are crucial to the Group. Hence, we always put the
health and safety of employees in the first place. We protect our
employees using the principle of “Safety in Production” and are
dedicated to providing a safe, healthy, and guaranteed working
environment. Our production workshops are all equipped with dust
and noise cancellation, and dehumidification machines. Besides,
special equipment that might cause injuries would only be used
by authorised personnel, and periodic maintenance and annual
check-up are being conducted. The Group also placed warning
signs and identification labels for dangerous goods at eye-catching
places and formulated contingency plans for workplaces where
fatal accidents may occur. Additionally, we also provide appliances
for protection to workers at production sites to minimise the risk of
injury. Meanwhile, we hold annual fire drills with fire evacuation,
self-rescue, first aid, escape, etc. to strengthen employees’ safety
and self-protection awareness to avoid accidents.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, our Group has already followed
the requirements and guidance on the prevention and control
of COVID diseases in Ningbo. By combining with the actual
operational situation of the Group, we have formulated a
temporary control measure for employees to follow to ensure their
safety.

We have also established a “Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings
Leading Group for Novel Coronavirus Prevention and Control”
and have formulated the following important epidemic control
measures:

. Arrange for some of the employees to work from home

o Require employees to check their temperatures, wear masks,
and present their Health Code and Travel Card

o Strengthen disinfection and canteen hygiene management
within the company

o Keep in close contact with the local government and keep
abreast of the latest news
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The Group established Employee Health Management Procedures
and the Hygiene and Personal Health Condition Management
Procedures. We organise annual general health examinations for
employees. For those who are engaged in hazardous occupations,
we strictly follow the Law of the PRC on the Prevention of
Occupational Diseases and relevant labour laws and reduce the
incidence rate of occupational diseases through regular health
checks and recuperation. This year, a total of 81 employees have
completed the occupational disease health check and evaluation
based on the results on whether the employees meet the job
requirements and make reasonable job transfer arrangements for
employees who may have potential risks on the job.

The Group is devoted to providing a warm and comfortable office
environment for our employees. We do our best to improve the
working environment and facilities; We encourage a smoke-free
office, which forbids the employees to smoke in the factory area.
Besides, we equipped the workplaces with respective canteens that
provide a variety of nutritional meals.

Rights and Benefits of Employees

While creating economic benefits, we also actively protect
employees’ rights and enhance their welfare to increase their
sense of belonging and cohesiveness. Both the Group and the
labour union provide rich and heart-warming gifts on traditional
festivals, sending holiday care and blessings to every employee.
All employees enjoy paid leaves. Other than statutory holidays,
bonuses, allowances, subsidies, and welfare are also given to all
employees according to relevant laws and regulations. In addition
to basic medical insurance for all employees, we also provide
commercial insurance for accidental disability, public transportation
etc. and unionised mutual aid hospitalisation insurance for critical
illness and health insurance for female employees. In addition, we
also provide a certain proportion of medical expense reimbursement
to reduce employees’ financial burden. During the reporting period,
our Group visited employees who were suffering from illness with
consolation money and items.

To protect the legitimate rights and interests of all employees and
provide an open communication channel, we have established
a labour union and a workers’ representative assembly by the
laws. Additionally, through the office automation platform (the
“OA Platform”), corporate email, internal publication, billboard,
questionnaire, etc., we can deliver the latest news to our
employees and actively listen to their opinions and suggestions. We
would also respond and take corresponding improvement measures
to issues that are highly concerning to protect employees’ interests.
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To enrich the amateur life of employees, the Group has established
badminton associations, football associations, and basketball
associations and provided basketball courts, badminton halls, and
other sports venues and entertainment facilities for employees.
Besides, we also organise amateur team competitions with sister
companies, business partners, and communities irregularly.
Moreover, we publish our internal monthly magazine, “New
Lansen” and operate a Wechat public account called “Gather at
Lansen” to enrich employees’ cultural life. During the reporting
period, our Group organised staff sports day, basketball
competitions, badminton competitions, hiking, African drum and
festival celebrations, etc. to help our employees release their stress
and, at the same time, provide an opportunity for self-expression
and communication.

Staff Training and Development

The Group prioritises talent development and we aim to provide
a common platform for the development of the organisation and
our employees. This year, the Group continued to carry forward
an all-rounded training system and has achieved a satisfactory
result. Given the pandemic, the Group has put great efforts into
improving its online training system for new staff in 2021 to help
them get familiar with business operations and product-related
knowledge and assessments were set up afterwards to ensure
a quality learning outcome. In addition to online training,
face-to-face internal training for new staff was held with a total of
35 participants. It includes a series of onboarding training, product
knowledge, and medical pathological analysis learning.

We organised a 4-day training course for our new staff. The
course included internal rules and regulation training, office system
application, external training courses, and factory visit. Through the
training courses conducted by each department, new employees
had the opportunity to understand the daily operation of our
Group, thus integrate more quickly into the new environment.

We pay attention to employees’ product-related knowledge and
training in medical information knowledge. Hence, we arranged a
sharing session on product-related knowledge and invited medical
experts to give a talk on the latest medical knowledge to help
employees master the latest medical information and customer
management skills through various tools and practices.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group views supplier selection as one of our core
responsibilities. We actively engage with suppliers, distributors,
and customers to develop close collaborations. In order to prevent
procurement risks, reduce operation cost and enhance the quality
of our products, we have established an effective Supply Chain
Management System for procurement, storage, logistics, and sales
and dispatching processes. With an effective management system
in place, our reputation and brand image can be further enhanced
which will benefit our business development in the long run.

Supply Chain Management System

The Group operates across the scopes of pharmaceuticals and
medical devices with all valid business licences and permits granted
by relevant government regulatory authorities. To improve overall
operational efficiency in the supply chain and reinforce the
standardisation of its management system, designated procedures
are established for different products based on their sales
expectations, while the Quality Control Department monitors the
operations of suppliers, distributors, and customers.

The Group strictly follows all relevant guidelines in terms of
Supply Chain Management and continuously improves the existing
system. We have formulated “Suppliers and Products Selection and
Management System”, “Newly operated Suppliers Selection and
Management System”, “New Product Selection and Management
System”, “Procurement Management System”, and “Return and
Exchange Management System” in compliance with all related laws
and regulations, which include:

° Drug Administration Law of the PRC

o Good Manufacture Practice of Medical Products

° Pharmacopoeia of the PRC

o Good Supply Practice for Pharmaceutical Products

o Regulation on the Supervision and Administration of Medical
Devices

° Good Supply Practice for Medical Devices
° Food Safety Law of the PRC

° Regulation on the Supervision and Administration of
Cosmetics
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Compliance Checking System of Suppliers

For the selection of a new supplier, the Supply Chain Management
Department and Quality Control Department are responsible for
the overall qualification reviewing of the supplier. Once approved,
the new supplier will be categorised as newly cooperated suppliers
and subsequent purchases will be arranged by the Supply Chain
Management Department. Meanwhile, the validity period of their
licences will be monitored by our Good Manufacturing Practices in
drug production (GMP)/Good Supply Practices in drug distribution
(GSP) information management system. Our system alerts related
personnel when the licence gets closer to its expiry date. The
licences will be frozen if the suppliers have not received a licence
renewal. Procurement requests will be not processed until the
required information is updated. During the selection of suppliers,
in scenarios where the conditions are the same, we will prioritise
suppliers who adopt sustainable products and services in their
operations while it will also be a crucial criterion during the annual
supplier assessment.

In terms of existing suppliers, the Quality Control Department
and the Supply Chain Management Department conduct supplier
quality reviews at least once a year, establish supplier quality
review files, and determine the retention or cancellation of
supplier qualifications in accordance with the “Standard Operating
Procedures for Supplier Selection and Evaluation”, in order to
compile the “Qualified Suppliers List” and constantly improve it
based on the current situation.

Apart from suppliers, an annual quality appraisal is conducted on
all products the Group has. To ensure the quality and safety of
our products, we pay close attention to the quality requirements
released by the national regulatory department. Meanwhile, we
have signed “Quality Assurance Agreement” with pharmaceutical
suppliers, other related product suppliers as well as service
companies. We also conduct an annual assessment on the quality
control systems of our suppliers, distributors, and customers for
them to understand our requirements of product quality and their
responsibilities in case of any quality incidents. For the suppliers
who cannot pass the assessment or have been identified with
serious quality issues in their production, prompt action will be
taken including suspending the supply and delivery to downstream
customers as well as freezing their qualification of procurement
and supply in the system.
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To ensure a smooth operation of our Supply Chain Management
System, the Group guarantees no fewer than two qualified
suppliers to ensure a stable supply of raw materials in the case of
an emergency. Regarding the procurement of key materials, we
adopt centralised bidding to manage the suppliers hierarchically
and ensure the quality has met the standards and requirements
of the Group. This allows us to allocate resources evenly and
reasonably as well as to optimise the operational efficiency in the
supply chain. To guarantee the efficient operation of the Supplier
Chain Management System, the Group enhanced the internal
audit of its supplier chain management in 2020 and addressed the
identified defects and omissions in daily management based on the
audit report. Although the Group has yet set up requirements or
mechanisms to identify environmental and social risks in our supply
chain, we proactively consider adopting relevant measures soon. To
monitor the compliance of our suppliers with national regulations
regarding environmental and social risks, we will consider
reinforcing a stricter assessment of our suppliers in terms of their
environmental and social performance where relevant terms will be
added into the supplier agreement. Meanwhile, we are planning
to conduct irregular inspections of our key suppliers to ensure that
they meet the Group’s requirements and expectations at all times.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group procured raw materials,
auxiliary materials, packaging materials and finished products from
110 suppliers with the geographical distribution as shown in the
table below. Among them, 98 were raw materials suppliers, 3
were pharmaceutical suppliers, 2 were cosmetic suppliers, 5 were
food and medical store suppliers and 2 were logistics providers. All
suppliers mentioned above have passed our supplier and product
qualification assessment and supplier quality management system
appraisal.

R ER S HAERHE
Number of suppliers by geographical location

@ EHR
East China
Frh
Central China
o Fit

Northeast China

£ Sl
South China North China
Dii)=] [iiiple

Southwest China Northwest China

® B - B R

Taiwan, Hong Kong and Macau
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Product Quality

The Group strives to provide high-quality and reliable products and
services for our customers. Through continuously enhancing our
Quality Management System, we devote our efforts to ensure the
quality and safety of our products and to fulfilling our corporate
responsibility through the aspects of drug safety and responsible
marketing.

Policies, Laws, and Regulations Concerning the Industry

The Group mainly produces products including pharmaceutical
products, medical devices, cosmetic products, etc. The Group
strictly complies with applicable laws and regulations of the PRC
regarding product safety during our operation, which mainly
includes:

° Drug Administration Law of the PRC

° Rules for Implementation of Drug Administration Law of the
PRC

o Law of the PRC on Product Quality

. Good Manufacture Practice of Medical Products (China Food
and Drug Administration)

° Good Pharmacovigilance Practice
o Good Supply Practice for Pharmaceutical Products

° Regulations on the Supervision and Administration of Medical
Devices

o Good Supply Practice for Medical Devices

To safeguard the rights of our customers and enhance our
brand image, the Group advertise our products responsibly while
complying with all laws relating to products advertisement,
including the Drug Administration Law of the PRC, Advertisement
Law of the PRC, Good Supply Practice for Pharmaceutical Products,
Regulations on the Supervision and Administration of Medical
Devices, Good Supply Practice for Medical Devices, etc. to ensure
the legality of advertising content. We also strictly control the
quality of products and services to prevent any situations of illegal
advertising.
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REER
Certification Category

Bz E R E B HI R SR B (GMP)

Good Manufacturing Practices in drug production (GMP)

B E G E B B AR E R 8 (KGMP)
Korea Good Manufacturing Practice (KGMP)

Quality Management System

The Group highly values the quality and safety of its products.
We adhere to the principles of producing medicine cautiously to
provide safe and effective products for our customers. We strictly
comply with relevant laws and regulations, appoint relevant
personnel for quality control, and equip sufficient facilities and
computer systems to build a comprehensive management system.
To strengthen the quality management, we have clearly stated
the responsibility, requirements, and standard procedures of every
process of the product life cycle, which includes procurement,
product receiving, acceptance check, storage, retailing,
dispatchment, transportation and follow-up customer service.

The Group has always taken "quality-oriented, standardisation
first, continuous improvement, customer satisfaction” as its
quality approach. To ensure product stability throughout the
whole product life cycle, the Group established a comprehensive
Quality Risk Management System. We conduct quality risk
assessment throughout every stage including product research
and development, supplier selection, procurement process control,
acceptance and storage management, production, inspection,
and sales process. Quality control personnel have the discretion to
remove unqualified products identified during the manufacturing
process. It ensures our products are of good quality and align
with industrial standards. In 2021, the qualified rate of external
sampling of the Group’s products was 100%. Apart from this, the
Group conducts regular internal assessments and risk assessments
of the quality control system, to identify potential quality risks and
propose improvement plans. Meanwhile, we have established an
emergency plan in response to quality safety incidents.

The Group has obtained various international certifications to
enhance our Quality Management System, to align with global
standards and developments. This year, the Group has obtained the
following certifications:

HEHE
Issuing Agency

BREnEREEERER
China Food and Drug Administration

FERMEMLZEE
Ministry of Food and Drug Safety
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Quality Control in Operation

The Group has implemented a GMP management model for raw
material procurement, supplier management, and product sales,
and has adopted a strict inspection and acceptance system for the
processes of procurement, delivery and storage of raw materials.
Regular supplier audit is performed to ensure the reliability of the
source of raw materials. To ensure products fully meet the quality
requirements, the production process strictly abides by the GMP
standard management, and internal control standard management
is implemented. Meanwhile, the Group has formulated relevant
product recall procedures to make sure the products that have
safety defects and may endanger or adversely impact the users’
health can be recalled promptly to safeguard customers’ safety in
consuming our products. No recall due to product quality issues
has occurred in 2021.

Enquiry and Complaint Handling Concerning Product Quality
The Quality Management Department of the Group is responsible
for enquiries and complaints handling regarding product quality.
Consumers or downstream customers can make inquiries or
complaints by contacting the sales personnel or customer service.
The Quality Management Department will investigate and verify
the causes before getting back to the customers. In terms of
production issues, the Quality Management Department will
forward the issues to suppliers or manufacturing enterprises for
their inspection and reply. Preventive and follow-up measures will
be formulated for repetitive issues. This year, 21 complaints were
filed regarding products and service quality and the handling rate
was 100%.

Intellectual Property Rights Protection

The Group sees intellectual property as an important asset of
our Company. We are determined to protect all knowledge and
interests relating to the Group. To ensure that our intellectual
properties are being safely protected, we have formed the
Intellectual Property Management System according to the
Patent Law of the PRC. All the pharmaceutical products we
produce and medical devices are with electronic monitoring
codes and anti-tampering codes for traceability which can be
used to track the products and prevent counterfeit products from
using the Company’s brand. Meanwhile, we actively register
our trademarks and brands for our new products to protect the
interests of stakeholders about the products. Every year, we apply
for new patents. Up to date, we have an impressive amount of
85 registered trademarks, 42 valid patented inventions and 58
patented authorisations. Through raising awareness of intellectual
property rights, the Group strongly encourages and promotes
innovation. This strengthens our competitiveness in the market and
achieves sustainable development in the long term.
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Consumer Privacy Protection

The Group recognises the importance of privacy protection to
our brand image as well as to our customers. We constantly
improve our Information Safety Management System to ensure
the contacts, addresses, and other personal information of our
customers are being handled carefully. To show our commitment
to securing customer information, we have signed agreements
with all our partners and clients which have listed our privacy
policies. Meanwhile, our Information and Technology Department
is responsible for monitoring and managing the information of the
Group and customers to ensure the Group strictly complies with
the relevant laws and regulations. We have also upgraded the
antivirus software in our computer system and conducted regular
data backup. Besides, all employees who have access to sensitive
data and information are required to attend training on information
safety organised by the Information and Technology Department.
We strive to protect the sensitive data and information of our
customers and prevent illegal or unauthorised leakage.

Anti-Corruption

The Group upholds a high standard of business ethics and integrity
and commits to preventing bribes, commissions, rebates, illegal
political donations or other improper payments in any form.
We maintain zero-tolerance in handling all relevant situations.
All employees are required to avoid conflicts of interest by not
conducting any illegal financial activities or other illegal activites.
Employees must not abuse the Group's financial resources, assets,
or influence as it could tarnish the Group's reputation. Business
entertainment shall be legal, reasonable and in compliance with
the codes for customers and relevant departments. Any person
suspected of a crime to relevant departments will be reported by
the Group promptly.

The Board has formed an Internal Audit Committee that is
fully responsible for supervising the internal audit of the Group
independently. An Internal Audit Department has also been
established to monitor the reconciliation of books of accounts,
the safety of assets, economic benefits as well as other related
economic activities and provides risk alerts from the perspective
of risk control, to effectively control and lower operational risks.
Corruption is considered as one of the operational risks. By
developing an Internal Supervision System, the Group ensures
the integrity and discipline of the staff and prevents them from
participating in unlawful acts. To stamp out corruption and illegal
activities which may have potential damages to the interests of
the Group, we strictly follow investigation guidelines to handle
violations of discipline and regulations and take corresponding
follow-up actions.
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1+ 2 8 E Social Data

T —HFRTAH

Number of volunteers in 2021
T ERTIRBEH
Number of voluntary hours in 2021

“ECFRIRPRHE

In this reporting period, we not only conducted regular inspections
on whether employees have fulfilled the Group’s anti-corruption
principles and regulations to ensure they complied with corporate
ethical standards, but also provided compliance training on product
knowledge and anti-bribery for 72 managerial staff and regional
managers to prevent unlawful business operations.

Due to our effective system of risk management and anti-corruption
policy, no major defects were identified during the reporting
period.

Social Welfare

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group actively contributes
to the communities in which it operates in various ways. As our
business continues to grow, our obligation becomes more critical.
Apart from participating in charity work as an obligation, we also
think it is a crucial stage of corporate development by all means.
The Group has achieved a high level of integration of its operations
with its social duties, and it actively promotes social welfare with
the goal of “Taking Responsibility.” We encourage our staff to
join us in caring for the community. We focus our community
investment in two major areas, including community care and
environmental protection.

Since its establishment, the Group has set up scholarship
foundations and has been actively engaged in the “City Sunshine”
(A% 5 3¢ ) activities to support the living, learning, and healthcare
expenses of the children of migrant workers. In July 2021, Haishu,
Ningbo was badly hit by hit by tropical cyclones. As a result, the
Group donated an amount of RMB100,000 to support the recovery
of the local community.

45

420/)NEF hours

Number of volunteer leave days granted in 2021 28K days
—E - AEREBT AR M EMRERA
Number of partnering NGOs and academic institutes in 2021 53

—E-FERBRRLEVEDHE

Number of monetary donations and in-kind sponsorships in 2021
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Performance Data Summary

BRIRRYE
Environmental performance

E —Bo2F| —B--F
Unit 2020 2021
BE R A
Energy consumption
BN T R BF 5,865,569 6,197,932
Electricity kWh
RKAR IZAEST K 123,241 155,268
Natural gas Nm’
xR i 19,739 27,318
Steam Tonnes
L5 FH 43,373 35,798
Diesel Litre
i vai 29,557 23,375
Gasoline Litre
BEEERARE il >.081 >/586
Total direct energy consumption' GJ
Mg RERE HE 77,864 100,849
Total indirect energy consumption GJ
BIRBES = 82,945 106,735
Total energy consumption GJ
EE TN ] S/ TER 1.5 2.0
Energy intensity per revenue GJ/US$'000
BER K
Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions
ERAEREIER(EBE)? M| ILiE = 450 485
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) tonnes CO,e
MRk (EE2)’ W-E i E S 8,443 10,334
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2)° tonnes CO,e
BRERBEERSE (BE1R2) W —E e 2 8,893 10,819
Total GHG emissions (Scopes 1 and 2) tonnes CO,e
FEMNBARERBIENRE WS tmEE,TET 0.16 0.20
GHG emissions per revenue tonnes C0,e/US$'000
1 ARFERAR - EH L /ThNEEERRATRE 1 Energy conversion factors used for natural gas, diesel and gasoline are from
CDP #iTsi A : AR B E R AR EE - CDP Technical Note: Conversion of fuel data to MWh.
2 BEEREAEREHN (BEN) BRBER (BEXA 2 Direct GHG emission (Scope 1) is generated from fuel consumption, including

o SOm - JUR) FTES - RIBA TR ERBHENE
ERGIERETHE -

3 MELAEREHER(BE) BB N REAELE 4
BENER-_Z-——_FHhERFEEM - S/HRIER
ErAiRfte e A FAH 8 - MoMNER A2 ER
MACGHRBEERABNEMGE -

natural gas, diesel and gasoline. The calculation is based on Guidelines on

Provincial Greenhouse Gas Emission Inventory.
3 Indirect GHG emission (Scope 2) is generated from electricity and steam. The
calculation of electricity purchased is based on emission factor provided in CO,

emission factor for China’s Regional Power grids in 2012 while the calculation

of steam purchased is reference from Ningbo Jiufeng Themal Power Company

Limited.
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BRIRKRB
Environmental performance

B —EBEC-EF| ZEB--—F
Unit 2020 2021
KERERE
Water management
HBFEKE MR 73,670 78,647
Total water consumption tonnes
BEMWAFEKE W, FEIT 1.35 1.45
Water consumption per revenue tonnes/US$'000
REKBER AR E A 61,386 62,958
Total wastewater discharge tonnes
T E LA BEKEER Mg, FEIT 1.1 1.2
Wastewater discharge per revenue tonnes/US$'000
BEBEZEN
Non-hazardous waste
BEFEYELLEE B 5,165 4,763
Total non-hazardous waste generation® tonnes
BEUWAREEEYD Mg, FETT 0.095 0.088
Non-hazardous waste per revenue tonnes/US$'000
EIEEEY
Hazardous waste
EREEYBEE’ 7 37 38
Total hazardous waste’ tonnes
BEMBABRERY Mg, FEIT 0.00068 0.00070
Hazardous waste per revenue tonnes/US$'000
GRS
Packaging materials
BEMEEE 73 473 652
Total packaging materials® tonnes
BEMNRABREMHBE WE, FEIT 0.0087 0.0120
Total packaging materials per revenue tonnes/US$'000

4 BEBEEVRE-—REEY 5 BERREL 4 Non-hazardous waste includes general waste, solid dreg waste, liquid dreg
VEDE waste and biochemical sludge

5 fEREEMBEALE  SAMm MR - EE-® S5 Hazardous waste includes reagent bottles, reagents, activated carbon, resin,
BB wasted medicine, etc.

6 BEMHBBERE EQVa BEEeE -EQf- 6 Packaging materials includes carton, product colour box, composite film,
HAES product bottle, manual, etc.

50 Annual Report 2021 4 £



RRE -HERERERS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HERR
Social performance
B —ECEF —E-—F
Unit 2020 2021
ETHR
Employee profile’
BEAH A 624 591
Total workforce no. of people
REREDNEEEH
Total workforce by gender
Eay A 356 318
Male no. of people
e AR 268 273
Female no. of people
REREEBINESLH
Total workforce by employment type
e AB 621 591
Full-time no. of people
e sk AEL 3 0
Part-time no. of people
RERANEBINESRE
Total workforce by age group
30BR A T AE 173 137
30 or under no. of people
31£2405% AR 252 252
31-40 no. of people
412505% ABL 148 142
41 -50 no. of people
512605% A# 46 55
51 -60 no. of people
607% LA = AEL 5 5
Above 60 no. of people
REBEESNESRY
Total workforce by geographic region
B A# 5 5
Hong Kong no. of people
B A 619 586
Mainland China no. of people

7 PRAR_FT_TEF+_A=+—RHR=ZZT=—F

TZA=+—REHESRZIR

Workforce data recorded as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021

respectively
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HEXRR
Social performance

B —ECEF —E-—F
Unit 2020 2021
1B 8% & =°
Employee turnover®
BERKE % 15.9 26.6
Employee turnover rate
BREBEIHNEEREE
Employee turnover rate by gender
B % 17.4 32.4
Male
e % 13.8 19.8
Female
BRERARNBINEEREKR
Employee turnover rate by age group
308% kA T % 17.3 44.5
30 or under
31524057 % 19.1 27.4
31-40
41&505% % 9.5 11.3
41 -50
512605 % 8.7 14.6
51 -60
6075 LA % 60.0 60.0
Above 60
BB INEERAER
Employee turnover rate by geographical region
B % 0.0 0.0
Hong Kong
A % 16.0 26.8
Mainland China

8 MARER(RADLE) = EERNNEERKBE, 8 Turnover rate (in percentage) = Total number of turnover in the category/Total
ZHERIMIE B EE X 100% number of employees in the category x 100%
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HEER
Social performance
B —EZRF —B-—F
Unit 2020 2021
BEREHEZE
Occupational health and safety
HIT @A ABL 0 0
Total number of work-related fatalities’ no. of people
PSR T 7 % 0.0 0.0
Work-related fatalities rate
HIGELXTIIERE H 20 211
Lost days due to work injury Days
2R B AE T
Development and training
BRURESNEEREETFH IR
Average training hours per employee by gender*"
B N 9.7 3.1
Male Hours
7 4% AN 9.1 3.1
Female Hours
REEERESNERES LI g
Average training hours per employee by employee category™*"
=REEE INEE 26.8 5.3
Senior Management Hours
PREERE N 8.5 4.9
Middle Management Hours
—REE /NBE 9.1 2.6
General Employee Hours

9 RECBE-NFEENEIRTHABRLERE 9

10 EBREEFHRIEH = AERRNNEIERE 10

ZHERIR BB A

11 ZEEIRYIREE R "

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in 2019 was 0

category / Total workforce in the category
Full year total training hours was recorded

A4 BB AR AR Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

Average number of training hours per employee = Total training hours in the
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HERR
Social performance
B —ECEF —E-—F
Unit 2020 2021
e EE
Supply chain management
REBEEONHEREE
Number of suppliers by geographical location
a1 EBRAP] = 1 1
Taiwan, Hong Kong and Macau Number
ER % 58 80
East China Number
#E % 7 4
South China Number
ey % M ?
North China Number
o % 12 11
Central China Number
i % 3 3
Southwest China Number
[iif14 # 4 1
Northwest China Number
Rk % 1 1
Northeast China Number
EmEE
Product responsibility
PEICEXEMERTRLERERREIEHT | % 0 0
AREHAD
Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons
Em & RTE R IR EE | 18 21
Number of products and services related Number
complaints
RES
Anti-corruption
REJRBRNHETAXEEERLVEEEN | 0 0
BSFARGHEE RFAER Number
Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases
HERE
Community investment
PRES AR 66,756 100,000
Money contributed RMB
BEIRBEHR N 60 420
Volunteering hours contributed Hours
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HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Index

%
TEER EEH - —REBERBEERER 288 B 'R
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Reference/Remarks Page
ARER
A. Environmental
B EA1BERY
Aspect A1 Emission
— R R 25
General Disclosure Environment
MSER | EE R EUR REBEBERE 30, 49
FE1ZAT The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Performance Data Summary
KPI A1.1
BgEN |RERELENRE UEFE) R(MER)ZE - REHBERE 30, 49
EIEAT.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where | Performance Data Summary
KPI A1.2 appropriate, intensity.
BSRE N FTEARREEYAS (UMAE) L (ER)BE - REHSEBERE 32-33, 50
EIEAT.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where |Performance Data Summary
KPI'A1.3 appropriate, intensity.
MREN |MEERSEEDESE (UEAE)R(WER)BE - RINBIBRE 32-33, 50
FE1ZA1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Performance Data Summary
KPI A1.4 where appropriate, intensity.
MREN |[HAFAIUNEERERERAEIELEEMKBRNST |RE 30
FEIZEATS B o Environment
KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to

achieve them.
MREN |HARBEEEREEEEMNTE  REMAFIZAR |RE 32-33
BIZAE |EEERAEIELEEMEIA TR - Environment
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes

are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set

and steps taken to achieve them.
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TERER EFEH  —REBERBEERER BEER =N
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Reference/Remarks Page
BEA2ERE A
Aspect A2 Use of Resources
— R FE RIR 32-33
General Disclosure Environment
BRER |RERESWNEEL SMEELER(NE  RIOh) B | KREERE 27-28, 49
BiEA21 | BEUTETFERAE)REFE - Performance Data Summary
KPI' A2.1 Directed and/or indirect energy consumption (e.g.

electricity, gas, or oil) by type in total (kWh in '000s) and

intensity.
BREN |BRKEREE - RIRBBERE 31,50
FEIEA2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Performance Data Summary
KPI A2.2
MSRENR |[HAFMIUNERERAMREERABEINESEAFEME |RE 26
B/IZA2.3 | EREY D EE o Environment
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and

steps taken to achieve them.
BSREN | HASKEUER KR LRI AERIEE - AR AK [RE 31
BIZA24 | WMEEHERAEIELBEEMEEHLR - Environment
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing

water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set

and steps taken to achieve them.
BRER |HEAmASEMHNEE (UHEE) R (WNER) 8% | RREERE 33
BIRA2S5 | EBLEE- Performance Data Summary
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in

tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit

produced.
BEASRERRXARER
Aspect A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
— MR R R 31-33
General Disclosure Environment
BEEN |[HAEBEZHHREIRAERNEAZERDERNE |RE 31-33
FE1ZA3.T BEBAYENTE - Environment
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the

environment and natural resources and the actions taken

to manage them.
EHAMRIREL
Aspect A4 Climate Change
— M WE B 29-30
General Disclosure Environment
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TEHER -EEH —REERBREEXER BEEH fHE BR
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Reference/Remarks Page
FREN |HACDKRAREUETAELEZENEARKEBSE |RER 29-30
FEIRAL1 " REHTE - Environment
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which

have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer,

and the actions taken to manage them.

B.AE

B. Social

EEREIER

Employment and Labour Practices

fE EB1{&E &

Aspect B1 Employment

— PRI EE ©EEXIE 34-37
General Disclosure Corporate Culture

BEEN  |RER - EREAR  FREFIRMERESNESRE - |KRABEBERZE 36, 51
FE1ZB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group |Performance Data Summary

KPI B1.1 and geographical region.

MgEN | RUR FRANRMESSHNESRKLE - RIRBIBERHE 37,52
$512B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Performance Data Summary

KPI B1.2 geographical region.

BEEB2fEREHEZ 2

Aspect B2 Health and Safety

— MR R EEX 38-39
General Disclosure Corporate Culture

BREN |BEMF(ERERFE)SFRAITHNABERLEEX - | RAHBEHE 53
F512B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in Performance Data Summary

KPI B2.1 each of the past two years including the reporting year.

MgENR |RIGHEEXI{ERE- RIRBIBERE 53
$512B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Performance Data Summary

KPI B2.2
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TERER EFEH  —REBERBEERER BEER =N
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Reference/Remarks Page
BREN |(HOAMRANBERERZER  AMBERTRE XL 38-39
$51%B2.3 BFE o Corporate Culture
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.
[EEB3% & R 1F I
Aspect B3 Development and Training
—PRIREE hEX 40
General Disclosure Corporate Culture
BEEN |(RUEMNKEERFESHXIEERS L - H R E B X E B 1 8UR 53
$512B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and ISR ERAE - Bt R ek
KPI B3.1 employee category. TR2EEYIBE
Due to different data
collection methods for
workforce and trained
employees, only full year
training data was recorded
BRAER |RUEMNNEEREE S  SREETKIIINFHRE - | RRBEHS 53
F81EB3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by |Performance Data Summary
KPI B3.2 gender and employee category.
[EEB4% T %Al
Aspect B4 Labour Standards
—RWE EXE 34-35
General Disclosure Corporate Culture
BASEAER | Rl BB EOINERARRE T RBHIST - hEX 34-35
FE1ZB4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices | Corporate Culture
KPI B4.1 to avoid child and forced labour.
AN |(HAEBRRERBAREREBIE TR R PEXE 34-35
f612B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices Corporate Culture
KPI B4.2 when discovered.
EEEDS
Operating Practices
[E EB5fit fE & 12
Aspect B5 Supply Chain Management
— = e e 12 41-43
General Disclosure Supply Chain Management
MgEN |[KwERIASNHERHKE - RIRBEBERE 43, 54
$51ZB5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Performance Data Summary
KPI B5.1
BRER (MR BHEEREERNED  MERTERABINME |HEEER 41-43
$51%B5.2 FIEE  ARMEERITRERTE - Supply Chain Management
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Reference/Remarks Page
AN |(HAAERMNMHEESERGHNIRE L ARNED - |[HEEERE 41-43
#512B5.3 AT RER A - Supply Chain Management
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental

and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are

implemented and monitored.
AN |(HAEREHERREEZBREARERMRENEN - |[HEHEERE 41-43
#512B5.4 IARBBEITRER A - Supply Chain Management
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally

preferable products and services when selecting

suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.
[EEB6EMERE
Aspect B6 Product Responsibility
— AR EmmE 44-46
General Disclosure Product Quality
BRER |CEXCEXERAHTRLEE@EEAMARNKS EmmE 54
5 12B6.1 Bk e Product Quality
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to

recalls for safety and health reasons.
BREN |BEEERERERBOKRFHEENALEE L - EmmE 46
$E1ZB6.2 Number of products and service related complaints REHBEBEREZE
KPI B6.2 received and how they are dealt with. Product Quality

Performance Data Summary

BRRER | RRENESEREGREAED - FEmmE 46
}612B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Product Quality
KPI B6.3 protecting intellectual property rights.
G |(HiBERTBRREMEMDUIZRF - EmmE 45
{61ZB6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Product Quality
KPI B6.4 procedures.
BREN |(HEOEBEEBHRERBLEE  URBEBAATRER EmmE 47
FE1ZB6.5 Fik e Product Quality
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy

policies, how they are implemented and monitored.
EBEBIRES
Aspect B7 Anti-corruption
—RWE R&ES 47-48
General Disclosure Anti-Corruption
BB AE W EAE%ﬁEHﬂWiT%XTT/\_‘ZEﬁ/\}EHjIE EMES R RES 48, 54
$51EB7.1 RN E RFDRER Anti-Corruption
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded Iegal cases regarding corrupt

practices brought against the issuer or its employees

during the reporting period and the outcomes of the

cases.
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Reference/Remarks Page
RASEN | SEERRRREF  AEBERATRERE (RES 47-48
$51ZB7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing | Anti-Corruption

KPI B7.2 procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.

BREN |(HimEEFREIRENREGTE - RE&S 48
f51EB7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to Anti-Corruption

KPI B7.3 directors and staff.

#HE

Community

[EEBStBIRE

Aspect B8 Community Investment

—RIE SN 48
General Disclosure Social Welfare

BEEN |BIERER- o 48
F515B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Social Welfare

KPI B8.1

MRENR |EZFISHBRHAER- /N 48, 54
$E1ZB8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. ~EHBEBERE

KPI B8.2 Social Welfare
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Executive Managing Director

Mr. CHEN Li, age 60, is the Executive Managing Director and
Chief Executive officer of the Group. Mr. Chen has over 25
years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Chen has been General Manager of Alfa
Wassermann China since July 2014. Mr. Chen worked for a
number of internationally renowned pharmaceutical companies in
the past. He was previously General Manager of China with Abbot
from June 2009 to November 2012 and Assistant Vice President
of Wyeth Pharmaceuticals Shanghai from 2004 to June 2009.
During the period from 1992 to 2004, Mr. Chen also worked in
GlaxoSmithKline, Hoechst China, Bayer China, BASF Knoll China
and Roussel China. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
Medicine (Doctor of Internal Medicine) from Tongji Medical
University in 1983.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WU Zhen Tao, age 68, is a non-executive Director and
chairman of our Company. He is also executive Chairman of
Cathay International Holdings Limited (“Cathay”) and founder of
the Cathay Group, which has over 20 years’ history of business
and investment focused on the PRC. He was born and educated
in Beijing. He graduated from the Beijing University of Technology
in 1982. He also has a degree in Business Administration. Mr. Wu
acted as a senior executive in government scientific institutes in the
PRC from 1982 to 1985 and as managing director of two newly
established state owned financial institutions in the PRC from 1986
to 1989. Since 1988 Mr. Wu has, through companies, invested
in and developed the Landmark Hotel (now called Crowne Plaza
Hotel & Suites Landmark Shenzhen) in Shenzhen and established
the Cathay International Water Limited group of companies, which
made substantial investments in public utilities and infrastructure
in the PRC. Strategic shareholders were JP Morgan, Singapore
Technologies, UBS, Banco Santander and Nomura JAFCO, and this
business was once the largest foreign investor in water and waste
water treatment projects in the PRC with net assets of over US$1
billion.
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Mr. Stephen Burnau HUNT, age 82, is a non-executive Director
and former chairman of our Company. Mr. Hunt joined the Cathay
International Group in 1992. He is the deputy chairman and a
non-executive director of Cathay International Holdings Limited.
Mr. Hunt was formerly the managing director of Aliant Capital,
an investment company in Hong Kong. Mr. Hunt, a US citizen,
spent 24 years with Bank of America in international management
and lending positions. Mr. Hunt was senior vice president and
area general manager for Bank of America located in Hong Kong.
Mr. Hunt was president of the American Chamber of Commerce in
Hong Kong in 1989. In 1990, Mr. Hunt was appointed to the Hong
Kong Government’s International Business Committee, and from
1989 to 1991 was a member of the Hong Kong Government’s
Advisory Committee on Free Trade. Mr. Hunt is currently a trustee
of the American Chamber of Commerce’s Charitable Foundation.
Mr. Hunt also served as a member of the Main Board and GEM
Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange from November 2004 to
June 2011. From 2012 to 2015, Mr. Hunt was a director and Chief
Executive Officer of Solar Plus (HK) Limited, a private investment
company incorporated in Hong Kong. Mr. Hunt obtained a bachelor
of arts degree from Duke University in 1961 and a master’s degree
in international affairs from Columbia University in 1963.

Ms. LIU Xuezi, age 45, is a non-executive Director of our
Company. Ms. Liu joined Cathay International Holdings Limited in
2002 and worked in the corporate development department and
asset management department, as vice president and co-head
of asset management department. She is currently vice president
and head of company secretarial centre of the Group. Ms. Liu has
over 14 years of experience in mergers and acquisitions and asset
management. Before joining Cathay, Ms. Liu was head of the Asia-
Pacific region of a US network infrastructure company, responsible
for the start-up and expansion of the company’s business in Asia.
Ms. Liu graduated from the School of Economics of University of
San Francisco, majoring in business administration, in 1999.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Kee Huen, Michael, age 70, is an independent
non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Chan joined our
Group on 9 April 2010. He has over 33 years’ experience in
external audit, IT audit, training, accounting and finance, company
secretarial and corporate administration, MIS management, internal
audit, information security, risk management and compliance.
Mr. Chan is a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants; and a fellow and specialist in information technology
of CPA Australia. He is also a certified information systems auditor
with the Information Systems Audit and Control Association and
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Chan is the
chief executive of C&C Advisory Services Limited, senior advisor
of New Frontier Computer Systems Limited and was an adjunct
professor in the School of Accounting and Finance of the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University from 1 September 2010 to 31 August
2014. Mr. Chan was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of China Baoli Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code:
0164) on 18 August 2017 and Chairman of the Audit Committee
on 26 September 2017. He was also appointed as an independent
non-executive director and Chairman of the Audit Committee
of Sterling Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1825) on 21
September 2018. Mr. Chan has worked at CMG Life Assurance
Limited (formerly Jardine CMG Life Assurance Limited) from 1991
to 1996 and his last position was general manager, compliance.
He was the head of internal audit of Dao Heng Bank/Guoco Group
Limited from 1996 to 2000, the head of compliance in Greater
China, managing director of DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
from 2001 to 2003, the group financial controller of Lam Soon
(Hong Kong) Limited from 2004 to 2005, the director of Quality
Assurance of HKICPA in 2006 and the head of group compliance
of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Limited from
December 2006 to April 2009. Mr. Chan graduated with a higher
diploma in accountancy from Hong Kong Polytechnic in 1976.
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Mr. Fritz Heinrich HORLACHER, age 72, is an independent
non-executive Director of our Company. Mr. Horlacher joined our
Group on 10 February 2011. He has over 30 years’ experience
in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Horlacher started his
pharmaceutical career with Roche Australia in 1974. Mr. Horlacher
worked at Zuellig Pharma Asia Pacific (“Zuellig Pharma”) from
1981 to 2008 and was the chief executive officer of Zuellig Pharma
from 1995 to 2008. He was responsible for its operations servicing
more than 125 international research-based pharmaceutical
manufacturers in the Asia Pacific region. Mr. Horlacher retired as
chief executive officer of Zuellig Pharma in 2008. From 2005 to
2007, Mr. Horlacher was an alternate director of Invida Group
Pte Ltd. Mr. Horlacher was a non-executive director of Australian
Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (a company listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange) from 2002 to 2004. Mr. Horlacher
was the Asia representative on the board of directors of the
International Federation of Pharmaceutical Wholesalers from 2002
to 2008. He was regional director of Asia for the Pharmaceutical
Wholesale Division of Alliance Boots and was also a director and
chairman of the Board of Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Corporation
from 2011 to 2013. Mr. Horlacher was a non-executive member
of the Advisory Board of BSN Medical, a global medical device
company based in Hamburg, Germany, from January 2013 to
August 2015. Mr. Horlacher graduated in 1969 from Montana
Institute in Switzerland and from Union College in South Africa in
1972.

Mr. YEUNG Tak Bun, Allen, age 55, is an independent
non-executive Director of our Company. Mr. Yeung joined our
Group on 6 October 2018. He served as the former Government
Chief Information Officer, responsible for formulation of policies
and strategies for Hong Kong's information industry in the
development of digital economy, e-government, cyber-security,
and formulation of the blueprint for developing Hong Kong
into the world’s leading smart city. He was the Chief Corporate
Development Officer at the Hong Kong Science and Technology
Parks Corporation, responsible for the development strategy of
the science park, nurturing and supporting bio-tech, green-tech, IT
and electronics enterprises. Mr. Yeung started his career in Silicon
Valley and had worked for several high-tech companies. Thereafter,
he held several senior management positions in multinational
corporations, Hong Kong listed companies and private equity funds,
with operations throughout Asia. Mr. Yeung holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Electrical Engineering from the University of
Texas (Austin), a Master of Science in Electrical Engineering from
Purdue University, and an Executive MBA from the Kellogg School
of Management of the University of Northwestern in conjunction
with the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
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Ms. CHAN Ching Har, Eliza, age 65, is an independent
non-executive Director of our Company. Ms. Chan joined our
Group on 10 February 2022. Ms. Chan is SBS, JP, LL.D. (Hon).
She holds the qualifications of Barrister & Solicitor of British
Columbia Supreme Court, Canada, Solicitor of the Supreme Court
of England and Wales and Solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong. Ms. Chan is a member of the National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC"),
a standing member of the CPPCC Tianjin Committee, Foreign
Economic Affairs Legal Counsel to the Tianjin Municipal People’s
Government, an arbitrator of China International Economic and
Trade and Arbitration Commission (CIETAC). Ms. Chan previously
served as a member of the Selection Committee for the selection
of the First Chief Executive of Hong Kong SAR, and member of
the Election Committee for the selections of the Chief Executive of
Hong Kong SAR and the Hong Kong SAR delegates to the National
People’s Congress. She was Chairman of Hong Kong CPPCC
(Provincial) Members Association and now serves as Permanent
Honorary Chairman. She is Vice President of Hong Kong Friendship
Association and Honorary President of Hong Kong China Chamber
of Commerce. Ms. Chan also served at a number of Hong Kong
Government appointed positions, notably as a member of the Hong
Kong Hospital Authority, member of Hong Kong Public Service
Commission, member of the Hong Kong Board of Education,
member of Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment Authority,
Chairman of Public Complaints Committee under Hong Kong
Hospital Authority, Chairman of Kowloon Hospital, Chairman of
Hong Kong Eye Hospital, Chairman of Tseung Kwan O Hospital,
member of the Governing Committee of Queen Elizabeth Hospital,
member of the Medical Council of Hong Kong, Chairman of
Pensions Appeal Panel, member of Administration Appeals Board,
adjudicator of Hong Kong Immigration Tribunal, member of
Disciplinary Panel of Institute of Accountants, Council member
of The University of Science & Technology and Board member of
Hong Kong Science and Technology Park Corporation. Ms. Chan is
senior consultant of Yang Chan & Jamison LLP and senior advisor
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. She was a former independent
non-executive director of CIH and a former non-executive director
of Tianjin Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 882). She
is currently an independent non-executive director of Bank of
Communications (HK) Limited, China Electronics Optics Valley
Union Holding Company Limited (stock code: 798) and Tong Ren
Tang Technologies Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1666).
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Senior Management

Mr. NAN Jianshe, age 56, is the head of business development of
the Group. Mr. Nan joined our company’s controlling shareholder
Cathay International Group in July 2007 as investment director of
Cathay International Pharmaceutical Limited, responsible for the
business development and investment of the Cathay International
Group. Mr. Nan has over 20 years of experience in investment
M&A. Before joining the Cathay International Group, Mr. Nan
worked as head of the securities department and/or investment
department in trust and investment companies, pharmaceutical/
bioengineering companies and petroleum/chemical/mining
companies from 1996 to 2005, and acted as the director of the
investment department at Shanghai Fosun Pharma (Group) Co.,
Ltd. from March 2006 to June 2007. Mr. Nan has qualifications
for Chinese securities brokerage and securities consulting. Mr. Nan
obtained a bachelor of engineering degree from Beijing Institute
of Technology in 1986 and a master’s degree in economics from
Fudan University in 1996.

Mr. LI Hua, age 37, is the head of the finance management
centre of the Group. Mr. Li joined the Group in August 2007 and
has held various positions including the supervisor of the finance
department, the manager of the finance department of Ningbo
Liwah, deputy operating director, the deputy head of finance
management centre and head of finance management centre of
the Group. Mr. Liis a Chinese Certified Public Accountant, China
Senior Accountant and holds a bachelor’'s degree in accounting
from Ningbo University.

Mr. HONG Zhou, age 53, is the vice president of government
affairs. Mr. Hong joined our Group in November 2015 and has
over 25 years’ experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Hong
previously worked for Jiangxi Food and Drug Administration,
Novartis, Bayer and Abbott. Mr. Hong obtained his bachelor’s
degree in analytical chemistry from Jiangxi University (now
Nanchang University) in 1989.

Mr. YAO Dezhong, age 40, is the head of the Group’s production
and operation management centre and the general manager of
Ningbo Liwah. Mr. Yao has over 18 years of experience in the
Chinese medicine industry. He joined our Group in December 2020.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yao worked in Zhejiang Conba
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and served as R&D officer, technical
production manager, department head, executive general manager
of the plant extract division (international trade), deputy general
manager of the botanical division and executive general manager
of the Chinese medicine resources division. Mr. Yao obtained a
bachelor’'s degree in pharmaceutical engineering from Nanjing
University of Chinese Medicine in 2003 and a master’s degree in
pharmacy from Zhejiang University in 2014.
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Report of the Directors

The Board of Directors are pleased to present their annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in Notes 34
and 21 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” and “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 6 to 9, pages 10 to 20, pages 21 to 60 and pages 79 to 101
respectively.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 107 to 108.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividends for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Borrowings
Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities
The table below outlines details of the shares of the Company
purchased by the Company on the Stock Exchange on a monthly
basis during the year ended 31 December 2021. The total number
of shares purchased during the year ended 31 December 2021 was

19,858,000 shares.

2NER B8R E48R
RHEAE BeE BIEE FHE 2ff#E

Highest Lowest Average
Number of price paid price paid price paid Aggregate
shares per share pershare pershare price paid
BIT BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

Month R

June 2021 —E-—FRA 2,774,000 2.50 2.22 2.39 6,643,530
July 2021 —E-—F+A 8,236,000 2.80 2.50 2.77 22,786,400
September 2021 —E-—FRA 2,346,000 1.51 1.27 1.41 3,311,150
October 2021 —E-—F1+A 6,502,000 1.78 1.54 1.72 11,156,060
19,858,000 43,897,140

B Rl ENS REE - -—F+=- 8
—t—BHIFE AQRSKETMAKERDQG
BERE HEXBOAQARTMLETES -
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Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Report of the Directors

Distributable Reserves of the Company

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands, amounted to US$43,146,000. Details of the
movements in the reserves of the Company during the year are set
out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for approximately 24.5% (2020:
35.9%) of the Group’s total sales and sales from the largest
customer included therein amounted to 7.2% (2020: 15.6%).

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 58.9% (2020: 53.0%)
of the Group’s total purchases and purchases from the largest
supplier included therein amounted to 26.0% (2020: 19.8%).

At no time during the year did a Director, a close associate of a
Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) has an interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers
or customers.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Managing Director:
Mr. Chen Li (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman)
Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt
Ms. Liu Xuezi

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael
Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher (resigned on 10 February 2022)

Mr. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen
Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza (appointed on 10 February 2022)

In accordance with article 108 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Wu Zhen Tao and Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael
will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election. Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza is nominated to stand for
election.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (“AGM") has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"),
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to The Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

REERT ERDNRERT
EEpng 5% BEtE EBERYE my BREZEDL
Percentage of
Number of the issued share
issued ordinary capital of the
Name of Director Capacity Nature of interest shares held Total Company
REBLE 2REFRABAR Hth s 209,820,000 © 276,260,000 © 73.22%
Mr. Wu Zhen Tao FREXEA Other interest (1F8) (%)
Founder of discretionary (Long position) (Long position)
trusts and beneficiary
of a trust
RELiEER NGIL: 323 66,440,000 ©
Interest of a controlled  Corporate interest (#F2)
corporation (Long position)
Stephen Burnau Huntt = EzEBA EA#R 100,000 0.03%
Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt  Beneficial owner Personal interest (1F%)

GES

(@) 7209,820,000fx A AR B HITEBR 2 #Em - TIE
iBCathay International Holdings Limited® & A& 2
A 7] %66,440,0000% % #BCosmos Skyland Limited#¥F
B+ K% 4 Cathay International Holdings Limited
M#EFE100% R DS -

70 Annual Report 2021 4 £

(Long position)
Note:

(@) The interests in 209,820,000 issued ordinary shares of the Company were held
through companies wholly owned by Cathay International Holdings Limited and
66,440,000 issued ordinary shares owned by Cosmos Skyland Limited, in which
Mr. Wu indirectly held 100% shareholding interests.
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Report of the Directors

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Chief Executive
nor their associates had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations as at 31 December 2021 which was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, any of its holding
company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

Mr. Wu Zhen Tao, appointed as a non-executive Director and
chairman of our Company on 30 March 2017, holds approximately
100% of Common Shares interests in Cathay International Holdings
Limited (“CIH") as at 31 December 2021. Save as disclosed in
the transactions in relation to CIH under the section headed
“Connected Transactions” of this Annual Report, no transaction,
arrangement and contract of significance, to which the Company,
its holding company, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2021, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that other than the interests disclosed above in respect
of certain Directors, the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests and short positions in the issued
share capital of the Company.

BRERT EARDRERT

REEE Wi & EEREE a4y REzEAH

Percentage of

Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of the

Name of shareholder Notes Capacity shares held Total Company

BREREELEREE (PE)ERAT 1 Bnks 209,820,000 209,820,000 55.61%
([EREBZE(RER))) Beneficial interest (tf8) (H8)

Cathay International Pharma Manufacture and
Distribution (China) Limited ("CI Pharma China")

BREREELNFIREEARLT :
(EREEEE)

Cathay International Changchun Biotechnology and
Pharmaceutical Limited ("CIC")

BRERENRMRER (TE)ARAA 1
((EREREMRERER (PE)])

Cathay International Biotechnology and Pharmaceutical
(China) Limited (“Cl Biotech & Pharma China")

AZARBEARLA (AREREE)) 1

Cathay International Pharmaceutical Limited (“CIP")

ERERENRMARLD R ((HREREMRG]) 1
Cathay International Biotech Company Limited (“CIB")

Cathay International Holdings Limited ("CIH") 1
Cathay International Enterprises Limited ("CIE") 2
Cosmos Skyland Limited ("CSL") 3
REE 4
Wu Zhen Tao
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(Long position)  (Long position)

REiEER 209,820,000 209,820,000 55.61%
Interest of a controlled corporation (f8) (#2)

(Long position)  (Long position)

REEEER 209,820,000 209,820,000 55.61%
Interest of a controlled corporation (r2) (72)

(Long position)  (Long position)

RELEER 209,820,000 209,820,000 55.61%
Interest of a controlled corporation (f12) (fr2)

(Long position)  (Long position)

REABER 209,820,000 209,820,000 55.61%
Interest of a controlled corporation (fr8) (fr8)

(Long position)  (Long position)

REAEER 209,820,000 209,820,000 55.61%
Interest of a controlled corporation (f8) (fr8)

(Long position)  (Long position)

REEEER 209,820,000 209,820,000 55.61%
Interest of a controlled corporation (H#8) (fr8)

(Long position)  (Long position)

& 25 £ 25Beneficial interest 66,440,000 66,440,000 17.61%
(f8) (#2)
(Long position)  (Long position)
FEETABARERREA 209,820,000 276,260,000 73.22%
Founder of discretionary trusts and (#r2) (2)
beneficiary of a trust (Long position)  (Long position)
XprEER 66,440,000
Interest of a controlled corporation (418)

(Long position)
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Notes:

(1) These shares are held by CI Pharma China. Cl Pharma China is owned as to
18% by CIC and 82% by Cl Biotech & Pharma China. CIC is in turn owned
as to 100% by CI Biotech & Pharma China. Cl Biotech & Pharma China is in
turn wholly owned by CIP. CIP is wholly owned by CIB, which in turn is wholly
owned by CIH. Therefore, CIC, Cl Biotech & Pharma China, CIP, CIB, and CIH
are deemed to be interested in these shares.

(2) CIH is held as to 100% of Common Shares by CIE. Therefore, CIE is deemed to
be interested in the shares held by CI Pharma China.

(3) CSL is 100% held by Mr. Wu Zhen Tao.

(4) The entire issued share capital of CIE is held by a trust set up by Mr. Wu Zhen
Tao for the benefit of Mr. Wu Zhen Tao and members of his family (“Wu Family
Trust”). Mr. Wu Zhen Tao as founder of the Wu Family Trust is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by CIE.

Save as disclosed above, no person, other than the Directors of the
Company, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors and
Chief Executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above, had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as at
31 December 2021 that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Connected Transactions

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the transactions
between the Company and the connected person(s) (as defined
under the Listing Rules) of the Company constitute connected
transactions of the Company. The Company regulates and manages
such transactions in compliance with the Listing Rules.
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Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

On 24 June 2016, Ningbo Liwah, Jilin Haizi and Lansen
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (“Lansen (BVI)”) entered into the
cross guarantee agreement, pursuant to which the parties may,
provide or procure its subsidiaries to provide certain guarantees
to banks in relation to the bank facilities of each other during the
period from 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2019.

On 3 May 2019, Ningbo Liwah, Jilin Haizi and Lansen (BVI) entered
into a new cross guarantee agreement, pursuant to which the
parties may, provide or procure its subsidiaries to provide certain
guarantees to banks in relation to the bank facilities of each other
during the period from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2022.

Cross Guarantee Agreement

Date
24 June 2016
(A new cross guarantee agreement signed on 3 May 2019)

Parties
(a) Jilin Haizi, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CIH;

(b) Ningbo Liwah, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company; and

() Lansen (BVI), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Transaction Nature

Pursuant to the cross guarantee agreement, Jilin Haizi has
agreed, during the Effective Period (as defined below), to provide
guarantees for the obligations under the bank facilities obtained
or to be obtained by Ningbo Liwah (the “Jilin Haizi Guarantees”).
Pursuant to the cross guarantee agreement, on a reciprocal basis,
Lansen (BVI) has agreed, during the effective period, to procure its
subsidiary, as appropriate, to provide guarantees for the obligation
under the bank facilities to be obtained by Jilin Haizi (the “Lansen
(BVI) Guarantees”) (the Jilin Haizi Guarantees and the Lansen (BVI)
Guarantees, collectively, the “Guarantees”).

Guarantee Commission

The annual guarantee commission rate of 0.5% is determined
and agreed with reference to the prevailing market rate of the
commission charged by guarantee service providers, which is
around 2% per annum, after taking into account of the factors
such as reasons for, and benefits of the cross guarantee agreement.
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Effective Period
The effective period of the cross guarantee agreement commenced
on 1 July 2016 and expired on 30 June 2019.

HEERBZENEXER_Z—NFLA—
AfG YR —_E_—_FA=1+HEH-

The effective period of the new cross guarantee agreement
commenced on 1 July 2019 and will expire on 30 June 2022.

FELR

BE_Z-_—F+-A=+—HIEFE R
BHEERDEETHOTERLHBERER
FOHEFE LRERERXZSEHIIMT

Annual Caps

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the approved annual caps
and the actual transaction amounts of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions under the cross guarantee agreement are

set out below:

BE-_ZT-—F+-_A=+-HLEENFELR
Annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2021
AEMEERR
Jilin Haizi Guarantee
AR #130,000,0007T
(18E 7 4920,390,000% 1)

RMB 130,000,000
(equivalent to approximately US$20.4 million)
BE BV &EREMNES
The maximum commission fee payable by Lansen (BVI)
AR #650,0007T
(HE M 4101,000% 7T)

RMB650,000
(equivalent to approximately US$101,000)
BAAE (BVI) £ 1R
Lansen (BVI) Guarantee
A R#130,000,0007T
(8% 7 #920,390,0003 7T )
RMB130,000,000
(equivalent to approximately US$20.4 million)
AEMEERSENAS
The maximum commission fee payable by Jilin Haizi
AR #650,0007T
(HBE R 49101,000% )

RMB650,000
(equivalent to approximately US$101,000)

BE-_T_—F1+_A=t-RLFENERIZER

Actual transaction amounts for the year ended 31 December 2021

BEWEEER
Jilin Haizi Guarantee
A #130,000,0007T
(F8°& 7 4920,390,000% 7T)
RMB130,000,000
(equivalent to approximately US$20.4 million)
BAEBVERM B
The commission fee payable by Lansen (BVI)
% AR #650,0007C
(F8& 7 #9101,000% 7T)
approximately RMB650,000
(equivalent to approximately US$101,000)
BAAE (BVI) R
Lansen (BVI) Guarantee
AE#130,000,0007T
(F8& 7 4920,390,000% 7T)
RMB 130,000,000
(equivalent to approximately US$20.4 million)
aEMEERNES
The commission fee payable by Jilin Haizi
% AR #650,0007C
(HHE R 49101,000% 7T)
approximately RMB650,000
(equivalent to approximately US$101,000)
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditor of the Company to perform certain agreed-upon
procedures in respect of the continuing connected transactions
of the Group. The auditor has reported the factual findings on
these procedures to the Board. The independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the continuing connected transactions and
the report of the auditor and have confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group on normal commercial terms, and in accordance with
the terms of the agreement governing such transactions that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has issued a letter to the Board
confirming that the above continuing connected transactions:

(i)  have received the approval of the Board;

(i) have been priced in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group;

(i)  have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

(iv) did not exceed the respective annual caps.

Save as disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December 2021, the
related party transactions disclosed in Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements either did not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, or only constituted fully exempted
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions by
virtue of the de minimis exemption under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Company has compiled with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the employees of the Group are determined
with reference to individual performance, professional
qualifications, experience in the industry and relevant market
trends.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’'s
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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Report of the Directors

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
articles of association, or the laws of the Cayman lIslands, which
would require the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which the
Company gives priority to distributing dividend in cash and shares
its profit with its shareholders. The dividend payout ratio shall be
determined or recommended, as appropriate, by the Board at its
absolute discretion after taking into account the following issues:

— the Articles of Association of the Company;

— the applicable restrictions and requirements under the laws of
the Cayman lIslands;

— the Company's results of operations, financial condition and
cash flows;

— operating, capital expenditure and investment requirements
of the Company; and

—  other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at
the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 2.
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Indemnity of Directors

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the
liabilities of the Directors and executive officers in respect of legal
actions against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities.

A permitted indemnity provision (within the meaning in Section
469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong)) that provides for indemnity against
liability incurred by Directors and executive officers of the Group is
currently in force when the Report of the Directors prepared by the
Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and was in force throughout the
year ended 31 December 2021 for the benefit of the Directors.

Auditor
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

Wu Zhen Tao
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 February 2022
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company and the Board of Directors are devoted to achieving
and maintaining the highest standards of corporate governance as
the Board believes that effective corporate governance practices
are fundamental to enhancing shareholder value and safeguarding
interests of the shareholders and other stakeholders. Accordingly,
the Company has adopted sound corporate governance principles
that emphasise a quality Board, effective internal controls, stringent
disclosure practices and transparency and accountability to all
stakeholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has complied
with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules, except with a deviation from Code Provision
A.5 of the Code. Under Code Provision A.5 of the Code, the
Company should establish a Nomination Committee with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority and
duties. Currently, the Company had not established a Nomination
Committee and had retained the functions with the Remuneration
Committee. The Remuneration Committee has been delegated the
functions of a Nomination Committee since its listing on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange in 2010. As such, the Board is of the
view that the members of the Remuneration Committee possess
the necessary experience and knowledge to discharge the functions
of a Nomination Committee. To fulfil the new requirement under
the amended Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules, the Board will
establish a nomination committee chaired by the chairman of the
board or an independent non-executive Director and comprising a
majority of independent non-executive Director in due course.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions adopted by the Company.
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The Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the business
operations of the Group. It formulates strategic directions, oversees
the operations and monitors the financial performance of the
Group. Management manages the businesses of the Group,
including the decision making of daily operation within the
delegated power and authority given by the Board. Management is
accountable to the Board for the Company’s overall operation.

The Company’s articles of association set out matters which are
specifically reserved to the Board for its decision.

The Company Secretary or his assistant is responsible for taking
minutes of the Board and Board Committees meetings. Draft
minutes and written resolutions will be circulated to all Board
members or Board Committees members for review and comment
within a reasonable period of time. Final version of the minutes and
written resolutions will be provided for record within a reasonable
period of time and the signed copies are kept in the Company’s
minutes book maintained by the Company Secretary for Directors’
inspection.

As at 31 December 2021 and at the date of this report, the
Board was comprised of one executive managing Director, three
non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. A description of the Directors is set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” section
from pages 61 to 66 and on the Company’s website.
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R —F+-A=+—BERARAMER As at 31 December 2021 and at the date of this report, the Board
B E=2g0ETIKE : was comprised of the following members:
BEREZE BRE-RERER
REZEREMNAEE AESEMAEH
Date of first Date of last
appointment re-election
EE Directors to the Board as Director
EBBTES: Executive Managing Director:
BRNFEE (7T BAEZ) Mr. Chen Li (Chief Executive Officer) —E2-)\#=Af—H8 —E-—%RA=1+—H
1 March 2018 31 May 2021
EHITESE: Non-executive Directors:
REBEE(FE) Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman) —E—+F=A=+R Z—ZE-ZEEXA-+-H
30 March 2017 22 June 2020
Stephen Burnau Hunt4t 4 Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt “E-TFEMAAR ZEZTEXAZTZH
9 April 2010 22 June 2020
AER UL Ms. Liu Xuezi —E-RNE=ZA=tA ZE--FRA=t+—H
30 March 2016 31 May 2021
BYFHTES: Independent non-executive Directors:
BREELE Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael —E-EFEMANH “E-NFRATZH
9 April 2010 12 June 2019
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher?t 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher —T-——%-A4+H ZZ-ZTESAZ+H

(RZEZ—F- A+HET)
BEE Lt

REBERL

(resigned on 10 February 2022)
Mr. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen

Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza

10 February 2011
ZE-N\ETAKRH
6 October 2018
—E-—-F-A+H

22 June 2020
“Z-—-FRA=+—H
31 May 2021

(RZE-_—F-_A+HEZHT)

AEEETRBRHNEFTENRERAK &
TEEELMAAUANER  ARANEKER
BRMEE NHRREFENRERS BIU
EREDEBH O ULELEMARR -EEHA
TRER AGoi BARMRRBEXD
B F XM o AR F A uh K B S P 48 Uk
HEESEMAE HBRHAE LB -

BYFHTES
BUFATESFRAAEE GRS T EA KM
REBGER RETBBEETEENES
ZEegR UXRKEE RRLERED
B LRFAA

(appointed on 10 February 2022)

10 February 2022

The size and composition of the Board are reviewed from time
to time, taking into account the requirements under the Listing
Rules and the scope and nature of operations of the Company, to
ensure that the size of the Board is adequate to provide a diversity
of views and facilitate effective decision making. The Directors
come from diverse background with varied expertise in finance,
information technology and pharmaceutical business fields. The
Company has maintained on the Company’s website and on the
website of the Stock Exchange an updated list of its Directors
identifying their roles and functions.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range
of skills and business experience to the Group. They also bring
independent judgement on issues of strategy, performance and risk
through their contribution to the Board meetings and to the Board
Committees’ meetings.
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In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, there are three
independent non-executive Directors, exceeding one-third of the
Board. Among the three independent non-executive Directors, one
of them has appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or
related financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to the Listing Rules. With reference to such
confirmations, the Company, to its best knowledge, considers that
all the independent non-executive Directors fulfill the guidelines on
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all to
be independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the chairman are segregated from the chief executive
officer. The positions of chairman and the chief executive officer
are held by separate individuals. The chairman is responsible for
managing the Board, steering the Board to formulate overall
strategies and business development plans, ensuring the receipt
of sufficient, complete and reliable information by each Director
and the receipt of reasonable explanations for the issues raised at
the Board meetings. The chief executive officer is responsible for
managing the business of the Company and implementing policies,
business objectives and plans formulated by the Board, and is
accountable to the Board for the Company’s overall operation.
The senior management team is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Group under the leadership of the chief executive
officer of the Company.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal

The executive managing Director Mr. Chen Li has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing 1 March 2021. Mr. Wu Zhen Tao and Mr. Fritz
Heinrich Horlacher have entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of two years commencing 30 March
2020 and 10 February 2020 respectively. Mr. Stephen Burnau
Hunt, Ms. Liu Xuezi, Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael, Mr. Yeung
Tak Bun, Allen and Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza have entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years commencing 9 April 2019, 30 March 2019, 9 April 2019,
6 October 2021 and 10 February 2022 respectively. All Directors
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as addition
to the Board shall retire and be eligible for re-appointment at the
first general meeting after appointment.

At each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed for
a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Wu Zhen Tao, Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael and
Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza will retire by rotation and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election in the forthcoming AGM.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company had not
established a Nomination Committee but had retained the
functions with the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee members from time to time identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships or senior management. In considering
the nomination of new Directors or senior management, the
Remuneration Committee will take into account the qualification,
ability, working experience, leadership and professional ethics of
the candidates as well as the independence requirement in the
case of an independent non-executive Director. The Remuneration
Committee has adopted procedures for nomination of a new
Director or senior management, pursuant to which (1) an interview
will be conducted with the prospective candidates; and (2) the
Remuneration Committee will consider and, if thought fit, make
suitable recommendations to the Board.
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Continuing professional development

The Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company. The Company from time to time updates and
provides training to the Directors, and organises seminars on the
latest development of the Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and
regulations relating to Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

Upon appointment to the Board, the Directors will be provided
with a comprehensive briefing of the Group’s businesses by senior
executives. Continuing education and information are provided to
the Directors regularly to ensure that the Directors are apprised
of the latest changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory
environment in which the Group conducts its businesses.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has
organised a training session on amendments to main board
listing rules. All Directors attended the training. In addition,
individual directors also participated in other courses relating to
the roles, functions and duties of a listed company director or
further enhancement of their professional development by way of
attending training courses or via online aids or reading relevant
materials.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties. During the year, the Board formalised the
inclusion of the following corporate governance duties into the
terms of reference of the Board:

— to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

— to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

— to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

— to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Company’s
employees and the Directors; and

— to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report in its Annual
Report.
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Board Diversity Policy

On 29 August 2013, the Company adopted the Board diversity
policy in accordance with the requirement set out in the Code.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. With a
view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and
its sustainable development. In designing the Board’s composition,
Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, and professional experience. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Board Meetings

The Board is expected to meet regularly at least four times a
year. Between scheduled meetings, the senior management of
the Group provides information to Directors on a regular basis
regarding the activities and development in the businesses of the
Group. The Directors have full access to information on the Group
and independent professional advice at all times whenever deemed
necessary by the Directors.
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The Board held five meetings during the year ended 31 December
2021 with the attendance of each Director as follows:

s
HESBEXRE
BIEBERE HE=E
No. of meetings
attended/No. of
E=E Directors meetings held Attendance rate
EREPTESE: Executive Managing Director:
BRI (T B AR EE) Mr. Chen Li (Chief Executive Officer) 5/5 100%
FHITES Non-executive Directors:
RBEBLRE(FE) Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman) 5/5 100%
Stephen Burnau Hunt’t 4 Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt 5/5 100%
BELEL T Ms. Liu Xuezi 5/5 100%
BIYFHITES: Independent non-executive
Directors:
PR B0 48 7t A Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 5/5 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacherst 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher
(R—E-——F=- A +HEF) (resigned on 10 February 2022) 5/5 100%
5 12 P & Mr. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen 5/5 100%
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With respect to regular meetings of the Board, the Directors will be
given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and
an agenda with supporting Board papers no less than three days
prior to the meeting. For other meetings, Directors are given as
much notice as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.
Except for those circumstances permitted by the articles of
association of the Company, a Director who has a material interest
in any contract, transaction, arrangement or any other kind of
proposal put forward to the Board for consideration, will abstain
from voting on the relevant resolution and such Director is not
counted as quorum.
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The Board has devised its specific written terms of reference setting
out its duties, responsibilities, powers and functions which include
the following:

— to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

— to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

— to take responsibility for the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the prevailing accounting standards and laws, approving
the financial statements and appointing and liaising with the
Group’s external auditors;

— to review the Company’'s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report in its Annual
Report;

— to liaise with all regulatory authorities and organisations on
all matters relating to the Group, and monitor changes in
their policies relating to and affecting the Group; and

— to ensure accountability towards and sufficient
communication with the Group’s shareholders.

During the year, a meeting of the Chairman and the independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of other directors and
senior management was held to discuss the performance of the
executive director.

The Board also discussed the policy for the corporate governance

of the Company and duties performed by the Board and the Board
Committees (see below).
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Board Committees

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Executive Committee. Please see below for
the composition and responsibilities of the committees. Each
committee shall provide their recommendations to the Board based
on their respective terms of reference. The decisions of the Board
on such recommendations shall be final, unless otherwise stated in
the terms of reference of these committees.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of three
independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Chan Kee Huen,
Michael, an independent non-executive Director, currently serves
as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is
expected to meet regularly at least three times per year.

The Board has established the Audit Committee with specific
written terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities
and authorities delegated by the Board. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The major duties and responsibilities of
the Audit Committee include the following:

— to oversee the relationship with the external auditor,
including:

o to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor, approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor and address any
questions of resignation or dismissal of such auditor;

o to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards; and

J to develop and implement policy on the engagement of
the external auditor to supply non-audit services;

— to review and monitor the integrity of the Group’s financial
statements, annual reports and half-year reports, and to
review significant financial reporting judgements contained
therein; and

— to review the effectiveness of the financial reporting, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.
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The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended
31 December 2021 with the attendance of each member as
follows:

HESBERE
BOTEBRRY
No. of meetings
attended/No. of

th

EREZEEREHS Name of Audit Committee members meetings held Attendance rate
FRECIE S & (/7)) Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael (Chairman) 3/3 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlachert 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher (resigned on

(RZZFEZZF-_ATHSE) 10 February 2022) 3/3 100%
% 12 3, 5t A Mr. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen 2/3 67%
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee

had:

— reviewed with management and external auditor on the
interim results and annual results and related announcements
including the related disclosures, integrity of financial
reporting and the accounting policies adopted by the Group
prior to submission to the Board for approval,

— discussed with management on significant judgements
affecting the Group’s consolidated financial statements;

— reviewed the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor and recommended the Board on the
appointment of the external auditor;

— reviewed and discussed the internal audit reports including
the status of implementing recommendations from the
previous reports; and

— reviewed and assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's internal control and risk management.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company consists of three
independent non-executive Directors and one non-executive
Director. Mr. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen, an independent non-executive
Director, currently serves as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The Remuneration Committee is expected to meet
regularly at least once per year.

The Board has established the Remuneration Committee with
specific written terms of reference setting out the duties,
responsibilities and authorities delegated by the Board. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The major
duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are:

— to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy and placing such recommendations
before the Board concerning the total remuneration and/
or benefits granted to the Directors and senior management
from time to time;

— to assess the performance of executive Directors and senior
management;

— to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

— to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the constitution of the Company or imposed by
the Listing Rules or any applicable law;

— to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

— to determine the policy for the nomination of Directors and
senior management;

— to make recommendations to the Board on the nomination,
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and senior
management; and
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—  to review the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
and professional experience) of the Board at least annually;
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to implement the Company’ s corporate strategy.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2021 with the attendance of each member as
follows:

HEEERE
BITEBNE i FE =

No. of meetings

Name of Remuneration attended/No. of
FHEEERENK R Committee members meetings held Attendance rate
GBS A (£ /E) Mr. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen (Chairman) 1/1 100%
Stephen Burnau Hunt’t 4 Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt 1/1 100%
FR 0B 7t A& Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 11 100%

Fritz Heinrich Horlacherst 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher (resigned

(M=—Z=_—F—-H+HEHL) on 10 February 2022) 1/1 100%
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration
Committee:

— assessed the performance of the executive Director and the
senior management;

—  pursuant to provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the Code, reviewed the
remuneration structure/package of the Directors and the
senior management, and made recommendation to the Board
on their remuneration;

— determined policy for the nomination of Directors;

— discussed the implementation of the Board diversity policy;
and

— made recommendation to the Board on the proposed
reelection of the retiring Directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy for the
Remuneration Committee to consider and make recommendations
to Shareholders for election as Directors at general meetings or
appoint as Directors to fill casual vacancies.
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Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Remuneration Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

(M

(2)

reputation for integrity;

accomplishment and experience in the business in which the
Group is engaged in;

commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;
factors in accordance with the Board Diversity Policy; and

such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Remuneration Committee has the
discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

Nomination Procedures

(1

The proposed candidates will be asked to submit the
necessary personal information in a prescribed form by the
Remuneration Committee;

The Remuneration Committee shall convene a meeting to
consider the nomination of candidates;

For the appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board,
the Remuneration Committee shall undertake adequate
due diligence in respect of such individual and make
recommendations for the Board'’s consideration and approval;

For the re-appointment of any existing member(s) of
the Board, the Remuneration Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation, for the proposed candidates to stand for
re-election at a general meeting; and

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating
to its recommendation of candidates to stand for election at
a general meeting.
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HE-_ZT-—F+-_A=+—HBItEEEZE The following table shows the breakdown of Directors’

B RRARN T - remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2021:
Hitr g
Other emoluments
Fe 2R mEELR
we  NEVEA MEgRs  BRATEMT st
Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances contribution
and benefits  Discretionary retirement
Fees in kind bonus plans Total
e TR Tin Tin Tin
Uss$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Uss'000 US$'000
HE-E--f% Year ended 31 December 2021
tZA=t-HLEE
EHRTES: Executive managing director:
B Chen Li - 553 132 12 697
¥HTES: Non-executive directors:
REF Wu Zhen Tao — — — - _
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 38 — — - 38
HE% Liu Xuezi - 200 87 2 289
BUFNTES: Independent non-executive directors:
BREE Chan Kee Huen, Michael 35 — — — 35
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher (resigned on
(RZZZZFZA+HER) 10 February 2022) 2 - - - 32
BER Yeung Tak Bun, Allen 35 - - - 35
140 753 219 14 1,126
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The remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2021:

—E-—F
2021
A"

No of individuals

£ 21,000,000 7T
1,000,001/ 7L %1,500,000/8 7T
1,500,001/ 7C £2,000,000/%8 7T

HITEEE

ARRMPTRREEH —REHHRITES
MASERITERT R —RIFFEFMAER  FTT
EEREBLLERBWITRESER -

EFEECRYATZE ST EEMBERS
CSIAESEERE TR BENED -
HWITZEENIERBLRBRAEBRENYH
LB HEREE BT FERPRAR
AR - B E SRR B LEMM AR -

KREBESARTER IET
MHELEBRAMEERE UK
EEREETESEMIUNAR

94 Annual Report 2021 4 £

Nil = HK$1,000,000 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee of the Company consists of one executive
managing Director, two non-executive Directors and one non-
Director. Mr. Wu Zhen Tao, a non-executive Director, currently
serves as the chairman of the Executive Committee.

The Board has established the Executive Committee with specific
written terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities
and authorities delegated by the Board. The major duties and
responsibilities of the Executive Committee include reviewing the
financials and financial related matters, assisting in developing
annual and medium- to long-term corporate strategies, reviewing
and approving new business development plans, and reviewing and
approving research and development projects.

Executive Committee members normally meet every month to keep
abreast of the latest activities and performance of the Group and
to monitor and ensure that management carries out the directions
and strategies set by the Board.
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The Executive Committee held nine meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2021 with the attendance of each member as
follows:

HEERRE
BTEBRE
No. of meetings
attended/No. of

R

HITEESEREHSR Committee members meetings held Attendance rate
REELE(EE) Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman) 9/9 100%
BRAN %&£ Mr. Chen Li 9/9 100%
AEZLZ+ Ms. Liu Xuezi 9/9 100%
a5 o5t Ms. Tao Fang Fang 9/9 100%
MENZFX Accountability and Audit

B &R L Financial Reporting

EEANBREFARBEICEEZ KNG R ER
HASEPBREIOEL  THERF AR
RAEEMBHRREFTENEL -

BBV EEZSHMEBAERARIMEH
ARNERHE_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—81t
FEZEAUBREROBITEML -

E=ENRBOABREMBRRNECTEHT
RAREEI02E106E B RBMMRE ]

EEEBANEESRNEBRHENEH
HARINBREARENRRLAMR - REF
Bk 5 RIS -

¥ B AT B &

RAFE BELERERGAMEBHAER
NRAEZEARNEEZEEN  EHETER
RBFRNGEREL -

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and accounting standards. The Directors also
acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the financial
statements for the Group are published in a timely manner.

BDO Limited acknowledges its responsibilities for the audit of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021.

The Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities in respect of the
consolidated financial statements are set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 102 to 106 in this report.

Management has provided to all members of the Board with
monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group's performance and position in detail.

Auditor’'s Remuneration

During the year, BDO Limited was appointed as the Group’s auditor
until the conclusion of next AGM.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the fees paid/payable
to BDO Limited in respect of audit and non-audit services were as
follows:

B EHER

PR 7% 1 E Services rendered Fee paid/payable
TER

Us$'000

ZE R Audit services 274
EZERTS Non-audit services 47

FEBRFEEIZERTHENRENSER
BRPEAMEER -

REMWE
NRAMEZREBEALECEHESTENELE
BEEER BREFENEMABIERER
KBEEESBRNMER -

PRESVESLAANENEZNRE - M
ARAMEREAREEFTEEHRAESFTER
HEFER ULRHEEFNABBIRFEE
B

REZE-_TE-_—F+_A=+—BILFE"
NAMECET T ORISNERNFELE -
A LEMRANEI2MEHMRTE -

P B BE 42 K% L B Y

B RAEREESRARENAREEM
NHMETERRL BB R ZRRHRR
BREMG CERAGRER -BEFEERNE
Mo R K 5T E B A BD ES 1 R AT AR B AR &Y
MNERAEENEE -

ARAZZFBMAETECHEABEZLIE
- ERASERAMMEREEZOAMMER
HE - RIBEAEEEBARNMRE A2
AR E B 5L AR B AR B K DA 1R 1 F 4R
HEEF -
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The non-audit services mainly consisted of interim review and
other professional services in relation to the continuing connected
transactions.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, Mr. Pang Kai Fai, plays an important role
in supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within
the Board and that board policy and procedures are followed.

All Directors may access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance and
regulatory matters and should also facilitate induction and
professional development of Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company Secretary
has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Internal Control and Risk Assessment

The Board is responsible for monitoring the risk management and
the internal control system of the Group and on an ongoing basis
has the responsibility for reviewing their effectiveness including
financial, operational and compliance controls. The Board is
committed to implementing an effective and sound internal control
system to safeguard the interest of shareholders and the Group's
assets.

Several department heads of the Company met with the internal
audit department regularly to ensure a sound internal control
system is in place and maintained. To enhance the knowledge
of relevant staff of the Group, training will be provided to them
in the matter of relevant rules and applicable laws as and when
appropriate.
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The risk management and internal control system of the Group
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against all risk issues. We have employed
a bottom-up approach for the identification, assessment and
mitigation of risk at all business unit levels and across all functional
areas.

During the process of risk assessment, the Board together with
management is responsible for identifying the risks of the Group
and deciding on the risk levels. An external consultant was engaged
to provide advice and support to the risk assessment process.
The Board is also responsible for assessing and determining the
nature and extent of the risks that are acceptable to the Group
when achieving its strategic objectives. After discussing and taking
into consideration the risk responses, the relevant departments
and business units have been assigned to implement the risk
management solutions in accordance with their respective roles and
responsibilities. The identified risks together with the risk responses
have been recorded in the risk register and the updating and
maintenance of which is subject to the supervision of the Board.

The key elements of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company include the establishment of a risk register
to keep track of and document identified risks, the assessment and
evaluation of risks, the development and continuous updating of
responsive procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control
procedures to ensure their effectiveness.

The internal audit department has performed annual internal
control reviews on certain important areas of monitoring including
the functions of finance, operations, compliance and risk
management respectively covering the period of 1 January 2021
to 31 December 2021 in compliance with the requirements under
Code Provision C.2 of the CG Code, according to the scope of
review agreed and approved by the Audit Committee.

Also, management has analysed the control environment and
risk assessment, assessed the various controls implemented and
agreed with the Board on the scope of review over the system of
internal controls. The approach of the review includes discussing
with relevant management and staff members, reviewing
relevant documentation of the internal control system, evaluating
findings on any deficiencies in the design of internal controls and
developing recommendations for improvement, where appropriate.
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Management has reported the results of the reviews to the Audit
Committee for its evaluation on the effectiveness of the system.
Meetings were held by the Audit Committee to discuss the findings
and the results of the reviews which were endorsed for reporting
to the Board. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board
has conducted its annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems and the Board is
satisfied that, based on the information supplied, coupled with its
own observations and with the assistance of the Audit Committee,
the present internal control and risk management processes are
satisfactory for the nature and size of the Group’s operations and
business. The Board will continue to ensure that appropriate review
of the systems and procedures is being carried out by management
from time to time to maintain a high standard of internal controls
and will make appropriate changes to the internal control system,
if necessary.

Inside Information
With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the Company:

— is aware of its obligations under the Listing Rules and the
SFO and the overriding principle that information which is
expected to be inside information should be announced once
it is the subject of a decision;

— has set up an inside information control team to supervise
inside information matters and report to the Board in a timely
manner;

— has implemented its own policy and reporting system based
on Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by
the Securities and Futures Commission; and

—  has established and implemented procedures for responding
to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability

The Company has renewed Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities
insurance for all the Directors and senior management of the
Company for the year 2021/2022. The insurance covers them
against costs, charges, expenses and liabilities incurred arising out
of corporate activities.
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Communications with Shareholders

The Directors recognise the importance of long-term support from
the shareholders of the Company. The Board highly respects the
shareholders’ rights to express their views and appreciates their
suggestions to the Company.

Our investor relations activities include:

— regular meetings (one-to-one/group meetings, roadshows or
site visits) with analysts and investors;

— conferences with analysts and the press to announce the
Company’s results;

— the holding of an AGM which provides an opportunity for the
shareholders to communicate directly with the Board;

— the publication of announcements, interim reports, annual
reports and/or circulars on a timely basis via the Company’s
and the Stock Exchange’s websites; and

— the availability of the latest information of the Group on the
Company’s website.

There is no change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Shareholder’s Rights

The AGM provides opportunities for the shareholders to meet and
raise questions to our Directors, management and the external
auditor.

The Company will arrange for the Chairman of the Board and the
respective chairman of each of the Board Committees to attend
the AGM to exchange views with shareholders and answer their
questions.

Any shareholder is encouraged and entitled to attend the AGM,
provided that their shares have been recorded in the register of
members of the Company. The notice of AGM will be given to
all shareholders at least 20 clear business days or 21 clear days
(whichever is longer) before the meeting.

The last annual general meeting of the Company was the 2021
annual general meeting (“2021 AGM"), held on 31 May 2021
at United Conference Centre (UCC), 10/F, United Centre, 95
Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong. All Directors and the external
auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, attended the 2021 AGM.
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At the 2021 AGM, separate resolutions including the re-election
of Directors, the re-appointment of auditor, the authorisation to
grant the general mandate to issue and repurchase of shares were
proposed. The Company adopted poll voting for all resolutions.

All resolutions put to shareholders at the 2021 AGM were passed.
The Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Link Market
Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited, was appointed as scrutineers to
monitor and count the poll votes cast at that meeting. The results
of the voting by poll were declared at the meeting and published
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The way by which shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting ("EGM")

The Directors, notwithstanding anything in the Company’s articles
of association shall, on the requisition of shareholders holding at
the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of such of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed
duly to convene an EGM.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business at Suites
1203-4, 12/F, Li Po Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong, and may consist of several documents in like form
each signed by one or more requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s Branch Share
Registrars and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include
the resolution in the agenda for the EGM.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of two months
from the said date.

The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with contact information of the
requisitionists and deposited at the Company Secretary at the
Company's principal place of business at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li Po
Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.



RERRAEBZENERF

MR BFAEIREBFIRASREFZE
RERBEN EZEHZENEMBA - EF 4
BEER EXEAXARAMEZTE M
(Mol BB B EFHETISRTEHANEI2E
1203-4%) TRAIME - BEERIEHAEA QA
MBRNBFELERE ITHHEEERZE
kABRER ARWEERNEZTSRLEESR
ArBERIARERGEERN -

BRI 2 B8 A 4F KRR A AR
SHRME T 2 BBREEE AN BRES
BROEEEEMT

o MERNBREBIASGLEX-—BLE
RER  RVI4BEEBRA -

e MERNBREFHIAEG LEBRARR—
R RIRBRANBRRBFRE LBEK
ARABMEM—ERZER &P21HEM
A e

REEBBENBRER

ARABERER BREERARALHORE
ER-BOEBUTEEAARAREER
K32

)
FEATTABERMORAWE

ES (852) 2828 9206

B BEEHETISREEBANE
12181203-4%

B ir@lansen.com.cn

E

BIRUTHABERMOIEEEBERE

ERr (86) 574 8804 6316

A T AERTERER
=1 T2 E [ 37 2 22858
(B4 : 315174)

B ir@lansen.com.cn

AR A B shwww . lansen.com.cn 7] 12 4t & ¥

MREEBEREER -

TEERBRE

Corporate Governance Report

The procedures for making proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

To put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM, the shareholders
should submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed
contact information to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li Po Chun
Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The request
will be verified with the Company’s Share Registrars and upon their
confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in the agenda
for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all shareholders for consideration
of the proposal raised by the shareholders concerned at an AGM or
EGM varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

° At least 14 days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
an ordinary resolution of the Company in an EGM.

o At least 21 days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
a special resolution of the Company in an EGM or any
resolution of the Company in an AGM.

Investor Relations Contacts

The Company values feedbacks from shareholders, investors and
the public. Enquiries and proposals are welcome and can be put to
the Company via the following means:

Hong Kong
Please contact our Company Secretary at:

By phone (852) 2828 9206

By post Suite 1203-4, 12/F., Li Po Chun Chambers,
189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

By e-mail ir@lansen.com.cn

The PRC

Please contact our Investor Relations Department at:

By phone (86) 574 8804 6316

By post 228 Xinfeng Road, Gaogiao Industrial Park, Haishu
District, Ningbo City, Zhejiang Province, PRC
(Postal code: 315174)

By e-mail ir@lansen.com.cn

The latest investor relations information is available on the
Company’s website at www.lansen.com.cn.
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To the shareholders of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lansen
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “"Group”) set out on pages 107 to 213,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the “Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

BDO Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Impairment assessment of intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and goodwill

(Refer to Notes 5, 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements)

The Group had intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
of US$22,850,000 and goodwill of US$6,824,000 as at 31
December 2021. Management has performed an impairment
review in accordance with International Accounting Standards 36
“Impairment of Assets”. Recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units are determined based on value in use calculations, which
include significant assumptions and judgements made by
management concerning the estimated future cash flows.

We identified the impairment assessment of intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and goodwill as a key audit matter because
of its significance to the consolidated financial statements and
because this area involves a significant degree of judgements and
estimation made by management, in particular the estimation of
future cash flows and discount rate. Key assumptions used in the
impairment model have been disclosed in Notes 19 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’'s impairment
assessment of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
goodwill included:

— Discussing cash flow projections with senior management of
the Group;

—  Assessing the reasonableness of the sources of data and key
assumptions used by management based on our knowledge
of the business and industry and by considering the historical
accuracy of budgeting;

—  Checking arithmetical accuracy of the impairment calculation;
and

—  Performing sensitivity analysis including assessing the effect of
a reasonably possible change in discount rate and cash flows.
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Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
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our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

3 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

3 conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Or Ying Ying, Anita
Practising Certificate Number: P07424

Hong Kong, 28 February 2022
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BE-T-—F+-A=+—HLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

—F-—F —ETF

2021 2020

Bt 5 FEx FET

Notes US$'000 Us$'000

KA Revenue 6 54,180 54,386

$HE A AR Cost of sales (19,771) (19,207)

EA Gross profit 34,409 35,179

E g A Other income 6 722 1,505

HENMDHA Selling and distribution expenses (17,366) (15,668)

TR S Administrative expenses (12,224) (11,453)
TRIEENERRE Loss allowance reversed/(recognised)

# o, (1R on financial assets 17 (787)
Feg g Profit from operations 5,558 8,776
H ML & WA K Other non-operating income and

X F 5 expenses, net 8 (4,618) 80,513
Hih 2B EN Fair value gain on other

N E W= financial liabilities 47 =
B 75 W2 A Finance income 9 3,938 4,076
B 75 B AR Finance costs 9 (1,532) (2,051)
JE(EREE AT 2B Fi/%  Share of post-tax result of associates

E (989) 88
R F7 18 B¢ A 2 R Profit before income tax 10 2,404 91,402
Frig i B 2 Income tax expense 12 (1,501) (3,197)
FERA Profit for the year 903 88,205
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HE-_T-—F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

—E--F —T_EF
2021 2020
Bt & FTEx FET
Notes Us$'000 US$'000
Hih 2 mEU = Other comprehensive income
HE e EF D= Item that may be reclassified
BmHE : subsequently to profit or loss:
—REBINEBESE — Exchange differences arising on
BPE 5 = %8 translation of foreign operations 788 5,765
BAEL & — B2 A FH Exchange differences reclassified to profit
BRBEHHDHEEEZ  or loss upon deemed disposal of an
B Z= 58 associate - 1,937
HEK B AR M EREFE Exchange difference reclassified to profit
HMOBERIETMER or loss upon disposal of subsidiaries
= 143 -
FEHM2EYKE Other comprehensive income for
(B FE) the year, net of tax 931 7,702
FE2EWNGEERE Total comprehensive income for
the year 1,834 95,907
AATEBAEMLRZR  Profit attributable to owners of the
Company 903 88,205
AATHEEAELEE  Total comprehensive income
Wi 4858 attributable to owners of the
Company 1,834 95,907
E AL
US cents UsS cents
R EF Earnings per share
— EXR#E — Basic and diluted 14 0.23 22.21
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MR-_ZT-_—F+_-_HA=+—H8 Asat 31 December 2021

—F-—F —ETF
2021 2020
Bt 5 FET F=T
Notes US$'000 Us$'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
M - WEKRE Property, plant and equipment 15 23,242 24,391
FREEE Right-of-use assets 16 1,950 2,450
&Y Investment property 17 627 633
EmAE Intangible assets 19 22,850 21,630
Bk Goodwill 20 6,824 6,824
REEENF 2 Interests in associates 21 2,196 6,862
57,689 62,790
REEE Current assets
VeS¢ Inventories 22 7,391 6,722
B 5 N E e IE Trade and other receivables 23 49,876 44,368
m—EBE A AFHERZ  Loan to an associate 24 8,855 8,425
FE U Tax recoverable 12 105
B AFEET AL ([#22 Financial assets at fair value through

T EEFAEZ]) SR profit or loss (“FVTPL")

BE 18 - 32,815
B RIRITE Pledged bank deposits 25 15,944 14,144
Be RS EEY Cash and cash equivalents 25 32,545 83,409

114,623 189,988
BEE Total assets 172,312 252,778
ERRAE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BARHE Capital and reserves
ADNTEEAEL#EZ  Equity attributable to owners of the

Company

fig 7% Share capital 26 3,773 3,972
% 17 7% (B Share premium 27 11,299 16,750
SN {5 1 Foreign exchange reserve 4,838 3,907
ARG Statutory reserve 10,621 10,228
R B 4 7 Retained profits 86,070 162,425
R Total equity 116,601 197,282
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R-ZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H Asat 31 December 2021

—E=-—F —ETF
2021 2020
B 5 FER FET
Notes Us$’000 Us$'000
eIl h=Ki Non-current liabilities
HEAE Lease liabilities 36 204 782
ELEFIEAGE Deferred tax liabilities 29 2,032 3,227
2,236 4,009
REBAE Current liabilities
N Borrowings 28 24,687 31,424
HEAaE Lease liabilities 36 336 394
mMEHIEARG Current tax liabilities 539 870
B 5 MEMENE Trade and other payables 30 26,589 17,272
SHBaE Contract liabilities 31 77 296
Hbepasd Other financial liabilities 32 1,247 1,231
53,475 51,487
BEE Total liabilities 55,711 55,496
REZREE Total equity and liabilities 172,312 252,778
REBEEFEE Net current assets 61,148 138,501
BEERARBER Total assets less current liabilities 118,837 201,291
F1072213BE WA KHREXD N —_ZE == The consolidated financial statements on pages 107 to 213 were
F-_A-t+ N \BEESoH &L ITRET approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28
WHATALTRERERSE : February 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:
EZE EFE
Director Director
BR 5 ZER
CHEN Li LIU Xuezi
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-T-—F+=-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

kA ROEE ERRG HERE LERE REEA BRR
Foreign
Share Share  Treasury exchange Statutory Retained Total
capital  premium shares reserve reserve profits equity
Txr Tin Fxr Txn Tin Txr Txn
US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000
(sr2e)  (Wsk27)  (Warar)  (Wesk27)  (MEE27)
(Note 26)  (Note 27)  (Note 27)  (Note 27)  (Note 27)
HZ-Z-25+-H=+-HLEEE Yearended 31 December 2020
W-ZE-FF-f—-A At 1 January 2020 3,972 16,750 — (3,795) 9,901 74,547 101,375
EE R Profit for the year — - — — — 88,205 88,205
EEAMRERS Other comprehensive income for the year
— BEBNEREECERZS — Exchange differences arising on translation
of foreign operations — - — 5,765 - — 5,765
B & — B A 1N Rl R Exchange differences reclassified to profit or
BB RGENELZR loss upon deemed disposal of an associate — - — 1,937 - — 1,937
FERENREH Total comprehensive income for the year = = — 7,702 — 88205 95907
ERTLTRE Appropriations to statutory reserve — — — — 673 (673) -
HEEmEBAR Deregistration of a subsidiary — = = = (346) 346 =
RZBZEEF-R=1-H At 31 December 2020 3,972 16,750 — 3,907 10,228 162,425 197,282
BE-Z--F+-B=1-HILEE Yearended 31 December 2021
WZE--F-f—H At 1 January 2021 3,972 16,750 - 3,907 10,228 162,425 197,282
M8 (Fi3E13) Dividends (Note 13) - - - - — (76,865)  (76,865)
R in EIEE (M3E27) Shares repurchase (Note 27) - - (5,650) — — — (5,650)
FHEEBERN RN (H:E27) Cancellation of shares repurchased (Note 27) (199) (5,451) 5,650 - - - —
BEAANETRS Transactions with owners (199) (5,451) — — — (76,865  (82,515)
FREF Profit for the year - - - - - 903 903
EEEMREYNE Other comprehensive income for the year
—REENEBEE L EAER — Exchange differences arising on translation
of foreign operations - - — 788 - — 788
HERBRARNERRENIRE Exchange difference reclassified to profit or
BafERER loss upon disposal of subsidiaries - - - 143 - - 143
FEEZANGLE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 931 - 903 1,834
BRTLERE Appropriations to statutory reserve — - - — 393 (393) —
RZE-—-F+-fA=1—-H At 31 December 2021 3,773 11,299 - 4,838 10,621 86,070 116,601
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-_T-—F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

—F=—F —ET-F
2021 2020
FEx F=T
UsS$'000 Us$'000
REREERCEESRE Cash flows from operating activities
& FT 15 B4 BT s A Profit before income tax 2,404 91,402
T Adjustments for:
B 75 Bk 2K Finance costs 1,532 2,051
RITH BUA Bank interest income (1,470) (558)
BB E R R 2 RB R EE Share of post-tax result of associates 989 (88)
mEERERE Provision for impairment of intangible
assets 232 2,946
M= - BE REERE Provision for impairment of property,
B plant and equipment 17 58
EAEEERERE Provision for impairment of right-of-use
assets 78 210
A — B & A B R = Y Provision for impairment of interests in
VERIEREL ] associates 3,801 386
PREGFERERE Provision for impairment of obsolete
inventories 383 222
R AR Provision for impairment of goodwill — 1
T ERE N EEEE Loss allowance (reversed)/recognised
(#m) TR on financial guarantee contract (515) 927
CREENSEREG Loss allowance (reversed)/recognised
(Bm) HER on financial assets 17) 787
Y BB MERETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 2,347 2,500
WEMERE Depreciation of investment property 21 10
CREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 522 560
HEME  BMEEZEN Loss on disposals of property, plant and
&5 18 equipment 7 131
15 & 58 Write off of inventories 464 24
& BB E S Write off of financial assets 18 34
HEthemaEn A FERS Fair value gain on other financial liabilities (47) —
IRATR IFFEERN IR Gain on early termination of lease (198) (13)
RAEL & —FHEEE AR Gain on deemed disposal of an associate
Y &= — (45,618)
HEHEB AR MK Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (18) —
BAFEFAEBZAS @ Realised loss/(gain) from financial assets at
ﬁ?mﬁ?‘fﬁﬁiﬂé/(uﬂz— FVTPL 1,111 (29,252)
BAFEFAEBZNE/M Unrealised gain from financial assets at
BEMRER S FVTPL — (10,396)
BERNFEGFABZED Exchange differences arising on translation
SRIEEMEN 53 of financial assets at FVTPL — (3,423)
E@ﬁ%?ﬁ’&¥fﬁ‘+?@ﬁ 5 Transaction costs and other tax in
TRIEEIDEREEDN connection with partial disposal of
R 5 AR N E A F A financial assets at FVTPL 7 3,917
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE-T-—F+=-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

—F=—F —E-THF
2021 2020
FEx F=T
UsS$'000 Us$'000
EEESEHA KB Operating profit before working capital
changes 11,668 16,818
FE g m (Increase)/Decrease in inventories (1,361) 123
B 5 N H b fE U 2k 18 R > Decrease in trade and other receivables 3,454 8,480
B 5 % H b e < 3k 18 R Decrease in trade and other payables (101) (1,301)
BHEaERD Decrease in contract liabilities (199) (14)
REEEZH T Cash generated from operations 13,461 24,106
27 & Interest paid (1,469) (1,991)
BEAFT1EH Income tax paid (2,975) (2,416)
AEE T B I 5 HEE Net cash generated from operating activities 9,017 19,699
RERETBHZHERE Cash flows from investing activities
SHEMAIRITFER (B IN) R (Increase)/Decrease in pledged bank deposits (1,452) 14,253
BEWME  WENMKME Purchase of property, plant and equipment (678) (718)
BEELEE Purchase of intangible assets (1,031) (2,085)
wEEERAFES AIBZE  Proceeds from partial disposal of financial
TREESNDEE FTSFIA  assets at FVTPL 31,604 67,086
M E RN FEE AR S E Transaction costs and other tax in
BEDDEAXBBEHZTSMA  connection with partial disposal of
K E b Fi A financial assets at FVTPL (7) (3,917)
W B IR A B AR Dividends received from financial assets at
TREERE FVTPL 56 459
HEWE  MERREMS Proceeds from disposals of property, plant
I8 and equipment 52 59
) — BB & D AR 2 B Advance to an associate (68) (1,460)
& — M B R R TS 3R Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries 209 —
B U F| B Interest received 1,470 558
RETEELH T FEE Net cash generated from investing activities 30,155 74,235
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE-_T-—F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

—F-—F —ETF
2021 2020
Bt & FTEx FET
Notes Us$'000 US$'000
REMETHZ2RERE Cash flows from financing
activities
BTS2 FE Proceeds from borrowings 28 36,570 38,184
BEBRZNIEA Repayment of borrowings 28 (43,944) (69,472)
B E Dividends paid (76,865) —
R% 17 [2] B8 =k 38 Payment for repurchase of shares (5,650) —
BEHEEENAESEH Repayment of principal portion of lease
liabilities 36 (481) (471)
BEEE AT B L FEE Net cash used in financing activities (90,370) (31,759)
BEeRBELEBEYM 2 Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
F O ) cash equivalents (51,198) 62,175
FORERIAESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 83,409 20,363
& REE) w2 Effects of exchange rate changes 334 871
FRESRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year 32,545 83,409
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HEZZT-_—F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

Corporate Information

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is an exempted limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 10 September 2009 and its shares have
been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 7 May 2010.
The Company’s registered office is located at Windward 3,
Regatta Office Park, P. O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-
1108, the Cayman Islands. The Company’s principal place
of business is located at Suites 1203-4, 12/F., Li Po Chun
Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
(together with the Company referred to as the “Group”) are
manufacturing and trading of pharmaceutical products. The
principal activities of the Group are carried out in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") and are set out in Note 34.
There were no significant changes in the Group’s operations
during the year.

The Company is a subsidiary of Cathay International Holdings
Limited (“CIH"), a company incorporated in Bermuda. The
directors consider the immediate and ultimate holding
company to be Cathay International Pharma Manufacture and
Distribution (China) Limited and CIH respectively.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), International Accounting Standards
(“IASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred
to as “IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for certain financial
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair values at
the end of each of the reporting period. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in United States Dollars
("US$"), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.
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3. Adoption of New or Revised IFRSs

3.1

Adoption of revised IFRSs — effective on 1 January
2021

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following amended IFRSs issued by the IASB,
which are relevant to and effective for the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning on 1 January 2021:

Amendments to IAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
IFRS 4, IFRS 7, IFRS 9

and IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions

The adoption of these amendments have no material
impact on the Group’'s consolidated financial
statements.
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Adoption of New or Revised IFRSs (Continued)

3.2 New or revised IFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective
The following new or revised IFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group.

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current®

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS Disclosure of Accounting Policies®
1 and IFRS Practice

Statement 2
Amendments to IAS 8

Definition of Accounting Estimates’®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction’

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds

before Intended Use?
Amendments to IFRS 3

Reference to the Conceptual Framework”

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

igf>H] REBEBHELTH
BH#’
ARe:ERE16% D% BERRE—
if>H] ERTERRANAE
g’
BB B 7 g o 2 S ER MR
BIRMEET
PR B 75 4 5 22 REZEHBENA
ERE A S5 REMEVEEHE
EH|E28% 8 155] HER
B PR Bt 75 4 5 2 “E--FXA=tH
F16RMERT 2 B H#COVID-19-1
@%fﬁ@%?ﬁi*

mﬁffﬁﬁiﬂﬂ‘
T-\FE-2C
TEZERNE

ARG EAIE3TH
SEH

BB REEAE17
B AT — MR ERAS
B PR B T R 25 2B
Bl B B IR B
9RMET — 2RI
B BRMBREE
E‘J% 1658 8)E 3T R
TEiu ’Ea‘l%‘l Sfﬁ']

{/ET ﬁ%z
ERaN— BTN
B A’

and IAS 28

Amendment to IFRS 16

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2018-2020

Amendments to IAS 37

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

COVID-19-Related Rent Concession beyond
30 June 2021'

Amendments to IFRS 1 — First-time Adoption
of IFRS; Amendments to IFRS 9 — Financial
Instruments; Amendments to IFRS 16 and
Amendments to IAS 41 — Agriculture’

Onerous Contracts — Cost of fulfilling a
Contract’
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3. Adoption of New or Revised IFRSs (Continued)

3.2 New or revised IFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

4 The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or

contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning on
or after a date to be determined.

Amendments to IAS 1

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting period,
specify that classification is unaffected by expectations
about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of a liability and explain that rights are in
existence if covenants are complied with at the end of
the reporting period. The amendments also introduce a
definition of “settlement” to make clear that settlement
refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity
instruments, other assets or services.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments and revision in the
future will have an impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Except for those mentioned above, these amendments
are unlikely to have material impact on the Group’s
consolidated results and consolidated financial position
and/or the disclosures to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group upon application.

In prior year, net exchange gain derived from cash and cash
equivalents of approximately US$3,518,000 and bank interest
income of approximately US$558,000 were included under
administrative expenses and other income respectively. From
2021 onwards, those net exchange gain and bank interest
income are presented under finance income and finance
costs, to more appropriately reflect the nature of these items.
The comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to
the current year's presentation.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements are summarised
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated.

Basis of consolidation

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in which
case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interest in a
subsidiary is carried at cost less any impairment losses, if any.
The result of the subsidiary is accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable at the end
of the reporting period. All dividends whether received out of
the investee’s pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised in
the Company’s profit or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit (“CGU")
is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets. A CGU to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit
pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each asset in
the unit. However, the loss allocated to each asset will not
reduce the individual asset’s carrying amount to below its fair
value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value in use (if
determinable), whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed
in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate is described below in the section heading
“Associates”.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint
arrangement. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, interests in associates are initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associates. When the Group’s share of losses of associates
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associates (which
includes any longterm interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associates.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes
associates. On acquisition of the interests in associates, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in
the period in which the investment is acquired.

When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets (“IAS 36”) as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had impairment
loss been recognised for the interests in associates in prior
years.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be associates, or
when the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as
held for sale. When the Group retains interests in the former
associates and the retained interest is a financial asset,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition in accordance with IFRS 9. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate at the date the
equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of partial
interests in the associates is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associates. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associates on
the same basis as would be required if that associates had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associates would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interests in associates
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if
that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associates that are not
related to the Group.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than properties under
construction as described below) are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write
off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment (other
than properties under construction) less their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, estimated
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The
estimated useful lives of major categories of property, plant
and equipment are as follows:

Building and plant 20-50 years
Machineries 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-12 years
Furniture and equipment 5-15 years

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the net sales proceeds and its carrying amount, and
is recognised in profit or loss on disposal.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation but not for sale in the ordinary
course of business, use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost of investment properties over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful life of investment property is 40 years.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the assets (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research and
development costs

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are recognised initially
at cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives. Amortisation commences
when the intangible assets are available for use. The
amortisation expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any subsequent impairment accumulated losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research and
development costs (Continued)

Research and development costs

An intangible asset arising from development expenditure on
an individual project is recognised provided they meet the
following recognition requirements:

o demonstration of technical feasibility of completing the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

o there is intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

o the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated;

o the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sale;

. sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

o the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can
be reliably measured.

Development expenditure which does not meet the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of internal
projects are recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

Capitalised development costs that have a finite useful life
are amortised on straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives, when the products are available for use.
The amortisation expense is recognised in profit or loss.
Capitalised development costs with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment annually.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwill)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually by comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwill) (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets that
have a finite useful life to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the
estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from the
asset (or CGU), discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets
or CGU.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
However, the decrease shall be recognised in other
comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance
existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. The
decrease recognised in other comprehensive income reduces
the amount accumulated in the equity under the heading of
revaluation reserve.

BAAE B B2 iR iR B PR A &) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 127



mEVBHRRWE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-—F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

TESTRRME (#)
BEREREREE (BERN) WREE (&)

B R EREE (BRI BRERS
BHEEERE  AEE (KRS ELEM)
MEEESRASELETHNMETATER
T EEBNNEEENSBEURESR
ERNBEFREYEERAREBRNIS
U E YRR E B (HOBR (TR 37 B2 Sk
) c TABE R ANERRRAER -
A MEGEERELAMCERER
AR RRAX - RIBOBEBERRNE
m AR AU -

EWMIA

(i) ZzHEE
TRMEE(LEEABEMLMONE
5 YRR SN B IR IR 2 FE
PR BTERRENRHKAR
FFEFRRAFEFARENERE
E) UEBABENONESE
WK BN X B ERTE °

AERERTABENLEN SR
BENRZ A (AIXAEEAREE
HEEZEEZR) R -RES
TABESHERBESALERRE
— AR T 5 48 A1 S AE I B E B B
AR ERMEE -

it

[ =

BATTETEANEREERE
BenERBABRERXNAR
BRABRELEE -

A oAl =
ot

gl

128 Annual Report 2021 4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwill) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss of tangible and intangible assets
(other than goodwill) subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of any
depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. All reversals are
recognised in the profit or loss immediately. However, to
the extent that an impairment on the revalued asset was
previously recognised as an expense in the profit or loss, a
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised as income in
the profit or loss.

Financial instruments

(i) Financial assets
A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Financial assets (Continued)
Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets
held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified and
measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to
be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), as described
above, debt instruments may be designated at FVTPL on
initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss unless
the dividend income clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investments. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in
fair value, dividends and interest income are recognised
in profit or loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade receivables and other
debt financial assets measured at amortised cost. The
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting period and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs
that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall
is then discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade receivables using IFRS 9 simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. For
other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on the
12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for the
purposes of assessing impairment. In assessing whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition of financial guarantee contracts,
the Group considers the changes in the risk that the
specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrate otherwise.

Credit-impaired financial assets

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is more
than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.

Definition of default

The Group classifies credit risk on financial assets
as disclosed in Note 38. The internal credit risk
ratings are estimated based on qualitative (such as
customers’ operating conditions, financial positions,
etc.) and quantitative factors (mainly includes past due
information of the receivables).
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
Definition of default (Continued)

The Group considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources which indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in
full. Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off of the extent that there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECLs

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECLs reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECLs is estimated as the weighted
average of the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, with the respective risks of a default
occurring as the weights, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECLs (Continued)
For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required
to make payments only in the event of a default by the
debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument
that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the expected losses
is the present value of the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less
any amounts that the Group expects to receive from the
holder, the debtor or any other party.

Where ECLs is measured on a collective basis or cater
for cases where evidence at the individual instrument
level may not yet be available, the financial instruments
are grouped on the basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's
other receivables and finance lease receivables are
each assessed as a separate group.);

3 Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

(iii) Financial liabilities
The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are initially measured at
fair value and financial liabilities at amortised cost
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(iii) Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL if the following criteria are met:
(i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the liabilities or recognising gains or losses
on them on a different basis; (ii) the liabilities are part
of a group of financial liabilities which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or (iii) the financial liability contains an
embedded derivative that would need to be separately

recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities
at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for the gains and losses arising
from the Group’s own credit risk which are presented
in other comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement of
profit or loss does not include any interest charged on

these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities are obligations to pay cash or other
financial assets (including borrowings, lease liabilities,
trade and other payables) and are recognised when the
Group becomes party to the contractual obligations of
the instrument. They are initially recorded at fair value,
net of issue costs. They are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using effective interest method.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

amortisation process.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv) Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the original or modified terms of debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and
not designated as at FVTPL is initially recognised at
its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher
of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance, being the ECLs
provision measured in accordance with principles of the
accounting policy set out in above; and (i) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amount of income recognised over the guarantee
period.

(v) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

(vi) Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(vii) Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with IFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability,
the equity instruments issued are the consideration
paid and are recognised initially and measured at their
fair value on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of the equity
instruments issued cannot be reliably measured, the
equity instruments are measured to reflect the fair value
of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or
part thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at costs, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs
and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less all estimated costs of completion and
costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at banks and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group's
performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal
outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised
assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of the assets
or liabilities is realised or settled and that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also
recognised directly in equity.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic environment
in which they operate (the “functional currency”) are
recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions
occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities
are translated at the rates ruling at the end of reporting
period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income, in
which case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. US$) at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the rates approximating to those
ruling when the transactions took place are used. All assets
and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate
ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the foreign exchange reserve
relating to that operation up to the date of disposal are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leases

The Group as lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or finance
leases) are required to be capitalised in the statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
but accounting policy choices exist for an entity to choose
not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/
or (ii) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value.
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which
at the commencement date have a lease term less than 12
months. The lease payments associated with those leases
have been expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability; (i) any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease incentives received;
(iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories. The Group measures
the right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under cost
model, the right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use of the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at
the commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable: (ii) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be payable
by the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise
price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option; and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying amount
to reflect interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and (iii)
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment
or lease modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a
change in assessment to purchase the underlying asset.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(“MPF Scheme”), for all of its employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries or
the maximum mandatory contribution as required by the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
its payroll costs, subject to a certain ceiling, as stipulated by
the relevant regulations.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions. The contributions recognised in respect to
defined contribution benefit plans are expenses as they fall
due. Liabilities and assets may be recognised if underpayment
or prepayment has occurred and are included in current
liabilities or current assets as they are normally of a short
term nature.

Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require
a substantial period of time to be ready for their intended
use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions. Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate. Government grants relating to the purchase of
assets are included in liabilities as deferred government grants
in the consolidated statement of financial position and are
recognised in profit or loss on straight-line method over the
expected lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable and are recognised as
“Other income”, rather than reducing the related expense.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable will
result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably
estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member to that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party,

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Company’s parent.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and for their review of the performance of those
components.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segments under IFRS 8 are the same as those used in its
consolidated financial statements prepared under IFRS, except
that:

o share of post-tax results of associates accounted for
using equity method;

o other non-operating income and expenses;

. finance income;

. finance costs; and

o certain income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating

segment are not included in arriving at the operating
results of the operating segment.

A4 B E R AR AR Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 145



e MR ME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_ZT-_—F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

EEg A RAK
REBASENSHHRE  EFAMN
WIHREMKERMBENEERAE
BREEED - At R - fBFt R
HEBRKRDABELRLERSEGRN
HAEZRER BERERBINZT
flat o

BEtREEBRRESEEERS - 2R
HEHERMER - HIETERZEZY
A AIERT BT EAR RERR B RT &
B2 A1 MORRERE - RIRNMERTHIRE &R
2R HA PR e R

ESRUREZEBERE
AEBEERBEREEAFESRZHHIA
CEREEER BEXNDERAFE
UEBRER (AREPRE)NZREP
MR E R ER -

BREERSVNERAEEEEERIN
BAR - AEBEREBRERERE AR
FEsEEBRAREFEIEER - flm -
WAL ERR ARG ERK—FAE
b B ERREREDNHERE N
BELRHORETHE -RERSHK
BEBRIMBNZTTEEEN LD
T R RE M ST AV L -

HBEBRINEDNER  BRKHERR
LREHMEERE 2N EBIENTER
—HEZNMGEH - BHEEBENSER
HIRFWBCMBRLER RN RSB -
AEBNESLEEBRLRNYLEN
MR EERKREP RAREEZ
WER - BRAAKEE S EVFKENE
HEEBEENNKE38HE -

146 Annual Report 2021 4

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Loss allowance of trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due
for grouping of various customers that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by customer type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’'s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults
in the manufacturing sector, the historical default are
adjusted. At the end of each of the reporting period, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not
be representative of customers’ default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables
is disclosed in Note 38.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

Estimated provision for inventories

The Group writes down its inventories to net realisable
value when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be realised. The identification of
obsolescence requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the estimate is different from the original amount,
such difference will impact the carrying value of inventories
and net realisable value for the periods in which such
estimate is changed. Management assesses the net realisable
value of the inventories and considers that the provision for
inventories impairment is adequate and reasonable at the end
of each of the reporting period. As at 31 December 2021,
provision for obsolete inventories of US$1,485,000 was made
against the carrying value of inventories (Note 22).

Useful lives of intangible assets

Management estimates the development costs, which
represented the intellectual property rights generated
internally in pharmaceutical industry and technical knowhow
with perpetual royalty-free license with no termination,
have indefinite useful lives as they believe that there is no
foreseeable limit on the period of time over which these
intangibles are expected to provide cash flows and these
intellectual property rights can be renewable in a period of
time at minimal cost and the products are continuing in the
market.

The estimated useful lives of the exclusive distribution rights
and technical know-how were made by the management
with reference to the legal limits on the use of the assets
and the estimated periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from the use of intangible assets. It
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations,
changed customer behavior and competitor actions in
response to industry cycles.

Management will increase the amortisation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated useful lives, or
will recognise impairment loss when future cash flows are less
than expectation and fall below the carrying amount of the
intangible assets.

BAAE B B2 iR iR B PR A &) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 147



mEVBHRRWE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-—F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

EZgH A RAE (&)

B EHR RIELR H
AEBEGRTERBTEMEKR - BE
T4 TR 5 1 < 3R B A B 50 T A B FRD S
AEHERHLE - —REBHFAEZER
HRAEMEENRET AL THEE -
AEBE2ERITHOEREHIAR T AL
BHERGAERTIE EXFFEN
RERBERERVNCENESETE
AIFREZRRTEETHRNMBEHRK
EETH IR -

EERE
ErEERaRETETmE I REE
WREEABUMEREE- TEEH
BEETSEASEEMFAEHRERSE
EBUNARBESRERAENITE
EERBE EERAREASRER
RIEE - BIAJRE IR EEE RN
—— %+ A=+—H8 BHEFREEA
6,824,000 7T ° AT YR BT E B R
M sE204% 5 -

B EERE
EREEMNREBEDREOERLHE
AlESENEERER A RESEA
AFEREHKARERABENRSE
N2ERBEREPREEREERE
TE o M ANSEEEE E T LR ENR
X (BEREREEIFPRAHITIRER
REERERERBRR) KT HRER
AAFREBRKEATE AmMyL
AEENFBERRAEMBERE -R=2F
—_—F+-A=1+—H EFEEETA
{8 /522,850,000 7t (Ff5E19) °

148 Annual Report 2021 4

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

Current income tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC and Hong
Kong. Significant judgement is required in determining
the amount of the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxations. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises taxes based on estimates of the likely outcome
with reference to current tax laws and practices. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the CGUs to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, an impairment loss may arise. As
at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of goodwill was
US$6,824,000. Details of the recoverable amount calculation
are disclosed in Note 20.

Impairment of intangible assets

Impairment losses for intangible assets are recognised for the
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use, are determined with
reference to the best information available at the end of
the reporting period. Changing the assumptions selected
by the Group’s management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the operating and growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test and
as a result affect the Group’s financial position and financial
performance. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount
of intangible assets was US$22,850,000 (Note 19).
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s property, plant and equipment comprise a
significant portion of the Group’s total assets. Changes in
technology or industry conditions may cause the estimated
period of use or the value of these assets to change. Property,
plant and equipment, subjects to depreciation, is reviewed at
least annually to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. The recoverable amount is estimated whenever
events or changes in circumstances have indicated that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

Fair value of contingent consideration

The Group determines the fair value of contingent
consideration of purchase of intangible assets as disclosed
in Note 38 based on the forecast of future performance
results of the related pharmaceutical product and terms
of acquisition agreement. The fair value of contingent
consideration will be revised upward or downward where
future performance results are different from previous
forecast and as a result, the change of fair value of contingent
consideration will affect the Group’s financial position and
financial performance. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying
amount of contingent consideration/other financial liabilities
was US$1,247,000 (Note 32).

Estimating the incremental borrowing rate for lease
liabilities

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate to measure lease liabilities. The incremental borrowing
rate is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The
incremental borrowing rate therefore reflects what the Group
“would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available or when it needs to be adjusted
to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group
estimates the incremental borrowing rate using observable
inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is
required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s standalone credit rating).
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

Classification of equity investment in Zhejiang Starry
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Starry”)

On 26 April 2020, since the director of the Group’'s
subsidiaries was ceased to be a director of Starry, the Group
did not have the right to exercise significant influence on
Starry and accordingly derecognised its interests in Starry as
an associate of the Group. They are classified as financial
assets at FVTPL according to the guidance in IFRS 9. This
classification requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluated the intention of holding the
shares of Starry at inception.

Change in value of financial assets at FVTPL is recognised
in profit or loss as part of other non-operating income and
expenses, net.

WA R H A Revenue and Other Income
AEBRFEFRNEEFEAAMEHRAR An analysis of the Group's revenue which are generated from
HEM AR DTET : contracts with customers and other income for the years are
as follows:
—E-—F —ETHF
2021 2020
FTErx F=E=T
Us$'000 US$'000
HEEmHBA Revenue from sales of goods 54,180 54,386
H g A Other income
RATK LA ERN K Gain on early termination of lease 198 13
BT By & (BT 3E) Government grants (Note) 104 370
Hit Others 420 1,122
722 1,505
B &E Note:
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The Group received grants from the local government in the PRC as recognition
of the Group’s development of high-technology pharmaceutical products. The
grants received were not subject to any conditions.

In addition, during the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received
government grants of Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$") 162,000 (equivalent
to US$21,000) from Employment Support Scheme (“ESS”) under the
Anti-pandemic Fund launched by the government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the PRC supporting the payroll of the Group’s
employees. Under the ESS, the Group had to commit to spend these grants on
payroll expenses, and not reduce employee head count below prescribed levels
for a specified period of time. The grant was allocated to the consolidated
profit or loss to match the relevant costs incurred. The Group did not have
other unfulfilled obligations relating to this programme.
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Segment Information

Information reported to the executive managing director,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance based on the types of goods delivered.

The Group’s reportable and operating segments under IFRS 8

Operating segments (“IFRS 8") are as follows:

— Pharmaceuticals: development, production and sale
of specialty pharmaceuticals mainly used in the
field of rheumatology and dermatology and other
pharmaceuticals

—  Cosmetic products: sale of cosmetic products

—  Healthcare products: development, production and sale
of healthcare products

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results from operations by reportable and operating segments.

For the year ended 31 December 2021

ga X3Em REER @t
Cosmetic Healthcare
Pharmaceuticals products products Total
TER TER T%n T%n
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
BF2HDEBIA Reportable segment revenue 51,359 252 2,569 54,180
RTERH P&/ (BR Reportable segment profit/(loss) 17,641 (812) 214 17,043
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2EER (&)
BE_Z-Z2F+-A=1T-HLFE

—ZT-—F+=-A=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

Segment Information (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE FAEm EEER @B
Cosmetic Healthcare
Pharmaceuticals products products Total
FET FEL TEL FEL
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000
BY2HDEBRA Reportable segment revenue 51,504 132 2,750 54,386
BTERABEHN/ (H8) Reportable segment profit/(loss) 21,349 (1,827) (1) 19,511

EXFE®RDIBAERBEINER T
FEVA o REE KB FE I &S
F'Eﬁﬁéi%"

AEEEED MR ENBERE A M
WMEREMNAKEE R HEIBOLH IR
LN

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no
inter-segment sales in the current year and prior year.

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconciled to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in
the consolidated financial statements is as follows:

—E-—F —EFTF

2021 2020

FEx FET

US$'000 Us$'000

AT EMmD I miEE Total results of reportable segment profit 17,043 19,511

FE{REt & N RGBT e Share of post-tax result of associates (989) 88
E it IER &g A R B %% Other non-operating income and expenses,

net (4,618) 80,513

Ko EEBKA Unallocated income 769 1,505

RAoMEHZ Unallocated expenses (12,207) (12,240)

R 3 ON Finance income 3,938 4,076

B 7 AR 7N Finance costs (1,532) (2,051)

& BT 15 74 Bl Vi ) Profit before income tax 2,404 91,402

BRR B s S R E8E T KL D HH
”Sﬁﬂz%ﬁiﬁﬁt?miﬁtﬂiﬁlm 5T I
R—H-BATERH IR, (FHB) &
X“*BE‘J%?TI/(%J%)/D@%E& D 3H 7
Yo TIREEEERRAEREERSD
R FZBETERENTTESE -

FEEHERRIMBRRERES  HMIEL
MR A R R BBWRA - 5
RAME FRARSZHADEZEETZ
ﬁ“% AAETMABEEEZEER

/\FHE/\\H:F{E/\_Lﬂizim//\%EE?;&/\J
XEBEWETER o
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The accounting policies of the operating segments under IFRS
8 are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in Note 4. Reportable segment profit/(loss) represents the
gross profit/(loss) less selling and distribution expenses by
each segment. This is the measure reported to the CODM
for the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment.

Share of post-tax result of associates, other non-operating
income and expenses, net, finance income, finance costs
and certain income and expenses are not allocated to the
reportable segments as they are not included in the measure
of the results of reportable segment that is used by CODM
for assessment of segment performance.
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PEER (&
BBIINBEFPHHEEEARAEERBEES
T —F+_A=+—HIEFEZRKA
2 10%3k LA E o U A 498,491,000 7T J5
REBEES T —(IIBEFHHEE
EAREABEE-_ZE-_ZEFE+_-_A=+—
BIEFEZWAZ10%3A £ o

AEECDER LEAEKRM GRS EL
FIVSRAE P AT F M e B R
RERFAFHE—FINTZEOZH
TERHEE-

ETRT HEFANMBRAREE
W R AR D

HEZZT-_—F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

Segment Information (Continued)

No external customer contributed 10% or more of the
Group’'s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021.
Revenue of approximately US$8,491,000 was derived from
sales to an external customer under pharmaceuticals segment,
which contributed 10% or more of the Group’s revenue
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers not to disclose the
remaining performance obligations under the contracts that
have an original expected duration of one year or less.

In the following table, revenue from contracts with customers
is disaggregated by primary geographical market and timing
of revenue recognition:

—E-—F —EFF
2021 2020
FTErR F=E=T
Us$'000 US$'000

FTEMET S Primary geographical markets
R (F 5D The PRC (domicile) 52,037 52,116
NERIN Overseas 2,143 2,270
54,180 54,386

AR 2B Timing of revenue recognition
1 4 o S i B At a point in time 54,180 54,386

EPMHBEUENNEEMNUERE
o RRAR/NFASEHSEMKILAIKR
BiERAR - MAKEEE I &I
X o ARENETEZENRTEBBKL
KRB E it - B B ER B s
RIFESRAT M EMWEM 5 WRIEAE
BEEHER -

WREFE  ARBHFAERBEE
BT RDE -

HRITEERRETELERRAERD
MEEXIDHBABES  HAE2IE
EF

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location to which the goods were delivered. The Company is
an investment holding company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands where the Group does not have any activities, the
Group has the majority of its operations and workforce in
the PRC, and therefore, the PRC is considered as the Group’s
country of domicile for the purpose of the disclosures as
required by IFRS 8.

Almost all of the non-current assets of the Group were
located in the PRC in both years.

No segment assets or segment liabilities is presented as they
are not regularly reported to the CODM.
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8.

Hth FEEM R AR FE 8.

Other Non-Operating Income and Expenses,

net
—E-—F —EFTF
2021 2020
FEx FET
US$’'000 Us$'000
BRAFEFAEBZNESREER Realised (loss)/gain from financial
21 (BE) s () assets at FVTPL (Note) (1,111) 29,252
HHEERATEFAERN Transaction costs and other tax in
TREEI D E=EED connection with partial disposal of
TSRS K E A B 18 financial assets at FVTPL (7) (3,917)
WAL E —HEE QA8 K= Gain on deemed disposal of an
associate - 45,618
BEATESFABRNESEEER  Unrealised gain from financial assets at
ANEIBE U S FVTPL - 10,396
BmERATFEFTABRRD Exchange difference arising on
SHEEMEN = translation of financial assets at
FVTPL - 3,423
A R E R (FTEE19) Provision for impairment of intangible
assets (Note 19) (232) (2,946)
B & A B R RE 2= AY Provision for impairment of interests in
BB B associates (3,801) (386)
B IERE A EBEE Loss allowance reversed/(recognised)
BE S (HER) on financial guarantee contract 515 (927)
& B A A A e Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 18 —
(4,618) 80,513
B EE - Note:

RBE_Z-_Z4+_A=+—BLEE A5H
NEBBELRRZMBBRMISER P LES ££6,149,867
REIAMRG - FHEEEESBRARBTARE]
75.987C « EA SR (RS AREAMTIE)
25,335,000 7T c RIHE B Az 1& - AERER A
AUBBHEEREE - -_TF+_A=1+—HBH
1.3% °

RBEE-T=—F+=-A=1+T—HLEFE £5E
REBBLRGMBBMERSIELENBHTHE
793,252,493k Bl A %D - FHERATRARE
63.4370 F EAZIREE (MBI SKANREMFHIE)
1,118,000% T - R E#=E AEEXTHRFE
R Bl RS AR D ©
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had disposed of a total
of 6,149,867 shares of Starry via on-market sales on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, at the average price of Renminbi (“RMB”) 75.98 per share and
resulting in a realised gain of US$25,335,000 (net of transaction costs and
other tax). After the partial disposal, the Group's equity interest in Starry was
reduced to 1.3% as at 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had disposed of all the
remaining 3,252,493 shares of Starry via on-market sales on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, at the average price of RMB63.43 per share and resulting in a
realised loss of US$1,118,000 (net of transaction costs and other tax). After the
disposal, the Group does not hold any shares of Starry.
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B 7 W B B 7% B AR 9. Finance Income and Finance Costs
—E-—F —E-TF
2021 2020
FEx FET
Uss$’000 Us$'000
B H WA Finance income
RITH B WA Bank interest income 1,470 558
T H I & F R Net exchange gain 2,468 3,518
3,938 4,076
B B AR Finance costs
IRITERF A Interest on bank borrowings 1,321 1,853
HEBEF L (MsE36) Interest on lease liabilities (Note 36) 47 44
ERRRME R FHEE & Cross guarantee commission fee paid to
RELER (MFE37) a fellow subsidiary (Note 37) 101 94
SAREITIR (M1 5E38(b)) Unwinding of discount on contingent
consideration (Note 38(b)) 63 60
1,532 2,051
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10. Profit before Income Tax
The Group’s profit before income tax has been arrived at

10. BRFT1S B A0 s 7
AEENR G BAER @R (G

A) I BEEH : after charging/(crediting):
—E-—F —ETHF
2021 2020
FEx F=T
US$'000 Us$'000
A G Auditors’ remuneration
— ZERTE — Audit services 274 275
— JEZH RS — Non-audit services 47 92
BRAERINEFEENA (M) Cost of inventories recognised as
expenses (Note) 19,771 19,207
FREEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 522 560
KREWMERE Depreciation of investment property 21 10
mE - BERREITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 2,347 2,500
mLEERERE Provision for impairment of intangible
assets 232 2,946
M BERZERE Provision for impairment of property,
B 5 plant and equipment 17 58
ERAEEERERE Provision for impairment of right-of-use
assets 78 210
PREGFERMERE Provision for impairment of obsolete
inventories 383 222
I ERA L E R E Loss allowance (reversed)/recognised
(@) TR on financial guarantee contract (515) 927
CRMEEMNEBREE (D) Loss allowance (reversed)/recognised
R on financial assets 17) 787
PE 5 UK 25 5 58 Net exchange gain (2,468) (3,518)
WEMERNHES WA Rental income from investment
property (23) (20)
i 2% B 2N Research and development costs 2,686 2,225
HEDE BEMRENEE Loss on disposals of property, plant
and equipment 7 131
IRATAR I E Ry U 25 Gain on early termination of lease (198) (13)
7 & 58 Write off of inventories 464 24
& BB E M Write off of financial assets 18 34
ETIRA (BEEEFHM Employee costs (including directors’
(Br5E11)) remuneration (Note 11))
— TEEFS — Wages and salaries 14,400 12,622
— [AE B BOR ARG 81 K — Contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans 2,693 1,336
17,093 13,958

B &

Note:

BRRAXNTEERACEREIKRA EAEE
EFE Y% BERRBHEARMEGFERHA
MFIR - ZERENMBIEE LR EIRFLF

Cost of inventories recognised as expenses included amounts relating to
employee costs, depreciation of right-of-use assets, depreciation of property,
plant and equipment and write off of inventories, which are also included in
the respective expenses disclosed separately above.
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1. ESNIEESH A T M 11. Emoluments of Directors and Five Highest
Paid Individuals

EEHM Directors’ emoluments
ENSENTARRARIESHNETMARER The aggregate amount of emoluments paid and payable to
I the directors of the Company are as follows:
Bt
Other emoluments
e 28 M B L
ik NENEN KiEke  BAHEER @t
Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances contribution
and benefits  Discretionary retirement
Fees in kind bonus plans Total
xR S SrEn T FET
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
BE-3--F Year ended
TZAT-ALEE 31 December 2021
FRHTES: Executive managing director:
) Chen Li - 553 132 12 697
FHTES Non-executive directors:
REE Wu Zhen Tao - - - - -
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 38 - - - 38
YZ R Liu Xuezi - 200 87 2 289
BUERTES: Independent non-executive directors:
RilE Chan Kee Huen, Michael 35 - - - 35
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher (resigned on
(RZZZZ5_R+tHEE) 10 February 2022) 32 - - - 3
BER Yeung Tak Bun, Allen 35 - - - 35
140 753 219 14 1,126

A4 B E R AR AR Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 157



mEVBHRRWE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE

1. EENE BB EH A T EM

—ZT-—F+=-A=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

11. Emoluments of Directors and Five Highest

(#8) Paid Individuals (Continued)
EEHM(E) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
L uEdl
Other emoluments
= e B3
we  AENER MiERS  RAGEIER @z
Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances contribution
and benefits  Discretionary retirement
Fees in kind bonus plans Total
T T£x FEL T e
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
HE-Z-ZF Year ended
+-A+-HLEE 31 December 2020
EHRTES Executive managing director:
R Chen Li = 490 123 11 624
FHTES: Non-executive directors:
REE Wu Zhen Tao — — _ _ _
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 39 — — — 39
I Liu Xuezi - 16 154 = 170
BUFNITES: Independent non-executive directors:
BRiE Chan Kee Huen, Michael 35 = = = 35
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 32 — — — 32
HE Yeung Tak Bun, Allen 35 = = = 35
141 506 271 11 935

BMEBEEENRARBERAREE_T——
FR_ZF_FFt_A=t—BHLFE
T HE -

HERSBURNEFHRHA -

BE_Z_—hk_FT_FTF+_H
St BLEFE  AREHSRATAE
EFEMABRTDHALHEDTHE -
ERIMARSE B A KRE E & 1) 22
HAERBERE -

R_E-_—F+-_A=+—H x&HE
I 48 B R W SRR A R HRUR 2R A AY
BRBNFE(ZE_FF &) -
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There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

Discretionary bonus are determined on director’s
performance.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
emolument was paid by the Group to the directors or any of
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
retirement benefit schemes in future years (2020: Nil).
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HE-T-—F+=-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

. EEEEESHALTHHH 11. Emoluments of Directors and Five Highest
(#8) Paid Individuals (Continued)
EEBREHAL Five highest paid individuals

hERRFALREARTMBES (=
T_TF MBESR) REMSFIE
REXFRDMARR - 8T =% (=
TE_TF ZR)RSFATHHFHF

The five highest paid individuals consisted of two directors
(2020: two directors) of the Company, details of whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
Details of emoluments of the remaining three (2020: three)

12.

(=R highest paid individuals were as follows:
—E-—F —EFTF
2021 2020
FEx TET
US$'000 Us$'000
e R E YRR Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 393 334
HE e Discretionary bonus 195 160

[A] & RE A FGRIRET 21 it X Contributions to defined contribution

retirement plans 30 26
et Total 618 520

ST LR IEEEALTEOFMNF A

The emoluments paid to each of the above non-director

TEE : individuals were within the following bands:
—E=—F —F =
2021 2020
A" A&
No of No of
individuals individuals
=% 1,000,000/ T Nil = HK$1,000,000 —_ —
1,000,001% 7t £1,500,0007% JT HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1 3
1,500,001% jt £2,000,0007% JT HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 —
2,000,001 75 22,500,000/ 7T HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 —
FREHiE X 12. Income Tax Expense
—E-—F —ETF
2021 2020
SRESTE T
US$'000 Us$'000
EHMEHIE Current income tax
— RNFEE — Current year 2,749 1,674
— AEEE (BEEE) — (Over)/Under provision in prior years
BErR (24) 44
2,725 1,718
TEER B (M 5E29) Deferred tax (Note 29) (1,224) 1,479
Fr 1S % 5 2 Income tax expense 1,501 3,197
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12.

Fﬁ ﬁ%ﬁi(nﬂ)
FERH AR BERAEBEENMER
Bal AR EAR XS -

R IR 7S FI 15 B A W AR RIS R R B8 il
A B %D ¥ 455 E2,000,000% 7T 5F
JiE &R B A1 1528.25% F) B R G 4y 775 18
I 145 $216.5% B B 2K 8 492,000,000
LA LG EREEFZ2HE - TF4

W A% )45 5 SR RS I A 1 0 B S 4 B
165%MHEEM -HE_T - —F K

TR CEFEA A=t -BLEFEAM
BAMEHEEHERANAKHE -

BIERECERSHEE(TLCERESH
EDREERMA  pEMNE QAR
REIS%(ZT_TF : 25%) °

R-_E-_ZTF+_F—H AN&EH—
MNBAREE el RS
=F REPEME HEB-T=-2F
+-RE T =F+ZAMN=FHRK
AIZH15%MEERFE -

FAMGHAXEGEBRENEMBEE
Yat & FTRBRFTTS %'?E?JM%TEEZZDTi

12.

Income Tax Expense (Continued)

Tax on assessable profits has been calculated at the applicable
rates of tax prevailing in the tax jurisdiction in which the
Group operates.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime for Hong Kong
profit tax, the first HK$2,000,000 of the estimated assessable
profits of qualifying corporations will be taxed at 8.25%, and
the estimated assessable profits above HK$2,000,000 will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of corporations not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. The two-tiered profits tax rates
regime was applicable to the Group for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2020: 25%).

On 1 December 2020, one subsidiary of the Group renewed
the "High Technology Enterprise” status for 3 years that
entitled them a preferential tax rate of 15% for a period of
three years starting from December 2020 to December 2023
according to the PRC tax law.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before income tax per the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

—E-—f —ETF

2021 2020

FER F=ET

US$'000 Us$'000

KR BT 15 %% BT g A Profit before income tax 2,404 91,402
HEARA MR EERA R Tax on profit at the rates applicable to

MEFTHERFIE the jurisdictions concerned 609 13,827

AR HIF A RS & Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 702 2,472

BRI WA B TR RS & Tax effect of non-taxable income (712) (16,283)
JE(EEE S N AR EFEEMNTF  Tax effect of share of post-tax result of

-2 associates — (43)

BAEEE (BERE) BETE  (Over)/Under provision in prior years (25) 44

RERHEEE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 1,143 2,269

Hth Others (216) 911

FT 15 %4 5 2 Income tax expense 1,501 3,197
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BE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

i B 13. Dividends

—¥-—fF —E-TF
2021 2020
TErx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000

FRERRDIRKNKRE : Dividends recognised as distribution

during the year:

BRI S — &R1.558 7T Special dividends — HK$1.55 per share

(&P #90.20%7T) (approximately US$0.20 per share) 76,865 =

BE-_ZT-_—F+-—RA=+—H8 &R
AENR-_ZE-_—FNA=+—"HBEZ
B 55 BIA% B & % 1.5578 7T (M E R 470.20
ET) © #351598,551,0005 7T (FE R
4976,865,00057T) °

BE_ZT_—Fk-_ZFT-_TF+_-A

=t—HB ARRIEFITRFRERY
3R o

BRER
H&%Kﬂﬂﬁiw‘ﬂ%ﬁ/\%miﬁ
& & 903,000 T (ZE & F

88,205,000 7T) M A BN F W K"
Fﬂ%&a%ﬁ‘ﬁE’J}*ﬁﬁ%’wémmﬁéﬁ
¥ ¥ 38 A%389,748,0000% (=T — T 4 -
397,172,0000%) 5+ & o

SR A W 8 4F 3 A EE D

14.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company settled
special dividends of HK$1.55 (equivalent to approximately
US$0.20) per share, totally amounting to HK$598,551,000
(equivalent to approximately US$76,865,000) proposed on 31
August 2021.

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of
final dividend.

Earnings per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based
on the consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company of US$903,000 (2020: US$88,205,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 389,748,000
(2020: 397,172,000), after adjusting the treasury shares held
or cancelled by the Company, outstanding during the year.

The Group had no potential dilutive shares for both years.
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15. ¥ - BERRE 15. Property, Plant and Equipment
BFREE 3 RE  KRARRE o
Furniture
Building Motor and
and plant  Machineries vehicles  equipment Total

TR TEL e TR TR
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

RZZE-T45-A—H At 1 January 2020
KA Cost 27,050 14,775 612 3,227 45,664
ZHMERAE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment (8,375) (9,072) (378) (2,699) (20,524)
BEFE Net carrying amount 18,675 5,703 234 528 25,140

HE-T-FEF+-A=1—HB Year ended 31 December 2020

I35

FNRERE Opening net carrying amount 18,675 5,703 234 528 25,140
i 5% Exchange adjustment 1,203 306 20 38 1,567
NE Additions 128 322 95 173 718
bk Depreciation (1,364) (986) 31) (119) (2,500)
FE Impairment — (53) (1) (4 (58)
RE Disposals (37) (113) = (40) (190)
B (f17) Transfer out (Note 17) (286) - - — (286)
EREEFE Closing net carrying amount 18,319 5,179 317 576 24,391

W-ZE-ZTFE+-A=1+—-8 At 31 December 2020

XA Cost 28,634 14,161 696 3,067 46,558
ZHMERRE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment (10,315) (8,982) (379) (2,491) (22,167)
BEEE Net carrying amount 18,319 5,179 317 576 24,391
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15. V¥ - BERRZRE (8) 15. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
BPRERE 1 RE  BRARRE ERIE @5t
Furniture
Building Motor and  Construction
and plant  Machineries vehicles  equipment in progress Total

TEn xR TEn TEn iR Txx
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000

HE-Z--F1+-A Year ended 31 December

=t-ALEE 2021

FNERERE Opening net carrying

amount 18,319 5179 317 576 - 24,391
AR Exchange adjustment 467 132 8 15 - 622
NE Additions 193 283 1 197 4 678
nE Depreciation (1,208) (981) (31) (127) — (2,347)
WA Impairment — (15) - V)] - (17
EE Disposals (11) (43) - (5) - (59)
el YN Disposal of subsidiaries - (18) - 8) - (26)
FERERFE Closing net carrying

amount 17,760 4,537 295 646 4 23,242

R-ZZ-—-F+=f At 31 December 2021

=+-A
KA Cost 29,314 13,339 678 3,202 4 46,537
ZMERAE Accumulated depreciation

and impairment (11,554) (8,802) (383) (2,556) - (23,295)
REFE Net carrying amount 17,760 4,537 295 646 4 23,242
B & Note:
BE—ZT-——H#+-"F=4+—RBILEE  ARBE - During the year ended 31 December 2021, provision for impairment of
TEERENERERMN WL BERIERERE property, plant and equipment of US$17,000 (2020: US$58,000) was
17,0005 70 (Z B = F 4 : 58,000% ) D EB% recognised in profit or loss as part of administrative expenses to reduce the
ERZATHRESH -5 MEYE  BE&SR carrying amounts of the property, plant and equipment to their recoverable
HEHIEEEERSEATRE S - amounts as a result of outdated, physical damaged and technical obsolescance.
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16. FRAEKEE 16. Right-of-use Assets
RE EEW EHRAEER (BEH The Group leases a number of office premises, motor vehicles,
BRES) HEZENRSGH - RE - prepaid land lease and office equipment in the jurisdictions
ENTHAERRARE HEEAEHN from which it operates, including the PRC and Hong Kong.
HERBEAEHRERANNEE MK - The leases of these assets comprise only fixed payments over

the lease term.

—B=-—fF —E-F
2021 2020
xR F=T
US$'000 Us$'000
FYERE FE Opening net carrying amount 2,450 2,698
VE 5, e B Exchange adjustment 53 151
NE Additions 266 980
e Depreciation (522) (560)
AR IEHAEE Early termination of lease — (286)
VR ES Impairment (78) (210)
HEHB A A Disposal of subsidiaries (219) —
i (FEE17) Transfer out (Note 17) — (323)
FARKREFE Closing net carrying amount 1,950 2,450
DN Cost 3,489 4,232
ZErITERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (1,539) (1,782)
R FE Net carrying amount 1,950 2,450
RIEBEE YA EREESERE FE The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by
ZOMIE class of underlying asset is as follows:
—B-—F —F-F
2021 2020
FEx F=T
US$'000 US$'000
Tt E - I ER A  Prepaid land lease, carried at
depreciated cost 1,536 1,551
WRIGHT - RE R ARME Office premises, motor vehicles
=T E KA BR and office equipment carried at
depreciated cost 414 899
IREFE Net carrying amount 1,950 2,450
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17. REY=E 17. Investment Property
—¥-—fF —E-TF
2021 2020
TErx F=x
Us$'000 Us$'000
Hi W) BREF A Opening net carrying amount 633 —
PE 5 5 B Exchange adjustment 15 34
& A (ffaE155%16) Transfer in (Notes 15 and 16) — 609
e Depreciation (21) (10)
HAZRBR H 5B Closing net carrying amount 627 633
DN Cost 937 915
st e Accumulated depreciation (310) (282)
REVFE Net carrying amount 627 633

AEENREMESURTENEEY
X UIRAFERETBIE=7 -

REMER_ZE-_—F+=-—A=+—~H
AT E#)A957,000K T (— T -F4F:
644,0003%€7T) - AFEDREAEBE AR
MEEREEER T ERTHEREDEN
7 B FNAE B 75 A 5 M 98 S 5T & AD
AT EZAERARETNEESE -

RFEFEDREDTSE B AF
B ABERLLBOEETAG  LEBR
ERBEURERNALEUARZEMSE
BRALHEERS TEBWABERE
FHARTHER MHEERCEBRE
ER/THRESEBREMEZ XA TVER
Zrm/ TH -REMENDFENE
J& BIFR B 75 5 A SH135% [ & FEF
BIFRENATFESERE=H-

The Group's investment property is a commercial property in
the PRC which is leased to an independent third party during
the year.

The fair value of the investment property as at 31 December
2021 was approximately US$957,000 (2020: US$644,000).
The fair value has been arrived at based on a valuation
carried out by Ascent Partner Valuation Service Limited, an
independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant
professional qualification and has experience in the location
and category of the investment property being valued.

The fair value was determined based on the market
approach,where the fair value is estimated by the direct
comparison method on the assumption of the sale of the
property interest with the benefit of vacant possession
and by referring to the asking prices and comparable sales
transactions as available in the market. The key input was the
market price per square metre. A significant increase/decrease
in the market price would result in a significant increase/
decrease in the fair value of the investment property. The fair
value measurement of the investment property falls into level
3 of the fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement”.
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18. BAFEFT A EEZENERMEE 18. Financial Assets at FVTPL

—E-—F —E-TF
2021 2020
FEx F=x
Us$'000 Us$'000
ETRAES  EZATFE Listed equity securities, at fair value — 32,815
M E XS BRIAZR ZF As mentioned in Note 5 above, the shares of Starry held by
—EFEMA -+ ABTHIEANE BB the Group were classified as financial assets at FVTPL after
LRl AEREBHNRAMEMND D Starry ceased to be an associate of the Group on 26 April
HAREBATEFABENEMEE ° 2020.
NR-ZZE-_FEE+_A=+—H0 K&EH As at 31 December 2020, the Group held a total of 3,252,493
A ££3,252,493 Al K k1D - HER shares of Starry, representing approximately 1.3% interest of
AR B BITRALN.3% ° the issued share capital of Starry.
RZEZ_—F+_A=+—"8 &K&EH As at 31 December 2021, the Group does not hold any shares
TEFBEMEIAKNMLZRMD ° of Starry.

156 Annual Report 2021 4



REVBHRRHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F+=-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

19. B EE 19. Intangible Assets
AERER
EHHRI
BXOHRE HWEEAA EEGES BEAA FAE st
Indefinite
Exclusive lived
distribution Technical  Development technical
right know-how costs know-how License Total
TEn TEn TEn TEL FEL TEL
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
(M) (MizE(b)) (M7H0) (M3E(d) (HizHe)
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (c) (Note (d)) (Note (e))
W-_Z-Z5-f-H At 1 January 2020
K Cost 287 5,876 15,685 9,351 1,108 32,307
Accumulated amortisation and
ZitBHRAE impairment (287) (5,876) (4,180) (59) (235) (10,637)
FEFE Net carrying amount — — 11,505 9,292 873 21,670
HE-Z-ZF Year ended 31 December 2020
TZRA=T-BLEE
ENRESFE Opening net carrying amount — — 11,505 9,292 873 21,670
EHA% Exchange adjustment — — 795 15 1 821
NE — WEPR % Additions — internal development — — 2,085 — — 2,085
WE Impairment = = (2,062) = (884) (2,946)
FREMFE Closing net carrying amount - - 12,323 9,307 = 21,630
WZBZZE+-A=+—H At31 December 2020
K Cost 307 6,282 18,203 9,370 1,185 35,347
2HEHRAE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (307) (6,282) (5,880) (63) (1,185) (13,717)
BEFE Net carrying amount — — 12,323 9,307 — 21,630
HE-Z--F Year ended 31 December 2021
TZRA=T-BILEE
ENRESE Opening net carrying amount — - 12,323 9,307 — 21,630
5 AR Exchange adjustment - - 418 3 - 421
NE — WEPR % Additions — internal development - - 1,031 - - 1,031
A Impairment - - - (232) - (232)
FREEFE Closing net carrying amount - - 13,772 9,078 - 22,850
WZZB-—%+-FA=+—H At31 December 2021
KA Cost 314 6,430 19,212 9,377 - 35,333
ZHBERRE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (314) (6,430) (5,440) (299) - (12,483)
ERFE Net carrying amount - - 13,172 9,078 - 22,850
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19.

BEEE (&)

BREREME  BXBTEM BFEE
& B AR B EE - M5
PRESI 2 - BE Mkt MM 160
I ZERREECREEEIEER
TELEN -

ARESRENEREBEFEEZET - %
ATEAERAENETEEBH ERRAF
NP SEENR S RERAIA14.57%
£20.69% M ATIBE (ZTE T F -
17.00%%E19.72%) - BBARAFHHIRE
MERAEER0O%BEE - EFRAEEFNE
FHEMFBREDERREESRA R
EEREE ERRREEEHEREFX -
BRAMHDERZBEMNBERBANANRE
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%?%ﬁ% EEERE -
EH%ﬁF“ BEHIE A EEFH BT
ﬁmﬁﬁﬁtﬁET%@wﬁo

HE—ZT-_—F+_A=+—HLEFE "
HRREBEERMMBEHERKTESE &
BERMEREA232,000E T (T -F
& 12,946,000 0) ' W E RIBzE
RAEMIELE A RFA X FEE (H
FE8) —Eo U EFEEMREER
EEEINEE-

B RE

(@) R-T—=F+-f AEEME—-FHHER
RIVBR G ARG RERETELHH
10 R 7 $H#E © LD SR IR B AR E IR0
FHENE -ZF-—MF—-A— BRGNS H
HEE) B NBEFE BROFHHED
2HERE -

(b) RWEXNBIBERREREEST ER
i e B B B i R e 7

BE-ZT——FtA—Bk BHROEHER
B R0 5 55 0 38 A R #540,993,0007T 12 B 4R
AR+ —FFHEE REEFE 5
FEABCEEBE -
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19.

Intangible Assets (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment assessment, intangible assets
related to cosmetic products, healthcare products and other
pharmaceuticals, property, plant and equipment set out in
Note 15 and right-of-use assets set out in Note 16 have been
allocated to CGUs according to the nature of projects.

The recoverable amounts have been determined based
on value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period, and pre-tax discount
rate of ranged from 14.57% to 20.69% (2020: 17.00% to
19.72%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows
beyond the five-year period is 0%. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of
cash inflows/ outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit’'s past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, provision for
impairment of intangible assets of US$232,000 (2020:
US$2,946,000) was recognised in profit or loss as part of
other non-operating income and expenses, net (Note 8) to
reduce the carrying amounts of the intangible assets to their
recoverable amounts as a result of the unsatisfactory market
demand for the corresponding products.

Notes:

(a) In December 2013, the Group entered into an exclusive agreement
with a supplier to secure the distribution rights of 10 years for one
pharmaceutical product in the PRC. This exclusive right was amortised on
a straight-line basis over 10 years, being the period of the distribution
rights, starting from 1 January 2014. The exclusive distribution right was
fully impaired in prior years.

(b) Technical know-how mainly represented techniques and formulae
acquired for the development and production of certain pharmaceutical
products.

With effect from 1 July 2011, technical know-how in relation to the oral
disintegrating tablets amounting to RMB40,993,000 has been amortised
on a straight-line basis over 11 years. The technical know-how was fully
impaired in prior years.



19.
B &
(c)

(d)

(e)

REVBHRRHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEEE (&)

(&)
FBRAEERBERME D AMELENA
AERE(TABERE]D -

EERRASANBERRERERFSH R
HEREHEXNAHERBRARIRSR
ENHREYE DR ot FAMBERATR
— BB P AR R P A AT 7 E G O A AR AR
& o

WMAMERELBRE EEREERELZ
WRAKMEEFER BEREAFHD
MBERTGETEE IRSEIBF
EFERETFERENS MHEETRE
TEAEREATHNMNBEEATERE -
EEEFMETRENS BE-S=FF
+ZA=+—8 CEBZPHERREEE
2,062,000 T ©

EERFEAFHARMEXNZEEZESR
Novartis AGFINovartis Pharma AG (£t#E [ 55
) WEH TR LKA REF BT (M
F32) R AE R AEEAEEDE MO
RBLA e

HE-_T-_—F+-A=1+—H8 BEEE
AREGNAERFERAFHORMTEXMME
£ 18 25 R FE SRR (B # 5232,000% T (=T =
THE )

MAREEEN T N\FEBKE—HK
BRI BRATAIE ©

ARBEERAZEETBAEREAS
B REAERBEXAEN ] FEHTR
HESREMPMITEATRRE - R=F=
TFE+-_A=1+—H XRAREZERE B
BT EME KRB SBEAERAEE -
[ b 7 18 2= P e 5201 (B 1 #5884,0003% T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

19. Intangible Assets (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Development costs mainly represent intellectual property rights (“IPRs”)
generated internally for the pharmaceutical technology.

The directors consider that these IPRs have indefinite useful lives as
there is no foreseeable limit on the period of time over which the IPRs
in pharmaceutical industry is expected to provide cash flows. These IPRs
can be renewable in a period of time at minimal cost and the products
are continuing in the market.

If the IPR becomes impaired, the carrying amounts of the asset should
be written down or written off immediately to profit or loss. IPRs with
indefinite useful lives are not amortised and are tested for impairment
annually at each financial year end or more frequently if there are
indications that IPR with indefinite useful lives might be impaired.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, provision for impairment of
US$2,062,000 was recognised in profit or loss.

Indefinite-lived technical know-how represents a perpetual royalty-free
licence acquired from Novartis AG and Novartis Pharma AG (collectively
known as “Novartis”) with no termination (Note 32) and techniques and
formulae for the development and production of skin care products.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, provision for impairment of
US$232,000 (2020: Nil) was recognised in profit or loss in respect of the
indefinite-lived technical know-how for skin care products.

License mainly represented the medical license acquired through the
acquisition of a subsidiary in 2018.

The directors of the Company consider that the medical license has
indefinite useful lives as there is no foreseeable limit on the period
of time over which the license in cosmeceutical industry is expected
to provide cash flows. As at 31 December 2020, the directors of the
Company were of the opinion that the estimated recoverable amount
of the medical license was less than its carrying value and therefore
provision for impairment of US$884,000 was recognised in profit or
loss.
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20. & 20. Goodwill
—EZ—F —ETF
2021 2020
FEx FET
US$'000 Us$'000
R E Carrying amount 6,824 6,824

AEERESEMBEEF RN ELET
AR - 1S E SRR M E TR ERIA -

AREAANS BERERENER
MAEERAE T EE—EARSELEN
(ZZ-ZF - MERSELEMN) B
BRIEXBAREREEEN EmnMHK
BRR HEMAZKEDRIBE] (=
T_TF IEEBRUEREEREEHN
EnhEXRERHNNEBLAF  Eo5lE
MAERENMI BRI RZTER]) °

tReELBURKROSENEER
HEZMHEBEEREHBALT

ZERSEEBEMN KD S AER
BEFEEET ZSTEEAEAER
EEBEEERKRAFHNTEEER
IR = T8 R LA & B8 B 5 75 B B 4 38 R
B1831% (ZE T F  BHEKKE
REMESH BN A17.00%K19.52%) °
BEEXERBAAFHNRERERAE
ERO% (ZE_ZTF BEEKELESR
EmEKBO%) B - £REBEFEA
MEMFEREIERBESRA K
WG B EEEEEHEREMNE -
BB ERZEMATRAULE
BEEHMSREMNEYH - EBEHEE
AL EBEVEHENSEEZHER
TENRREEBRRE A WE R -

BE-_ZE-_FTE+-_A=+—HIEE -
RRARESRAEBHEAERNEER
TEET AT El & REENEREE - Btk
EREREA1,0005 T °
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The Group assesses goodwill annually for impairment at each
financial year end, or more frequently if there are indications
that goodwill might be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and
development costs related to specialty pharmaceuticals have
been allocated to one CGU (2020: two CGUs), including
subsidiaries with principal activities of manufacturing and
trading of specialty pharmaceuticals which are included in
the “Pharmaceuticals” (2020: subsidiaries with principal
activities of manufacturing and trading of specialty
pharmaceuticals and cosmetic products which are included in
the “Pharmaceuticals” and “Cosmetic Products” respectively)
under operating segment.

The basis of the recoverable amount of the above CGU and
its major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been
determined based on the value in use calculation. Their
calculation use corresponding cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a
five-year period, and pre-tax discount rate of 18.31% for
pharmaceutical business (2020: 17.00% and 19.52% for
pharmaceuticals business and cosmetic products business
respectively). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash
flows beyond the five-year period is 0% for pharmaceuticals
business (2020: 0% for both pharmaceuticals business
and cosmetic products business). Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculation relate to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit's past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the directors
of the Company were of the opinion that the estimated
recoverable amount of the goodwill related to cosmetic
products was less than its carrying value and therefore
determine that there was an impairment on its goodwill of
US$1,000.



21.

REVBHRRHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-T-—F+=-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

REE QAR 2w 21. Interests in Associates
—E-—F —ETF
2021 2020
FTEx FET
US$'000 Us$'000
JEMH B EFE Share of net assets 149 1,088
(SRS Goodwill 2,047 5,774
2,196 6,862
BEANEBRREH RGBS N TS Details of the Group’s associates at the end of the reporting
R period are as follows:
2k 1 B 32 B E AEERERARELSR
£% REXHH Rewd REEMLH TEXK
Place of Principal Proportion of ownership
incorporation and  place of interest and voting power
Name operation business held by the Group Principal activities
—®=-%f "T_TF
2021 2020
ERERAERAR ([XR]) RERLES e 30.0% 30.0% EEREEEMRERRRRER
([RBRXES])

Natural Dailyhealth The British Virgin The PRC Production and trading of plant extract
Holdings Limited [slands (The "BVI") and healthcare products
("Natural Dailyhealth”)

RER G E DRI HE e 20.0% 20.0% REFATXRBEHE -

BRAR (TR

Tianjin Robustnique The PRC
Biotechnology Co., Limited
("Robustnique”)

DFENSIAR (LhmEMESL

B mEREmm R EMEZE

The PRC Engaging in the research and
development and industrialisation of

new industrial enzyme preparations,

molecular biology tool enzymes, and

bioactive factors for cosmetics and

biological skincare products

LB AT AR ENAEE The above associates were accounted for using the equity

REMBHRERAR -

method in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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21. REE QT 2= (&)

=3t

R-_FB-_—F+_A=1t—HLFE
N ARFEER/BERANEDE
REFATRESBERNEIKREE %12
iR ENR A EE M BB

HEN S AT EAAER A EITM -

HEEZINATKREDSELSREAFEE
BEHNERANGTE R EZETH %A
FEREREEE I EMN10F B8 %18
ENHESRER - ARE S RTERAF
BAEIREB14% (ZZE_ZTF 1 15%) °

AREE10F AU AR REMNIERE
1.95% (ZZE_FF :2.62%) ' RBiB
RHEER @R BERKLE  ATkO

TRERNIREEE BREKNTHE
BREHE—HRE U TRESEIR

AERERMNOBNEARIIEEEA
BBENRE

21.

Interests in Associates (Continued)

Natural Dailyhealth

As at 31 December 2021, the directors of the Company
are of opinion that the estimated recoverable amount of
the interest in an associate, Natural Dailyhealth, was less
than its carrying value while a valuation was performed by
an independent valuer, Ascent Partners Valuation Service
Limited, to determine the fair value of Natural Dailyhealth by
using income approach. The recoverable amount of interest
in Natural Dailyhealth is determined based on a fair value less
costs of disposal calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a ten-year period. The post-tax discount rate applied
to cash flow projections is 14% (2020: 15%). The growth
rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the ten-year
period is 1.95% (2020: 2.62%) which does not exceed
the long-term growth rate. Following the impairment loss
recognised, the recoverable amount was equal to carrying
amount, any adverse change in a key assumption would
lead to further impairment. Below is a summary of the key
unobservable inputs used and categorised within level 3
measurement:

EXTUBEBAYE
Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTUBEBARBEEHE
Range of significant
unobservable inputs

TABEERAHBEATENER
Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

E A H25%%42%
—E-FF : f{28%E32%)

Gross margin Ranged from 25% to 42%

(2020: Ranged from 28% to 32%)

1.95% (ZZE_FF : 2.62%)
1.95% (2020: 2.62%)

REPIE R &
Long-term growth rate

BRI =X

Post-tax discount rate

14% (ZF-FF : 15%)

14% (2020: 15%)

EMIEINE A FEIE N

The increase in the gross margin would result
in an increase in fair value.

R R EENEH A FEHEN
The increase in the long-term growth rate
would result in an increase in fair value.

& 9T IR I B EQ FER D
The increase in the post-tax discount rate
would result in a decrease in fair value

HE T+ _A=+—1tFE "
SRU1E % #52,035,0003 T N 18 25 1 TR 72
—E T4 : 386,000 1) (fizE8) o
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, provision for
impairment of US$2,035,000 has been recognised in profit or
loss (2020: US$386,000) (Note 8) .
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21. RBEQNT 2= (&)
M
R-ZEZ—FE+-A=+—HBILEE
N RAREERABELATINEZRR
WA RE S EERREIRAE &
MEERNAFERNRZEZEE LB
MMM AT EZAER A RETH
e BHFHEENATRESHEERED
FTEERELENANGTE R EET
B A EREREEBIENTSF
P BEENESREN - ARIRER
FERI MR EBIR KR B11.22% (=T =F
F:12.08%) - AR B A FHAZE
ERENBRERE2S51% (T -TF:
251%) @ RHEBARAERE - BRBE
BXE RESESENIREEE B
REZOTANEDGESE—FHE-
LT REFRIPAEFERMDENES
BOATEBERGABBENRE -

EXTAUHRRGRAYE
Significant
unobservable inputs

21.

EXATAEHEERABIEEHE
Range of significant
unobservable inputs
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Interests in Associates (Continued)

Robustnique

As at 31 December 2021, the directors of the Company are of
opinion that the estimated recoverable amount of the interest
in an associate, Robustnique, was less than its carrying value
while a valuation was performed by an independent valuer,
Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, to determine the
fair value of Robustnique by using income approach. The
recoverable amount of interest in Robustnique is determined
based on a fair value less costs of disposal calculation which
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period. The
post-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections is
11.22% (2020: 12.08%). The growth rate used to extrapolate
the cash flows beyond the five-year period is 2.51% (2020:
2.51%) which does not exceed the long-term growth rate.
Following the impairment loss recognised, the recoverable
amount was equal to the carrying amount, any adverse
change in a key assumption would lead to further impairment.
Below is a summary of the key unobservable inputs used and
categorised within level 3 measurement:

TABERABBEAFENREZR
Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

EH 48.9%
Gross margin 48.9%
RHERX 2.51%
Long-term growth rate 2.51%
IREE S 11.22%
Post-tax discount rate 11.22%

BHE TS+ _-_A=+—1tFE -
ek (B B 151,766,000 T R 18 25 FE R
2T F &) (HFE8) o

ENIE NG R FELE N
The increase in the gross margin would result
in an increase in fair value.

i B2 & 230 08 BN F(EIE N
The increase in the long-term growth rate
would result in an increase in fair value.

MR YT IR RIZ NG HA FERD
The increase in the post-tax discount rate
would result in a decrease in fair value

During the year ended 31 December 2021, provision for
impairment of US$1,766,000 has been recognised in profit or
loss (2020: Nil) (Note 8) .
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21.

22.

REEE QT 2 S (&)

FERBERANTHERRZHII

21. Interests in Associates (Continued)

Summarised financial information of the immaterial associates

N are set out below:
—E-—F —ZEZFF
2021 2020
FEx TET
US$'000 Us$'000
R+t=-B=+—H At 31 December
REMBRERPHERETDE Carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements 2,196 6,862
BZ Y
—E-—f& “E-TF
+=A=+-H +=ZA=+—H
ILEE LEFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
FEx FET
Uss$’000 Us$'000
EEELFEERBEQNASHE Amount of the Group’s share of
immaterial associates
— B EE — Share of loss (989) (173)
— EHEMEERE — Share of other comprehensive income — —
— EhHE2EKRSEE — Share of total comprehensive income (989) (173)
78 22. Inventories
—EZ—F —T-THF
2021 2020
FEx FET
Us$’000 Us$'000
B Raw materials 1,304 1,122
R Work-in-progress 1,379 1,693
2K Finished goods 4,708 3,907
7,391 6,722

RZBE-_—FE+-_A=+—HItFER -
BEstfF E /R E 1E 11,485,000% T
—E-F4 1 2,255000F7T) NEETR

SEE -
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As at 31 December 2021, provision for obsolete inventories
of US$1,485,000 (2020: US$2,255,000) were made against
the carrying value of inventories.
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B RHEMEKRRIE 23. Trade and Other Receivables
—E=-—F —ET_FTHF
2021 2020
FEx F=T
Us$’000 US$'000
25 EIEIE Trade receivables 15,954 19,702
L 1R B Less: loss allowance (683) (758)
15,271 18,944
e ZE iR Bills receivables 23,612 12,881
Z o5 EI R IE N EWEE Trade and bills receivables 38,883 31,825
T8 1~ 08 K E b FE YL ZO0E Prepayments and other receivables 10,993 12,543
49,876 44,368
EExRE B %&ﬁm&q& HIA R EE The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and
BEEEANFERE other receivables approximate their fair values.
NEFBHNHEERERTPIEMTH90H The Group has a policy of allowing an average credit period
RI{ZEH - of 90 days to its customers.
REFW ERZEEHIEE EAEIR S o The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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REZZAH RHEEHR AKEHH

23.

—ZT-—F+=-A=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

Based on the invoice date, the ageing analysis of the trade

b= %FEJ%Z IR N FE W R iR (H bR & 18 and bills receivables (net of loss allowance) of the Group as at
%) BREe DT T - the end of the reporting period is as follows:
—E--F —EF_F

2021 2020
FEx F=T
US$'000 Us$'000
90H sk A~ 90 days or below 19,551 16,109
91£&180H 91-180 days 7,397 11,428
181&365H 181-365 days 11,935 4,206
HiEm365H Over 365 days — 82
38,883 31,825

N—_ZFT - —F+ = A~ +—A8 - As at 31 December 2021, certain bills receivables of

19,249,000 L (=& =& F :
11,141,000 ) WE TRIKEEE &
WYRTUE—HBENB AR ZIRTT
& (M 7E37(F)) fE4K 3 o

[—EBEQRNER
RRBREER B AAREREE -
EFRALABNREERARATER

o

s

%

R—_E-_—F+_A=+—H BEHMA
— B D B M B SR BR (B 1 184
HE BB E R A964,000% T (=T =
Z4F : 693,000k T) °
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24.

US$19,249,000 (2020: US$11,141,000) were pledged to
secure for bank borrowings of a fellow subsidiary (Note 37(f)).

Loan to an Associate

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The directors consider that the carrying amount of
this balance approximates its fair value.

As at 31 December 2021, loss allowance recognised on loan
to an associate of US$964,000 (2020 : US$693,000) were
made against the carrying amount of loan to an associate.
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25. EEFRTER RERAEE

HE-T-—F+=-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

25. Pledged Bank Deposits/Cash and Cash

BY Equivalents
—E-—F —EERF
2021 2020
FTXxx FET
US$'000 Us$'000
RE RIBITER Cash and bank balances 48,489 97,553
B B HERITE R Less: pledged bank deposits (15,944) (14,144)
ReERBEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 32,545 83,409

BehRTEKEBBRITEFERESNU
REBHBE=(EA A TOEHRRT
T |RITREREST HRITERME
BEHHEGR - RHERERF AR
1T IR T 5 ) REREA B -

RZEZ—FRZFT=_FTF+=H
=+ —HHNEEBRTGERELAEE S
BREAEREETRTHE (M5F28) k—
MEREH B AR ZRITE R (KIE37()
MM RITER °

RZE-_—F+_A=+—H K&EH
K IR & N IR 1T 45 88 B 7548,189,0003 7T
—E =T :97,102,000% 7T) KR 1T
B GREBRUAAREFERTERPE
RIRTT - ARBWIFAERIZBNER -

Cash and bank balances comprise cash at banks and in hand,
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less. Cash at banks earn interest at floating
rates based on daily bank deposits rates. Short-term time
deposits are placed with banks and earn interest at market
interest rates.

Pledged bank deposits represent the Group’s bank deposits
pledged to secure for certain banking facilities of the Group
(Note 28) and bank borrowings of a fellow subsidiary (Note
37(f)) as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, included in cash and bank balances
of the Group was bank balances of US$48,189,000 (2020:
US$97,102,000) denominated in RMB placed with banks in
the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
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26. B 26. Share Capital
15 & B &8
Number of shares Amount
TET
Us$'000
IR Share capital:
ETE Authorised:
RZZE_TF-—H—H " At 1 January 2020,
“E-TE+ZA=+—HBRK 31 December 2020 and
- —%+=ZA=+—H 31 December 2021 20,000,000 200,000
BRETRART Issued and fully paid:
RZEZZEF-—HA—-BRK At 1 January 2020 and
“E_BE+_A=t+—H 31 December 2020 397,172,000 3,972
B EEARS Cancellation of shares repurchased (19,858,000) (199)
R-—EBE-_—%+-A=+—-8 At 31 December 2021 377,314,000 3,773
EFRG - Treasury shares:
RZEZTF—A—HK At 1 January 2020 and
—E-EF+ZA=1—H 31 December 2020 — —
Bt el B8 (B EE27) Shares repurchase (Note 27) 19,858,000 5,650
FEHE BB MR D (E27) Cancellation of shares repurchased (Note 27) (19,858,000) (5,650)

R-—E-—-%+-B=+—H

At 31 December 2021

27. B
AEE

B aEEEEERERNEENERE -

HNE 1R IR B N BT B A
RPE X ZFE o

AERBREEZRTBEEREIMAE K
BIEER D EEETA

B E
BER-
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Il R

27. Reserves
Group

for shares allotted.

Share premium represents the excess over the nominal value

Foreign exchange reserve represents exchange differences

arising from the translation of the financial statements of

foreign subsidiaries.

required by the relevant PRC statute.

Statutory reserve represents appropriation of profits of the
IR £ PRC subsidiaries to non-distributable reserve fund account as
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27. &4 (&) 27. Reserves (Continued)
rEE (&) Group (Continued)
EFEBRMHEARFEEBCSKRD - #HZE Treasury shares represent the repurchase of the Company’s
—E-_—F+-A=+—BItEE" own shares. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
A X\ A BE 2 BT BA 48 X {843,897,000 the Company repurchased 19,858,000 shares of its own
7 T (F8E R #45,650,000% JT) [ 8§ ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate
19,858,000% (FfF7¥26) ° consideration of HK$43,897,000 (equivalent to approximately

US$5,650,000) (Note 26).

2 & #95,650,0003E LW B BE AR E A = All the repurchase shares amounting to approximately
T —F+ A=+ —BIFEFH- US$5,650,000 were cancelled by the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

¥iNG/NE | Company
RBEE Ef KRG RERF st
Share Treasury Retained
premium shares profits Total

TR FEIT TEL FEIT
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

BZ-ZE-ZF+-A=+—HLEE Yearended 31 December 2020

R-_T-_TF—Hf—H At 1 January 2020 16,750 — 5,083 21,833
FERF Profit for the year — — 2,339 2,339
FEHEMZEKE Other comprehensive income for

the year — — — —
FEZENERSE Total comprehensive income for

the year — — 2,339 2,339
R-E-_TF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2020 16,750 — 7,422 24,172

A4 B E R AR AR Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 179



mEVBHRRWE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-—F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

27. f#E (&) 27. Reserves (Continued)
AT (48) Company (Continued)
435 B EF K5 REEF @t
Share Treasury Retained
premium shares profits Total

TEL TXT TET TET
US$'000 US$'000 Us§'000 US$'000

BZ-Z--5+-A=1t—HLEFE VYearended 31 December 2021

A—E-—-%—H—H At 1 January 2021 16,750 — 7,422 24,172
B8 (FiEE13) Dividends (Note 13) — — (76,865) (76,865)
& {7 B8 Shares repurchase — (5,650) — (5,650)
HHE DEA RS Cancellation of shares

repurchased (5,451) 5,650 — 199
HEFNETRS Transactions with owners (5,451) - (76,865) (82,316)
FERA Profit for the year — - 101,290 101,290
FEEMEEKR Other comprehensive income for

the year — — — —
FEZANERSE Total comprehensive income for

the year - — 101,290 101,290
R—E-_—%+=-B=1+—H At 31 December 2021 11,299 — 31,847 43,146
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N 28. Borrowings
—EZ—F —TE-THF
2021 2020
FEx FET
US$'000 Us$'000
8 & EIE IR IRTT 15 3K Fixed-rate and unsecured bank
borrowings 24,687 31,424
NEBERNERIZHEKAYEE - W E— The Group's borrowings are carried at amortised cost and due
FRNEE R_ZE-_—F+_A=+— for repayment within one year. There were no borrowings
H TEEFZESEREREEER (= contain a repayment on demand clause as at 31 December
T-TER{E) o 2021 (2020: Two).
N—_E - —FRR_ZET_ZTTF+ = H As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, certain banking facilities
== EI :Ffﬁf‘jpﬂﬁéﬁ B K& H are subject to the fulfillment of covenants relating to certain
aTHBRRAL EHENZEEETE financial position ratios of the Group, as are commonly found
FREE  EETHR SR EENEZ in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the
ZHEBER MWAEBRERTEE & Group breaches the covenants, the drawn down facilities
R EBIRERKERE - would become repayable on demand.
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28. BF (&)
$’¥I){Hﬂ§*? EHERFLCSHETH
N ERBREHERNEERBERER -
AEERBREAEBEEFAZSR
E o RITAARABITEENSRENRE
KRB —FR-ZT_ZTF+=A
=t+—H UEERERERMERNIEEE

RITERNEREEATIIEEE -

28. Borrowings (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants, up to date, makes repayments in accordance
with the repayment schedule of the term loans. The Group
does not consider it is probable that the bank will exercise
its discretion to demand repayment for as long as the Group
continues to meet these requirements. As at 31 December
2021 and 2020, none of the covenants relating to drawn
down facilities had been breached.

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings are denominated in
the following currencies:

—2-—F —T=F
2021 2020
FTErR F=E=T
Us$'000 Us$'000
ATNRIERR ¢ Represented by:
ANEBEE R Borrowings in RMB 24,687 30,713
BITE R Borrowings in HK$ — 711
24,687 31,424
—BC-—F —E-THF
2021 2020
TEx FET
US$'000 US$'000
B IR F R = Effective interest rate per annum:
HRITE N Bank borrowings 4.68% 4.60%

RN-E-—F+-_A=+—H ' K&H
VBB E|IFIRITIF5113,136,000% 7T (=
T T4 : 3,027,000k 7T) tEAAREH
RITRE R IR -

182 Annual Report 2021 4

The Group had pledged certain bank deposits of
US$13,136,000 (2020: US$3,027,000) to secure for the
banking facilities of the Group as at 31 December 2021.
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B (&)

MM FE37(NHATE - AEEEARQRR R
WEBARIRZE—R"EASAAN_ZE—N
FHAGBEERBZE LR B
EETHBITERRHBER RZ2Z
——%+=-A=+—H " 9,568,000% T
O 4 1K 1R 5 5K AR R R BB A 5 IR B IR
—F —FT 4 1 11,495,0003JT) ° & T
4 3 1 4R 77 18 015,119,000 7T (= =
—Z £ :19,929,000% 7T) B A A 7 5
REEETFHBARER -

RERBELEZAEHEOT

HE-T-—F+=-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

28. Borrowings (Continued)

As explained in Note 37(f), the Group and a fellow subsidiary
of the Company entered into cross guarantee agreements in
June 2016 and May 2019, and agreed to provide guarantees
to banks in relation to the banking facilities of each other.
As at 31 December 2021, the unsecured borrowings of
US$9,568,000 was guaranteed by the fellow subsidiary (2020:
US$11,495,000). The remaining balance of unsecured bank
borrowings of US$15,119,000 (2020: US$19,929,000) were
guaranteed by the Company or certain subsidiaries of the
Group.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

—E-—f —ZETF

2021 2020

FEx F=ET

US$'000 Us$'000

m—HA—H At 1 January 31,424 60,520
ReERELD : Changes from cash flows:

EFTE < BB Proceeds from borrowings 36,570 38,184

BEERZHKIEA Repayment of borrowings (43,944) (69,472)

(7,374) (31,288)

ME 5, o B Exchange adjustment 637 2,192

R+t=-—B=+—H At 31 December 24,687 31,424
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29. IRiERIBEAE

29. Deferred Tax Liabilities

RARBHH
PEBNE EEEERA Hitr #st
PRC
withholding
tax on Deferred
undistributed development
earnings costs Others Total
TEL TZx TET TEx
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
BIE—Z2-Z5+-A=1+—-BLLEE Yearended 31 December 2020
RZE-F4—H—H At 1 January 2020 181 1,225 230 1,636
SR Exchange adjustment — 100 12 112
RERME (F:E12) Charged to profit or loss (Note 12) - 259 1,220 1,479
R-_E-_FFE+-A=+-H At 31 December 2020 181 1,584 1,462 3,227
BIEZZ--5+-F=1+—HIEE VYearended 31 December 2021
RZE-_—%—H—H At 1 January 2021 181 1,584 1,462 3,227
ERECES Exchange adjustment — 39 (10) 29
RERNB/(BA) (HE12) Charged/(Credited) to profit or loss
(Note 12) — 193 (1,417) (1,224)
R-E-_-£+-A=+-H At 31 December 2021 181 1,816 35 2,032

BREBEFBECEXMBHRE BZFFN
F—HA—H# gt R B R R T
BaFmERORKREAZMEN -
SAMBERRAL RS B A
A) H46,640,000% L (=T =& F :
49,513,000k 7T) 2t aMAAEENY
REBELEEHREREG  REERK
EEAEFEREBENBROKHE - BZ
LR EERE T A T8 RS 2R B M -

EAAREEBERE —BEBR—EEEIS
BB AR HIE - ARE AR RFER
AIEAEER T - E AR S AERE R B
BEEREHTBEREINBEELETWE
E - AEERFENBAREELENKRD
B E B4 515,199,000k 7T (==
— =4 115,331,000 7T)  FHIAFER
B R A FRAAESE -
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Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting
to US$46,640,000 (2020: US$49,513,000) as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences, it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses has not been
recognised in these consolidated financial statements as
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and the unpredictability of future profits
streams. The Group has unused tax losses of approximately
US$15,199,000 (2020: US$15,331,000) incurred by the
subsidiaries in the PRC, which can be carried forward for 5
years from the year in which the losses were incurred.
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30. EFRHEHMEBENRE 30. Trade and Other Payables
—E-—F —E-TF
2021 2020
FEx FET
Us$'000 US$'000
2 5 e FoE Trade payables 3,188 2,905
e E & Bills payables 14,547 5,058
FEIERE L Financial guarantee contract 481 979
H fth & {5 ZO0B & B 5T FE Other payables and accruals 8,373 8,330
26,589 17,272
BIEZXZAH RNEREE5HER ~XEEH Based on invoice date, the ageing analysis of the trade
BESREMNFORRKRTAOT ¢ payables of the Group as at the end of the reporting period is
as follows:
—E-—F —ETF
2021 2020
FEx F=ET
US$'000 US$'000
Q0BT 90 days or below 2,848 2,158
91%180H 91-180 days 40 399
181£365H 181-365 days 3 4
#B3i8365H Over 365 days 297 344
3,188 2,905
EERE B NHMENZEHNER The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and
BHEEQNFEMEE - other payables approximate their fair values.
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31. BHEE

31. Contract Liabilities

—EB-—F T F
2021 2020
TErx F=x
Us$'000 US$'000
LTIEEEEANSLEE Contract liabilities arising from:
& o SH & Sale of goods 77 296
EHEEEE Movements in contract liabilities
—E-—F —E-FTF
2021 2020
FTER F=T
Us$'000 Us$'000
n—HA—H At 1 January 296 291
HERNERWZMERFEDT A Decrease in contract liabilities as a
GHEEMENEERD result of recognising revenue during
the year that was included in the
contract liabilities at the beginning of
the year (293) (109)
AHEZEERKEMERNE LD Increase in contract liabilities as a result
BEEm of billing in advance of revenue 70 95
BEE H, 3 2 Exchange adjustment 4 19
R+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 77 296

186 Annual Report 2021 4



32.

e MR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEZZT-_—F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

HittEmaE 32. Other Financial Liabilities
—¥-—fF —E-TF
2021 2020
FEx F=x
US$'000 Us$'000
SARE — ERAFE Contingent consideration, at fair value 1,247 1,231

R-ZZE—mME=/A=+N\H8 A2 aH
BE2EWNBARIBLEEE (FE) AR
AR ((BREEE]) (VEEEIVEER
Ea BUAER SR EBEEE
TR AE (1 EL T A AR BE A BT -
ERERTHE PBFEEZ BEEENRE
BEE ZEBEHERRESRFTEMNSEES
MR RAFTEEESNEERR (B
FR(TEERS BIFIREE) HE
NEE R — R R A B R LN R E A E
Pz 2 & M O A M R R R A B R R ) T,
B RODFISFFA] Hhak - AEEBER
BEEERERAMNG  BRSREA
8,000,000k L & HAT X - MBEE S A
1,500,000 JT A 88/ BB F2 18 < 3k (L BA
A EZEEVS R SRR ([SRARE]) -

AREBRBHXAREBELHATEEAL N
MEBARARNANBERGERESEN T
0% 7t & 1,500,000 7T °

SARAREBRVRERBIETAEATE
HABHE R-TE-—FR-_T-FTHF
+—A=+—BHNRAREZRAFES
2 FBEAME38b) °

On 28 March 2014, Lansen Medicine (Hong Kong) Limited
("LMHK™), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into (i) the asset purchase agreement
with Novartis pursuant to which Novartis agrees to transfer
to LMHK the transferred assets (including know-how, books
and records, specified trademarks, commercial information
and medical information relating to the pharmaceutical
product which contains specific active pharmaceutical
ingredients, and it is marketed and sold as a cream under
trademark of Sicorten Plus in the territory (i.e. the PRC,
excludes Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan) for the treatment
of certain corticosteroid-responsive inflammatory skin
diseases secondary infection), and (ii) the licence agreement
to grant the licences, relating to the pharmaceutical product
in the territory for a total cash consideration comprising an
upfront payment of US$8,000,000, plus additional milestone
payments of a total maximum US$1,500,000, which are linked
to sales achieved by LMHK (the “contingent consideration”).

The potential undiscounted amount of all future payments
that the Group could be required to make under this
contingent consideration arrangement is between US$0 and
US$1,500,000.

The contingent consideration was designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL. Refer to Note 38(b) for details of the
fair value measurements of contingent consideration as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.
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33. ZERAFAMEMNRRE 33. Holding Company Statement of Financial
Position
—E-—F —ETF
2021 2020
= FEx FET
Notes Uss$’000 Us$'000
EBE ASSETS
IRBEE Non-current assets
N OEENEI R 3 Interest in a subsidiary 25,020 25,020
FREEE Right-of-use assets 30 _
25,050 25,020
RBEE Current assets
JiE U B B8 A Bl ZR I8 Amount due from a subsidiary 12,582 —
ReELRREEEBY Cash and cash equivalents 9,591 54,047
22,173 54,047
BEE Total assets 47,223 79,067
EakB8E EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BEARR #E Capital and reserves

AAREE ARLESR Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

% 25 Share capital 26 3,773 3,972
A% 17 5 B Share premium 27 11,299 16,750
R 5 A Retained profits 27 31,847 7,422
mRER Total equity 46,919 28,144
REBEE Current liabilities
JERT M B A R A Amount due to a subsidiary — 50,656
HEAE Lease liability 30 _
et 1A Accruals 274 267
wes Total liabilities 304 50,923
BEZREE Total equity and liabilities 47,223 79,067
REBEEZFE Net current assets 21,869 3,124
BEERRBER Total assets less current liabilities 46,919 28,144
REESS On behalf of the directors
EFE EZE
Director Director
B 5 ZER
CHEN Li LIU Xuezi
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34. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company
General information of the subsidiaries
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at the end of the

reporting period are set out follows:

EMRL/ AREFEEARERR
£R R E TEEERY CIM/ROREAHE REENLA TERE
Place of Principal Particulars of Proportion of ownership
incorporation/ place of registered/issued interest and voting power Principal
Name establishment business share capital held by the Group activities
“8C--F -T-%F
2021 2020
ERBARE
Interests held directly
BEBEERARARA RRRLES 3 29,491,360 ZREE 100% 100% HARK
(TEA4BVI) 1XTHERR
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings ~ The BVI Hong Kong 29,491,360 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited (“Lansen (BVI)") of US$1 each
BELAER
Interests held indirectly
Brilliant Manufacture Limited RERNES 0 \REEIETHE AR 100% 100% RAER
Brilliant Manufacture Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Flash Universal Limited RERNES 0 \REEIETHE AR 100% 100% RAEMR
Flash Universal Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Horizon Network Limited RERNES 0 \REEIETHE AR 100% 100% RAEMR
Horizon Network Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Magnificent Worldwide Limited ~ XERZEES BE 1REEIETR L ER 100% 100% HELZR
Magnificent Worldwide Limited ~ The BV Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Beauty Sparkle Holdings Limited ~ XERZEE BE 1REEIETR L ER 100% 100% HEZR
Beauty Sparkle Holdings Limited ~ The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEBRBABVERLA EBRAMS & 1REEIETHEBR 100% 100% REZK
Lansen Medicine Consulting (BVI)  The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
BEEZBVIERAR EBRAMS & 1REEIETHEBR 100% 100% REZR
Lansen Medicine (BVI) Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EHER AT BB &b \REEETHEBR 100% 100% REZK
Full Keen Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
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34. XQFMERQBFE (E) 34. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)
MEATN—RER (E) General information of the subsidiaries (Continued)
EREL/ AEEfEREREER
28 R 5 TEEERY CEM/ROREAHE REENLH TEXE
Place of Principal Particulars of Proportion of ownership
incorporation/ place of registered/issued interest and voting power Principal
Name establishment business share capital held by the Group activities
—8--f -“T-%F
2021 2020
MEsAER
Interests held indirectly
BERE(BR)ARAH &R &R 100REE100E T & 100% 100% RERK
&
Lansen Investments Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited HK$100
BEBE(BE)ERAT &b B TREEIBTHERR 100% 100% REER
Lansen Pharmaceutical Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited
VEENRR(FR)ERAR  FE & 1REEETHEBR 100% 100% REZR
Liwah Plant Extract Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding

(Hong Kong) Limited

REBRARAA Bk &h 1REETETHEBR 100% 100% REZR

Point Kin International Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding

BEEE &b &b 1REEETHEBR 100% 100% EEXHK

LMHK Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical

business

REBEBERAA Bk BB \REEETHEBR 100% 100% REZR

Perfection Link Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding

ERUEREERAA EAGE ) HE AR236,000,0007 100% 100% BEEHK
(IEgUZ])

Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical The PRC (Note (b)) The PRC RMB236,000,000 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical
Company Limited business

("Ningbo Liwah")*
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34. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)
General information of the subsidiaries (Continued)

EREL/ AEEfEREREER
28 R TEEERY CEM/ROREAHE REENLH TEER
Place of Principal Particulars of Proportion of ownership
incorporation/ place of registered/issued interest and voting power Principal
Name establishment business share capital held by the Group activities
“®Z-f _T_TF
2021 2020
MEsAER
Interests held indirectly
ERVERNRBEMERAT  HE (HED) Gl AR #28,000,0007T 100% 100% BEXHK
Ningbo Liwah Plant Extraction The PRC (Note (b)) The PRC RMB28,000,000 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical
Technology Limited” business
ERREEEERAA &l (F3E () Gl AR 835,000,007 100% 100% BEXH
Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical The PRC (Note (c)) The PRC RMB35,000,000 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical
Company Limited” business
ERALRENRBRAA P (M EE(b) HE AR 1,000,000 100% 100% BEXHK
Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical The PRC (Note (b)) The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical
Technology Company Limited® business
REERES (LB BRAA  HE(HED) il AR 10,000,007 100% 100% BEEHK
Lansen (Shanghai) International ~ The PRC (Note (b)) The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical
Trading Co., Ltd.” business
REBRES(LR)ARAE  HE (W) Gl AR 82,000,000 100% 100% £8%%
Lansen (Beijing) International The PRC (Note (a)) The PRC RMB2,000,000 100% 100%  Cosmetic business
Trading Co., Ltd.”
PHARARAA REBRAHS 0 1REEIETHEBR 100% 100% #REEK
Allied Choice International Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
LRERMB(FB)ERAA BB (FEE) & \REEETHEBR - 100% REER
Letai Health Technology Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 — 100%  Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited (Note (e))
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34. AR FHE L AFE (&) 34. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)
General information of the subsidiaries (Continued)

M QRN —RER (&)

EREL/ AREFERARERR
28 R TEEENE O/ RORAHE REENLH TEER
Place of Principal Particulars of Proportion of ownership
incorporation/ place of registered/issued interest and voting power Principal
Name establishment business share capital held by the Group activities
“®Z-f _T_TF
2021 2020
MEsAER
Interests held indirectly
BEBREIARK (BE) &k &b 1REETETHEBR 100% 100% #REEK
BRAR
Lansen Medibeauty Tech Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited
ERRLEEENRARAT P (MEEb) HE AR%1,000,0007T 100% 100% E5%H
(IERMEBE])
Ningbo Lansen Medibeauty The PRC (Note (b)) The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Cosmetic business
Tech Limited ("Ningbo Lansen
Medibeauty”)*
BEOhL) BERRARLA Wt (M) Wt 100,000% 1 /%48 100% 100% EEe%
Lansen (Swiss) Medicine Switzerland (Note (d)) ~ Switzerland Swiss Franc100,000 100% 100% Inactive
Consulting Limited
IREEREREAD M PE(ME@QRNN)  HE AR 500,000 - 100% X&%H
BRAR
Beijing Eliza Medical and Beauty  The PRC (Notes (a) ~ The PRC RMB500,000 - 100%  Cosmetic business
Clinic Company Limited” and (f))
EREREBINRERAT  PE (WD) Gk AR 5,000,000 100% 100% XA%H
Ningbo San Parietti Medibeauty  The PRC (Note (b)) The PRC RMB5,000,000 100% 100%  Cosmetic business
Tech Limited*
RBEREXZMBARAT  FE(WZORGH)  HE AR H500,0007C - 100% XBEH
Chengdu San Parietti Beauty Tech  The PRC (Notes (b) The PRC RMB500,000 - 100%  Cosmetic business
Limited” and (f))
GTRERERAMBEARRA B (FEE) ik AR 500,007 100% 100% EB%HK
Beijing San Parietti Beauty Tech  The PRC (Note (a)) The PRC RMB500,000 100% 100%  Cosmetic business

Limited”
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F+=-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

34. XATHE R EIFHE (&) 34. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)
MEATN—RER (E) General information of the subsidiaries (Continued)
HRERL/ rEEfEEARERR
£8 R TEEENY CHM/RORAHE REENLA TEEH
Place of Principal Particulars of Proportion of ownership
incorporation/ place of registered/issued interest and voting power Principal
Name establishment business share capital held by the Group activities
ZE--§ ZZCZF
2021 2020
BEsERR
Interests held indirectly
LEERREANRBRAR  HREWEORG)  +E A& %500,0007 - 100% XB%H
Shanghai San Parietti Beauty Tech  The PRC (Notes (b) The PRC RMB500,000 - 100%  Cosmetic business
Limited” and (f))
! EHEEZ i For identification purpose only
B3 Notes:
(a) RABEKYABRAF (a) Established as a limited liability company in the PRC
(b) KRB AINEBEDE (b) Established as a wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC
(c) R BEK BRINEG BB (0) Established as a sino-foreign equity joint venture in the PRC
(d) Rim TR AF R AR (d) Established as a limited liability company in Switzerland
(e) ZENT B RN EE (e) These companies were de-registered during the year
) ZENFBRAEE M E (f) These companies were disposed of during the year
= SR 4 AT (A] P B O T B AT (R (A] (B 7S B None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
# o end of the year.
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HE_ZT-_—F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

34. XQFKMERBFE (&)

EBAYAE AR

EFEXRK

Principal activities

34. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)

Composition of the Group

S BR 32, BR 7 itk BE
Place of incorporation/
establishment

ZEMEAREE
Number of wholly-owned
subsidiaries

—E-—F —E-FF
2021 2020
BEXK Y 5 5
Pharmaceutical business The PRC
BEXK i 1 1
Pharmaceutical business Hong Kong
EDEB H B 4 7
Cosmetic business The PRC
REZER E 7 8
Investment holding Hong Kong
BEER REBEIES 9 9
Investment holding The BVI
LmEHE It 1 1
Inactive Switzerland
27 31
35. &L 35. Commitments
EARRIE Capital commitments
—EZ—F —T-THF
2021 2020
TEx FET
US$'000 US$'000
U B8 LA TS & 18 HY AR Commitments for the acquisition of:
EEE Intangible assets 179 1,045
ME - BENRE Property, plant and equipment 37 30
216 1,075
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36. HEERE
WABF  RERBARE

REVBHRRHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F+=-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

36. Lease Liabilities

Office premise, motor vehicles and office equipment

—EZ—F —T-THF
2021 2020
TEx FET
US$'000 US$’000
NE Additions 266 980
FERZ Interest expense 47 44
HERR Lease payments 528 515
RRAEMNZTOEHBZRAOT ¢ Future lease payments are due as follows:
REHESNR B BE
Minimum
lease Present
R=-ZZE-_—F+=-H=+—H At31December 2021 payments Interest value
TEx TEx FER
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
—FR Within one year 353 17 336
78 38 — F B N HB A A Later than one year and
not later than two years 209 5 204
562 22 540
SEHAEMNK A2 HE
Minimum
lease Present
RZE_ZTF+=-_A=+—H At 31 December 2020 payments Interest value
FE7 FE7 F=ET
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
—F K Within one year 441 47 394
il —FETBAMRE Later than one year and
not later than two years 416 29 387
A 38 M S B ER iR Later than two years and
not later than five years 407 12 395
1,264 88 1,176
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36. HESE (&) 36. Lease Liabilities (Continued)

WS RERBARME (E) Office premise, motor vehicles and office equipment
(Continued)

BREESELAZABBEHERNOT Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:
—E-—F —EFTF
2021 2020
TEx FET
US$'000 Us$'000
m—HA—H At 1 January 1,176 894
ReERELD : Change from cash flows:
EEHEAENTS MY Repayment of principal portion of
lease liabilities (481) (471)
EEHEAENFEIMD Repayment of interest portion of
lease liabilities (47) (44)
Hih B & : Other changes:
£ Additions 266 980
A B Interest 47 44
AR IEEE Early termination of lease (198) (299)
HEHEB AR Disposal of subsidiaries (243) —
FE AR Exchange adjustment 20 72
Rt+=-—A=+—8H At 31 December 540 1,176
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37. BEAFXRS

REVBHRRHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—F+=-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

37. Related Party Transactions

FA AEEEBELFIN NIRS During the year, the Group entered into the following

transactions with related parties:

—E-—F —EFTF
2021 2020
Fxx FET
US$’'000 Us$'000
BEEXS : Trading transactions:
MEARMBAABEESER Purchase of goods from a fellow
subsidiary — 69
mEEE A EEEEm (M) Purchase of goods from associates
(Note (a)) 64 185
Mt &N EHEE M (K@) Sale of goods to an associate (Note (a)) 1 50
MERMERQRLEE R Sale of goods to a fellow subsidiary
(Kf#E(a)) (Note (a)) 113 —
JEMEEE R RIRFEE (HI7E(Db)) Entrusted fee payable to an associate
(Note (b)) 185 71
FEUE & A A N T & (M EE(0)) Processing fee receivable from
an associate (Note (c)) 44 10
A5 Other transactions:
ENERMEAREERX Rental expenses paid to a fellow
subsidiary 58 20
EfEgE A AEeRAT Rental expenses paid to an associate — 6
THNRRMBAREEAE Settlement of lease liabilities to a fellow
subsidiary 31 47
ENRRKEBEAREESEA Management fee paid to a fellow
(B 7E(d)) subsidiary (Note (d)) — 164
ENEEE R RHEER Research and development fee paid to
(B 7Ee)) an associate (Note (e)) 17 748
ENEBEARBAE Consultancy fee paid to an associate
(Mt 3E(e)) (Note (e)) 93 —
JEUEE & R R RSB Service fee receivable from an associate 2 1
FERERZWE QAR RS E Service fee receivable from fellow
subsidiaries 67 23
BN ERME A TR MEE ER Cross guarantee commission fee paid to
B+ 2R (K ) a fellow subsidiary (Note (f)) 101 94
JE U [B] X BT B~ 5] H9 48 B HE AR Cross guarantee commission income
M A (B Ed) receivable from a fellow subsidiary
(Note (f)) 101 94
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37. BEAXRS (&) 37.
TﬁlJmﬁé (BB IR E) NS B R

RiBE

Related Party Transactions (Continued)
The following balances (net of loss allowance) were
outstanding at the end of the reporting period:

—E-—F —E-TF
2021 2020
FEx FE7T
US$'000 Us$'000
Bt & N 7] R 3R (i 5E(g)) Amounts owed by associates
(Note (g)) — 2,258
m—REEE AT EZ (MT3E24) Loan to an associate (Note 24) 8,855 8,425
EEINIENGIV G =) Amounts owed by fellow subsidiaries
(Note (g)) 8,828 8,552

(@ #BHEZZ-_—F+=-A=+—8 Kx&H
H] 5% 08 45 B8 B 4964,000% T (ZE =T 4 -
] 22 K 58 R 9 Bl BB B 491,000k T &
184,000%70) K9 & & ©

HE—ZT=—F+=-A=+—8 A5£EH
BlAEENARRNRRNE AR KRERE
REBELYRMARRQR L E41,000% T
(ZZ == 4 :50,000%7t) &113,000% 7T
(ZZ_ZF E)NER -

(b) WRE=ZZF—X"FEALA=+HEEMEBLEBVI)
EFMEENIER G ([EEMIER

Whakl) - ZEGER A ZSKEAEBVIREME A
A ([BAEBV)EE) BEFPEEMIATES
R o &P WE &R ENTE RN Z R
AIN0%E IAKIK 2 ZRX N ERIERE
o

(0) BEZEMIERGZE XRAEZEME
(BVI) £ B N THE W IZENE @ ° 1 T % LA
Ak AN AEEBER  SERERMIE
i B 2 B AR IN10% K9 ANEK °

(d) ﬁ$%lk@%éi¥ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ B EBRE
BE)ERARMNERER -

()  ARIFBAEFEXDESE M N4E 58 MO
BHER -HEEAAENEERTEEBN

FREER-
mABERARX e FERAERE MR HE
AR%s °
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Notes:

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group acquired goods
of approximately US$64,000 from Robustnique (2020: approximately
US$1,000 and US$184,000 from Natural Dailyhealth and Robustnique
respectively).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group sold goods of
approximately US$1,000 (2020: US$50,000) and US$113,000 (2020: Nil)
to Robustnique and Changchun Botai Pharmaceutical Biotechnology Co.,
Ltd, a fellow subsidiary of the Company, respectively.

(b) Pursuant to the entrusted processing framework agreement signed
between Natural Dailyhealth and Lansen (BVI) on 20 September 2016
(the “Entrusted Processing Framework Agreement”), Natural Dailyhealth
may request Lansen (BVI) and its subsidiaries (the “Lansen (BVI)
Group”) to enter into the processing order contracts with customers.
An entrusted fee was payable to Natural Dailyhealth for the difference
between the amounts received from customers and the costs incurred in
relation to the processing of the products plus a mark-up rate of 10%.

(c) Pursuant to the Entrusted Processing Framework Agreement, Natural
Dailyhealth may entrust Lansen (BVI) Group for the processing of the
plant extract products. The processing fee is charged on a cost-plus
basis, representing all costs incurred in relation to the processing of the
products plus a mark-up rate of 10%.

(d) Management fee was paid to Cathay International Services (Hong Kong)
Limited, a fellow subsidiary of the Company, for management service
provided to the Group.

(e) Research and development fee was paid to Robustnique, for the
development of skin care products. Research and development
fee represented all costs incurred in relation to the research and
development of the products.

Consultancy fee was paid to Natural Dailyhealth for the consultancy
services acquired for the plant extract products.
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B EE -
(f)

KAREERA
FEREKRE—RATEBDE

REVBHRRHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BH X5 (&)

(%)

RZFE—R"REANAZ+MWAB - E|KIE.
EMEEEMIRERMARLR ([HHKE
&) RARRRME A B R BAEBVIET L
BEERRBZ Bt RZF—-—R"F+H—
HE-Z-AFAA=ZTHEREBEZT TR
TEFUR HAERR(R 6 HHTE R AR AER -
MEBAEHS —FERONERAEH K
B FOEEERBENR-_ZE-—NFRAA=
”% EREBE-E-NAFLtA—BHA
R T —F R A=TRHEH-

R=ZT=——+=ZA=+—8 &HEEFMIE
HY fR T {8 /420,390,000% 7T (HHE RO AR
#130,000,0007%) (—Z = Z 4 : 19,924,000
=7t (FE R4 AR%130,000,0007T)) &9 4R
1T F Ty R AN 52 B bA19,249,000% 7t (M E
R AR¥122,727,000T) (ZE =T 4 :
11,141,000% 7T (FHE R KA R#72,697,000
78)) (M 5E23)H) FE W 3= 4% }2,797,000% 7T
(HEERH AR%17,836,0007T) SR 1717 70K
B(ZE=ZT 11117000%71(*@.5\
4 ANER#72,536,0007T)) c B —HE ' RZ
T-_—H+=-A=+—8" ?ﬁfﬁfﬁ;ﬁ%
Rz AR #130,000,0007t Z $R1TREE » A&
;%E%Hw,%&ooo%ﬁ(*ﬁ“‘ﬁém/\ﬁﬁg
61,000,0007T) (=& — ZE 4 : 11,495,000%
JC(FHE R4 AR%75,000,0007T)) °

AEBRENVHERNGERERBBE
SRS RREREE L%%%ﬁ)amﬁwwﬁ
BITEEEAMARITEENTESZE H®
AREBEEHRENE TES E’JEHTAIE«’
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—HLEFE" ' &
S EERNEIEEEHE R A515,000F T (=
T T4 : f5R927,000% L) ©

RERIE R IG E B B G o i iR 00 T AR %5 i 45
FTHEFSHBARHEERTELENE S
EWRIE - RABEER 2B RARER
BE HE-_T-_—FR-_ZT-_TF+_-A4
=+—HIEFERN ERBEIRFIRMEK
z%%%mw R=ZF=Z—F+=A=+—

CBBA AT RAERABEERE %R
maﬁmiﬁmi%‘(,mao NZTE_THF
+ZA=+—H8 BBELRNRAREHERE
B E197,000€ 7T - AN RARHE A
AR A E R E B #H149,000E L (=2 =
Z : 134,000%7T) °

A ERBEAR S TR
17

BB A B NS M a1 BT B S A

%$’D\ RIESHDHE -

BE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—BHILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

37. Related Party Transactions (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(f)

On 24 June 2016, Ningbo Liwah, lilin Haizi Bio-Engineering Technology
Company Limited (“Jilin Haizi”), a fellow subsidiary of the Company
and Lansen (BVI) entered into a cross guarantee agreement, pursuant
to which the parties may, provide or procure its subsidiaries to provide
certain guarantees to banks in relation to the banking facilities of each
other from 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2019. Commission fee would be
charged to a party in respect of a loan which is guaranteed by another
party. A new cross guarantee agreement was signed on 3 May 2019,
and the effective period commenced on 1 July 2019 and will be expired
on 30 June 2022.

As at 31 December 2021, the bank borrowings with carrying amount
of US$20,390,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB130,000,000)
(2020: US$19,924,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB130,000,000))
drawn by Jilin Haizi was guaranteed by the Group together with the
collateral including bill receivables of US$19,249,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB122,727,000) (2020: US$11,141,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB72,697,000)) (Note 23) and bank deposit of
US$2,797,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB17,836,000) (2020:
US$11,117,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB72,536,000)) was
pledged. On the other hand, banking facilities of RMB130,000,000 was
guaranteed by Jilin Haizi and an amount of US$9,568,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB61,000,000), was drawn down by the Group as at
31 December 2021 (2020: US$11,495,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB75,000,000)).

Loss allowance of financial guarantee provided by the Group is measured
by estimating the cash shortfalls, which are based on the expected
payments to reimburse the banks for a credit loss that it incurs less
any amounts that the Group expects to receive from Jilin Haizi. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, loss allowance of US$515,000 was
reversed (2020: US$927,000 was recognised).

The amounts due represented the advances to suppliers on the goods
to be purchased or processing services to be provided and trade
receivables arising from the sales of goods. The amounts due are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The Group did not
give or receive any guarantee during the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 for the related party transactions. As at 31 December
2021, no loss allowance was recognised against the amounts owed
by an associate, which has been fully settled during the year. As at 31
December 2020, loss allowance of US$197,000 was recognised against
the amounts owed by an associate. In addition, loss allowance of
US$149,000 (2020: US$134,000) was recognised against the amounts
owed by fellow subsidiaries.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
above related party transactions were conducted on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course of
business.

Remuneration for key management personnel represents
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in Note

11.

BA A B
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38. EkERE 38. Risk Management

AEEEHKEELLERRERTINS
HEER AEENRREERNEA
MHA THREFEZAE BEEHR
BRAEENEHEPHRSRE -

FERR

AEENEERRIERBES KHEAM
JEUWRIE - SR EMBARA K2 S
EMBREERROERERG  LIER
SEEEEREBAETEEBELR LA
EHEER  RERE  WFGERL -

SEREEERR AEEEEEDFY
EEREK  HREFKAEEEEERRA
EEBFHMREMEZERBRE - ABKRRKR
BETB KR B EEE -

RZEBE_—F+_A=+—8  —fs
HMEAL(NE S EWRTEEFEI0% A L
(—2-2F: —fi) -

nBESEERRAR  EEAHFIR
A IRIT

AEEEBEFEAR—BEETEE
R URAZEEEBRR—BERAEE
MEERREGHNEGEREE -

&) 168
AEEZEAER2HEREEREZS
HAEEZRUSABERE Al
BOERBRBRERTERSE - ERAR
BRAENEEBBRY AR TRAEFS 5 &
BTREBRTRBEE - ER0 8 iR
MEBERRETSE - PRAKETEE
FPERZEE—FED -
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The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which
result from its operating and investing activities. The Group’s
risk management is coordinated at its headquarters in close
cooperation with the directors and focuses on actively
securing the Group’s short to medium term cash flows.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and
other receivables. The amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position are net of loss allowances of
receivables, estimated by the Group’s management based on
historical credit loss experience and their assessment of the
forward looking information i.e. economic environment.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group has formulated a credit policy and delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

There was one external customer contributed 10% or more of
total trade receivables as at 31 December 2021 (2020: one).

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to have been effective in
limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable
level.

Trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group's different customer bases.
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HE-T-—F+=-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

38. B EE (&) 38. Risk Management (Continued)
EER k(&) Credit risk (Continued)
BESEWSTE (&) Trade receivables (Continued)
TREIIWNR B FR T _TF The following tables provide information about the Group’s
+TZ A=+ —HASEEREERRKD exposure to credit risk and loss allowance for trade receivables
BERNE S REWRIER EEREE as at 31 December 2021 and 2020:

R-E-—_—#F+=-_H=+—H At 31 December 2021

REAE BHEER BEERE
FTEx % FER
Gross
carrying Expected Loss
amount loss rate allowance
Us$’000 % US$000
BVER K %61 Bi1 290 H Current and past due
over 1-90 days 15,392 1.10 169
#HA91%E275H Past due over 91-275
days 75 36.00 27
B HAEEE276 H Past due over 276 days 487 100.00 487
15,954 683
R=-—FE-FF+=-HA=+—H At 31 December 2020
FREAAE EHERX EREE
TET % FE7T
Gross
carrying Expected Loss
amount loss rate allowance
USs$'000 % Us$’000
BN EA K s HA1Z=90H Current and past due
over 1-90 days 16,265 1.35 219
#HA91%E275H Past due over 91-275
days 2,874 2.02 58
B EREBB276 H Past due over 276 days 563 85.44 481
19,702 758
BHEEXRDEEBAIENEREIE Expected loss rates are estimated based on actual loss
RESTEET o S E R EH R R experience over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to
CEERTHENHEANKCERR - & reflect differences between economic conditions during the
BIARR 7N 2 B S e W sk IB FE ER E HA Y period over which the historic data has been collected, current
ARSI B RAEE SR ER o conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the receivables and forward-looking
information.
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38. B EE (&) 38. Risk Management (Continued)
EER k(&) Credit risk (Continued)
ESEWFTEE) Trade receivables (Continued)
oK 30 BA Y 28 5 e U k1A R i HR D MR E 4 Trade receivables that were not past due related to a wide
RENEZEFER - range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

EAMNEZREKAEENAEERES
REFFECENETBEYRFPAR - &

Trade receivables that were past due related to a number of
independent customers that had a good track record with the
N ENMEE  BEEEHREXEZERRED Group. Based on available information, management believed
FEESETEZLEEALEH B LERDK that there had been no significant change in credit quality of
=1 e these customers and their balances were still considered to be
recoverable.

Movement in the loss allowance account of trade receivables

FRAERESRERBAERBRERZE

R during the year is as follows:
F=ET
Us$'000
B2+ _-_A=+—-HILEE Year ended 31 December 2020
R-ZZE_ZTF—H—H At 1 January 2020 865
PE A A& Exchange adjustment 51
B 18 B Loss allowance 166
15 1E A AT Uy 3] 4 8 Written off as uncollectible (324)
R-ZE_ZTEF+_A=1+—H At 31 December 2020 758
BLE—Z-—-f+=-A=+—HLEE Year ended 31 December 2021
RZEZ—F—H—H At 1 January 2021 758
B i, B Exchange adjustment 17
iR E R Reversal of loss allowance (92)
RZE-_—F+_A=+—H At 31 December 2021 683
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38. EkEE (&)

FERRE (&)

At ER R
AEBEZNREABREESRFEEM
FE MR IR B IR

E e GRIB TSk B iE B ER 27 -
R-EBE-_—F+-_A=+—8H  REMH
FEEHANEETR ZEHMEKR
TEEREBRE#E276,000% T (T -F
F 1 445,000% L) c AEEWERZE
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38. Risk Management (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables

The Group measures loss allowance for other receivables
based on 12 months ECLs.

Other receivables are shown net of loss allowance. As at
31 December 2021, loss allowance of US$276,000 (2020:
US$445,000) was recognised for other receivables with
reference to the corresponding debtor’s credit rating. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Movement in the loss allowance account of other receivables
during the year is as follows:

FET
US$'000
BIE-—Z-_ZF+_-_A=+—HILEE Year ended 31 December 2020
R-E_ZF—H—H At 1 January 2020 322
M H AR Exchange adjustment 28
B 18 Loss allowance 95
R-_ZE-_FTF+-_F=+—H At 31 December 2020 445
BEt—E-_— S+ -A=+—HLEE Year ended 31 December 2021
RZE-Z—F—H—H At 1 January 2021 445
PE H, 3 2 Exchange adjustment 8
EERERD Reversal of loss allowance 177)
R-_E-_—F+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2021 276

BROBES RS - Ll EESRE IR
B LEBRABRENSREE ETH
I B R RGO BRI B/

Except for the amount impaired, none of the above assets is
either past due or impaired. The financial assets included in
the above balances related to receivables for which there was
no recent history of default.
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38. EfEE (&) 38. Risk Management (Continued)

AR ()
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AEEREHENERERTBH—
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Credit risk (Continued)

Loan to an associate

The Group measures loss allowance for loan to an associate
based on lifetime ECLs.

Loan to an associate is shown net of loss allowance. As at
31 December 2021, loss allowance of US$964,000 (2020:
US$693,000) was recognised for loan to an associate as the
loan is not expected to be fully recovered. The Group does
not hold any collateral over the balance.

Movement in the loss allowance account of loan to an
associate during the year is as follows:

T
Us$'000
BE—Z2-_ZSF+_-_A=+—HILEE Year ended 31 December 2020
RZEZTF—H—H At 1 January 2020 129
PE H A Exchange adjustment 38
B 18 B Loss allowance 526
R-ZE-_TEF+-_BA=+—H At 31 December 2020 693
BlE=—F=-—f+=-A=+—HLEE Year ended 31 December 2021
WZZEZ—F—H—H At 1 January 2021 693
PE H, 3 2 Exchange adjustment 19
5 18 B Loss allowance 252
RZEBEZ—F+=A=+—H At 31 December 2021 964

BRBE R RSN - Ll B 2 IR 8 B SO
B LiESRABEN SR E E EiTH
W\ KRR ERER -

B B HER

RBEHKR BEAEE R AR A ATE
HHEERANGAGERRAARE
130,000,0007T (48 & 7 920,390,000
) (ZZE=FF : AR¥130,000,0007T
(FEEMN#19,924,000%7T)) - I HER
REEREAEBERAQARAS K
= 78 (M 5E37(F) °
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Except for the amount impaired, none of the above assets is
either past due or impaired. The financial assets included in
the above balances related to the loan for which there was
no recent history of default.

Financial guarantees

At the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure
to credit risk in respect of financial guarantees issued by
the Group and Company was RMB130,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately US$20,390,000) (2020: RMB130,000,000
(equivalent to approximately US$19,924,000)) which
represented the maximum amount the Group and Company
could be required to pay if the guarantees were called on
(Note 37(f)).
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38. Risk Management (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Financial guarantees (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the
Company have assessed the past due status of the debts
under guarantee, the financial position of the counterparty
as well as the economic outlook of the industry in which the
counterparty operates, and concluded that there has not been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition
of the financial guarantee contract. Accordingly, the loss
allowance for financial guarantee contract issued by the
Group is measured at an amount equal to 12 months ECLs.

The amount of loss allowance is lower (2020: higher) than
the premium less cumulative amortisation, therefore, loss
allowance of US$515,000 was reversed (2020: loss allowance
of US$927,000 was recognised) in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The credit exposure of the financial guarantee contract is
classified as stage 1. During the year, there was no transfer
between stages.

Liquidity risk

The directors of the Company have built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities,
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to have been effective in
managing liquidity risk.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings
with repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the banks
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.
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38. Risk Management (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end
of the reporting period.

—E--F
2021
15/ EHARE
RER 1228 125%  BeREAH
Within Total
one year Between Between contractual
oron one and two and undiscounted

demand two years five years cash flows

TR TXR TR TER
Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000

&3 Borrowings 25,207 — — 25,207
HEAR Lease liabilities 353 209 - 562
ZoRNFERENZE Trade and bills payables 17,735 - - 17,735
E AR A TR R B 5T SRR Other payables and accruals 6,213 - - 6,213
HRERAHY Financial quarantee contract 481 - - 481
EhemaE Other financial liabilities 1,500 - - 1,500
51,489 209 — 51,698

BREAHBER Financial guarantee issued
RRERE Maximum amount guaranteed 20,390 - - 20,390

i 25
\ 2020

16A3% BHARNE
REX 1225 1555 BERBR
Within Total
one year Between Between contractual
oron one and twoand  undiscounted
demand two years five years cash flows
TE1 TET TE7 T£n
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
&3 Borrowings 32,147 — — 32,147
HEAR Lease liabilities 441 416 407 1,264
BHENFEREMNER Trade and bills payables 7,963 — — 7,963
B BT 0B RIERH 3R Other payables and accruals 5,629 — — 5,629
HBEREY Financial guarantee contract 979 — — 979
Eemad Other financial liabilities 1,500 — — 1,500
48,659 416 407 49,482

BRAHBER Financial guarantee issued
ERERE Maximum amount quaranteed 19,924 — — 19,924
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38. Risk Management (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “within one year or on demand” time band in
the above maturity analysis.

The balance included above for the non-derivative financial
liabilities bear variable interest rate is subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal transactional currency exposure to
foreign currency risk as most of the financial assets and
liabilities held by the Group’s subsidiaries are denominated in
the respective functional currency of such subsidiaries.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arises.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations
with floating interest rates. The interest rate and terms of
repayment of bank borrowings of the Group are disclosed in
Note 28.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group has no cash
flow interest rate risk as there are no bank borrowings which
bear floating interest rates. The Group has not used any
financial instruments to hedge potential fluctuation in interest
rates.
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38. AMEE (&) 38. Risk Management (Continued)
REFEASHNERMEERAEBHE Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category
EEMERAKRT 2% B ERmEmEE T The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
TREERCRAGBENER - statements of financial position relate to the following

categories of financial assets and financial liabilities.

—E-—F —E-FF
2021 2020
SEESTE FET
Us$’000 Us$'000
SREE Financial assets
REBHER AT ENCREE Financial assets measured at amortised
cost:
B 5 & E b e R Fk I8 Trade and other receivables 45,134 40,218
m— R E N a B E R Loan to an associate 8,855 8,425
BEEMIRITER Pledged bank deposits 15,944 14,144
HERIREEEYD Cash and cash equivalents 32,545 83,409
102,478 146,196
ERATEFAEENEREE Financial assets measured at FVTPL — 32,815
102,478 179,011
SEEE Financial liabilities
R SH R AN BR Y Financial liabilities measured at
SREBE amortised cost:
B Borrowings 24,687 31,424
HEBE Lease liabilities 540 1,176
B NEMENFE Trade and other payables 24,430 13,592
49,657 46,192
M ERE X Financial guarantee contract 481 979
BAFEFAEZNSEMEME :  Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL:
==K Other financial liabilities 1,247 1,231
51,385 48,402
ERITHBEER Financial guarantee issued 20,390 19,924
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

38. Risk Management (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
Financial instruments not measured at fair value include
trade and other receivables, loan to an associate,
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
borrowings, lease liabilities, financial guarantee contract
and trade and other payables.

Due to their short term nature, their carrying values
approximate their fair values.

Financial instruments measured at fair value
Financial instruments measured at fair value include
financial assets at FVTPL and other financial liabilities.
Analysis on fair value hierarchy is presented as follows.

Equity investment in Starry

As mentioned in Note 5 above, the shares of Starry
held by the Group were classified as financial assets at
FVTPL. The fair value of the shares of Starry classified in
level 1 is based on quoted market price at the reporting
date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets at
FVTPL held by the Group is the current bid price.

There were no transfers between levels during the year.
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38. Risk Management (Continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair Value Measurements of Other Financial
Liabilities

The following tables present other financial liabilities
included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021 measured at fair
value on a recurring basis according to the fair value

BEEREUATARR : hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy has the following
levels:
F1H: HEEEREREMSH Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
WE(CREFHE) for identical assets;
F2 . ZBERNFIRFABESH Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
WE AN B 2 (BliRE within level 1 that are observable for the asset,
%) (e ERE either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
H) B ASE - & derived from prices); and
FEIR: ZEBEEUFERTEBER Level 3: inputs for the asset that are not based on
3% UK B & A E0E (1~ observable market data (unobservable inputs).
AT R AR ©
F1R 28 $E38 @t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
SFEI SEED SPEI SPEIM,
—Z--%+=-H=1+—H 31 December 2021 Us$000 Us$000 Us$'000 Us$'000
afg Liabilities
BATEFABRN Financial liabilities
2REE measured at FVTPL
—HEeRERE — Other financial liabilities - - 1,247 1,247
ERE F28 E34 @it
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
TEr TEr TET TET
ZZ-ZTE+ZA=+—H 31 December 2020 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
BE Liabilities
BRATEFAERR Financial liabilities
ERER measured at FVTPL
—HtiemAaR — Other financial liabilities — — 1,231 1,231
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38. Risk Management (Continued)

(b)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair Value Measurements of Other Financial
Liabilities (Continued)

There was fair value gain of US$47,000 on other
financial liabilities during the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: Nil).

The fair value of the contingent consideration as
at 31 December 2021 and 2020 was estimated
by management by applying the discounted cash
flows. The determination of fair value is based on
certain parameters including the discount rate, the
probability of sales achievement and the period of sales
achievement, which are unobservable. The significant
unobservable inputs and relationship of these inputs
to fair value of contingent consideration are shown as
below:

Significant Relationship of unobservable
unobservable inputs to fair value
input(s)

Discount rate of
5.0%

The higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value.

Probability of sales
achievement, which
is 100%

The higher the probability of
sales achievement, the higher
the fair value.

Period of sales
achievement

The earlier the period of sales
achievement, the higher the
fair value.

Increased discount rate by 1% would decrease the
fair value on other financial liabilities by approximately
US$47,000 whilst decreased discount rate by 1% would
increase the fair value on other financial liabilities by
approximately US$49,000.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during
the year.

There were no transfers between levels during the year.
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38. Risk Management (Continued)

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)
Fair Value Measurements of Other Financial
Liabilities (Continued)
The financial liabilities classified in level 3 use valuation
techniques based on significant inputs that are not
based on observable market data. The financial

BHAV s B H R A SRR EI AR N TS instruments within this level are reconciled from opening
to closing balances as follows:
—E—-— —E-EF
2021 2020
FEx F=T
US$'000 US$'000
BfE Liabilities
BRATFEFABENEEEE :  Financial liabilities measured at
FVTPL:
Rn—H—H At 1 January 1,231 1,171
HEmSmagEnaFrEka Fair value gain on other financial
liabilities (47) —
RERIFRASARETR Unwinding of discount on
(PfF7E9) contingent consideration charged
to profit or loss (Note 9) 63 60
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 1,247 1,231
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38. Risk Management (Continued)

Capital Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings as disclosed in Note 28, cash and
bank balances and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained
profits.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its
overall financing structure. The Group manages the capital
structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The net gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was
as follows:

—¥-—fF —ETHF

2021 2020

FEx FET

US$'000 Us$'000

B (HfF7E28) Borrowings (Note 28) 24,687 31,424
B BHERAEEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents

(P 7E25) (Note 25) (32,545) (83,409)

B BB IRITE R (M FE25) Less: Pledged bank deposits (Note 25) (15,944) (14,144)

He RIBTTER TR (EF %S Net cash and bank balances/Net debt (23,802) (66,129)

- ¥ Equity 116,601 197,282

FEEERILE Net debt to equity ratio RiE A N/A @A N/A
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Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
P.O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman

KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

EEROBFERIE

Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited
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www.lansen.com.cn
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FE&E ¢ (852) 2828 9206
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EiE  (86) 574 8804 6316
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER

OFFICE

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
P.O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman

KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited

Suite 1601, 16/F, Central Tower

28 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
503

WEBSITE

www.lansen.com.cn

CORPORATE CONTACT INFORMATION FOR
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

Hong Kong

Please contact our Company Secretary at:

Telephone: (852) 2828 9206

The PRC
Please contact our Investor Relations Department at:
Telephone: (86) 574 8804 6316
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